
1

CITY OF BARABOO COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 101 South Blvd., Baraboo, Wisconsin

Tuesday, April 9, 2019, 7:00 P.M.

Regular meeting of the Common Council, Mayor Palm presiding.
Notices sent to Council members: Wedekind, Kolb, Plautz, Sloan, Petty, Ellington, Alt, Kierzek, and Thurow

Notices sent to City Staff and Media: Atty. Truman, Adm. Geick, Clerk Zeman, Finance Director Haggard, City Engineer
Pinion, Utility Super. Peterson, Street Super. Gilman, Police Chief Schauf, Parks & Recreation Dir. Hardy, City
Treasurer Laux, Fire Chief Kevin Stieve, Library Director Jessica Bergin, CDA Director, the News Republic, WBDL,
and 99.7FM

Notices sent to other interested parties: Citizen Agenda Group, Media Agenda Group

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES (Voice Vote): March 26, 2019

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Voice Vote):

5. COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN MEETING LAW NOTED

6. PRESENTATIONS The Mayor will read the following proclamation declaring:

 April 2019 as National Autism Awareness Month

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

8. PUBLIC INVITED TO SPEAK (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the
agenda for Council action if recognized by the presiding officer.)

9. MAYOR'S BUSINESS

 Mayor would like to congratulate Fire Chief Kevin Stieve who is celebrating his 25th anniversary with
the Baraboo Fire Department. Congratulations Kevin!

10. CONSENT AGENDA (Roll Call)
CA-1…Approve the accounts payable to be paid in the amount of $_____________

CA-2…Approve the 2019 1st Quarter Budget Amendments.

11. ORDINANCES ON 2nd READING
SRO-1… An Amendment to Chapter 17.18(4) and the Zoning District Map rezoning tax parcels 206-1152-99500,
206-1152-99510, & 206-1152-99800 from A-1 Agricultural Transition to I-4 Planned Industrial/Business.

1



2

12. NEW BUSINESS RESOLUTIONS
NBR-1…Approve Sauk County MIS Memorandum of Understanding for the Provision of Intergovernmental
Services to the City of Baraboo for Computer Network and Technical Services.

NBR-2…Approve the Purchasing Policy.

NBR-3…Approve the Technology Use Policy with the Sauk County MIS Department for the City’s computer
network and security systems.

NBR-4…Approve a Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan for CDBG Programs, which is a
requisite condition for the CDBG CLOSE Public Facility grant application the City is planning to submit.

13. NEW BUSINESS ORDINANCES
NBO-1…Amend Section 3.15, Procedure for Competitive Bidding, of the Baraboo Municipal Code to account for
the Common Council’s adoption of the City’s Purchasing Policy.

14. OTHER ACTIONABLE ITEMS

15. ADMINISTRATOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS

16. REPORTS, PETITIONS, AND CORRESPONDENCE - The City acknowledges receipt and distribution
of the following:

Reports:

 1st Qtr. 2019 Financial Reports;

 March 2019 Building Inspection

Minutes from the Following Meetings:
Copies of these meeting minutes are included in your packet:
Finance 3-26-19 BEDC 3-7-19
Ambulance Comm. & Ad-Hoc 1-23-19 BID 3-20-19

Copies of these meeting minutes are on file in the Clerk's office:
Library Building & Grounds, Friends 3-13-19, 3-19-19, 3-21-19, 3-29-19, 3-12-19
PFC 2-18-19, 2-20-19 Public Arts 2-22-18, 2-28-19
Airport 10-8-2018 CDA Board & Exec. 2-21-19
CDA Loan Review 1-30-19

Petitions and Correspondence Being Referred:
Thank You card from the family of Dave Deppe.

17. ADJOURNMENT (Voice Vote)
Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

For more information about the City of Baraboo, visit our website at www.cityofbaraboo.com

2



3

APRIL

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
31 1 2 3 4 5 6

CDA BEDC

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
Park & Rec Finance

Council

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
SCDC

PFC

Council
(Re- Organizational)

Library Board

Plan

BID

Ambulance

UW Campus Good Friday
City Offices
CLOSED

21 22 23 24 25 26 27
Finance

Council

Emergency Mgt.

Public Arts

28 29 30 1 2 3 4
Public Safety

i

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE - Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with
Disabilities Act who requires the meeting or materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format should
contact the City Clerk at 101 South Blvd., Baraboo, WI or phone (608) 355-2700 during regular business hours at
least 48 hours before the meeting so reasonable arrangements can be made to accommodate each request.

Agenda jointly prepared by D. Munz and B. Zeman Agenda posted on 04/05/2019

3



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #177

Council Chambers, Municipal Building, Baraboo, Wisconsin
Tuesday, March 26, 2019 – 7:00 p.m.

Mayor Palm called the regular meeting of Council to order.
Roll call was taken.
Council Members Present: Wedekind, Sloan, Petty, Ellington, Kierzek, Thurow
Council Members Absent: Kolb, Plautz, Alt
Others Present: Chief Schauf, Clerk Zeman, Adm. Geick, Attny. Truman, T. Pinion, C. Haggard,
Richard Pilsner, Tim Teelin, Matthew Balfanz, Joe Colossa, John Bare, members of the press and
others.

The Pledge of Allegiance was given.

Moved by Ellington, seconded by Petty to amend the March 12, 2019 minutes to include Ald.
Kierzek in attendance. Motion carried unanimously.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Sloan and carried to approve the agenda.

Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted.

PRESENTATION- The Mayor read the following proclamations declaring:
 April 2019 as Fair Housing Month and;
 April 2019 as Sexual Assault Awareness Month

PUBLIC HEARING – The Mayor announces that this is the published date and time to hear public
comment concerning:

 An Amendment to Chapter 17.18(4) and the Zoning District Map rezoning tax parcels 206-
1152-99500, 206-1152-99510, & 206-1152-99800 from A-1 Agricultural Transition to I-4
Planned Industrial/Business.

City Engineer T. Pinion explained that this property is located in the Southwest quadrant of the US
Hwy 12 freeway and Cty Hwy W, also known as South Boulevard. It includes 59 acres of property
running from Hwy W south to the City limits, directly west of Teel. The property owners attended
the Plan Commission meeting requesting that this property be rezoned to an I-4 Planned
Industrial/Business, which is consistent with all other property in that vicinity.

Richard Pilsner, Tim Teelin, and Matthew Balfanz do not wish to speak at this public hearing;
however, they would like to register in favor of this rezoning.

No one spoke and the Mayor closed the Public Hearing.

PUBLIC INVITED TO SPEAK – No one spoke.

MAYOR’S COMMENTS
 The Mayor congratulated Sam Kujak who is celebrating his 5th anniversary with the Parks

Department.
 The Spring Election is April 2, 2019. All City of Baraboo residents vote at the Baraboo

Civic Center, polls are open from 7:00am to 8:00pm.
 The premier showing of Discover Wisconsin will be at the Al Ringling Theatre on Monday,

April 8th at 7:00pm. 4



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #178

CONSENT AGENDA
Resolution No. 18-140

THAT the Accounts Payable, in the amount of $ 962,974.32 as recommended for payment by
the Finance/Personnel Committee, be allowed and ordered paid.

Resolution No. 18-141

That the following budget amendments are authorized:

o 4th Quarter, 2018 City-Wide and Water & Sewer Utilities’ Amendments

City of Baraboo

4th Quarter Budget Amendments

Supplemental Budget

Kuenzi Estate

Department Account Number Account Name
Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Recreation 830-53-49300-000 Fund Balance applied (1,500) (5,518) (7,018)

Recreation 830-53-55300-861-100 Facility Improvements - Tennis 1,335 5,518 6,853

To appropriate funds for tennis court utilizing fund balance

BID

BID 390-69-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied (25,583) (3,459) (29,042)
Community
Development 390-69-56700-300-972 Promotions 23,500 3,459 26,959

To appropriate funds from reserves for promotions over budget

Capital Equipment Fund

Parks 490-52-48300-000 Sale of Assets - (3,545) (3,545)

Recreation 490-53-55300-814-000 Equipment Purchases - 3,545 3,545

To appropriate funds for treadmill replacement

Alma Waite

Alma Waite 820-82-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied (1,880) (1,500) (3,380)

Cultural Expense 820-82-55190-720-000 Grants. Donations. Contribs 13,000 1,500 14,500

To appropriate funds for Tuscania Memorial utilizing fund balance

Liability Insurance

Finance 720-11-47340-000 Contributions from Sewer - (4,800) (4,800)

Finance 720-11-47350-000 Contributions from Water - (6,130) (6,130)

Finance 720-11-47360-000 Contributions from Stormwater - (2,420) (2,420)

Finance 720-11-47400-000 Contributions from Local Depts - (59,157) (59,157)

Finance 720-11-47500-000 Contributions from Comp Unit - (2,710) (2,710)

Insurance Premium 720-11-51491-510-000 Insurance - 75,217 75,217

To create budget for planned insurance expenditures

Unfunded Pension Liability

General Government 740-10-47400-000 Contributions from Local Depts - (18,900) (18,900)

General Government 740-10-47350-000 Contributions from Water - (980) (980)

General Government 740-10-47340-000 Contributions from Sewer - (1,195) (1,195)

Interest on Notes 740-10-58220-620-000 Interest (100) 21,075 20,975

To create budget for interest expense 5



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #179

Park Impact/Development

Parks 250-52-46842-000 Park Development - (4,307) (4,307)

Parks 250-52-55200-821-000 Land or Land Improvements 1,536 4,307 5,843

To create budget for land improvements

Kuenzi Estate

Recreation 830-53-49300-000 Fund Balance applied (5,518) (1,500) (7,018)

Recreation 830-53-55300-340-100 Operating - Tennis (1,500) 1,500 -

To create budget for tennis courts utilizing fund balance

Oschner Park House

Parks 890-52-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied (4,525) (4,852) (9,377)

Parks 890-52-48210-000 Rents and Leases - (200) (200)

Parks 890-52-48110-000 Interest on Investments - (28) (28)

Parks 890-52-55200-822-000 Building Improvements 4,525 4,600 9,125

Parks 890-52-55200-300-000 Operating Expense - 480 480

To create budget for building and operating expenses

TIF VI

General Government 360-10-41120-000 Tax Increments (282,731) (387,806) (670,537)

General Government 360-10-48110-000 Interest on Investments - (2,670) (2,670)

Principal on Bonds 360-10-58110-610-121 Principal on Bonds - 12A - 70,000 70,000

Principal on Bonds 360-10-58110-610-141 Principal on Bonds - 2014A - 60,000 60,000

Principal on Bonds 360-10-58110-610-161 Principal on Bonds - 16A - 225,000 225,000

Interest on Bonds 360-10-58210-620-121 Interest on Bonds - 2012A - 8,963 8,963

Interest on Bonds 360-10-58210-620-141 Interest on Bonds - 2014A - 10,238 10,238

Interest on Bonds 360-10-58210-620-161 Interest on Bonds - 2016A - 15,550 15,550

Paying Agent 360-10-58300-630-161 Issuance Costs_2016A - 75 75

Independent Auditing 360-11-51510-215-000 Professional Services 5,181 650 5,831

To create budget for planned TIF6 expenditures

General Fund

General Government 100-10-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied (580,753) (9,434) (590,187)

Alma Waite Annex 100-21-51620-822-000 Building Improvements - 9,434 9,434

To create budget for Alma Waite Building HVAC utilizing fund balance

General Fund

Street Department 100-31-48307-000 Sale of Recyclables (1,000) (3,993) (4,993)

Street Maintenance 100-31-53300-374-000 Gravel 25,000 3,993 28,993

To create budget for gravel utilizing sale of recyclables

General Fund

Recreation 100-53-46751-020 Recreation - Baseball (3,400) 170 (3,230)

Recreation 100-53-46751-030 Recreation - Basketball (1,900) 380 (1,520)

Recreation 100-53-46751-031 Recreation - Basketball Adult (2,800) 974 (1,826)

Recreation 100-53-46751-050 Recreation - Football (1,300) 106 (1,194)

Recreation 100-53-46751-075 Recreation - Mini Camps (3,000) 940 (2,060)

Recreation 100-53-46751-091 Recreation - Softball Adult (3,300) 223 (3,077)

Recreation 100-53-46751-140 Recreation - Tumbling (5,500) 510 (4,990)6



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #180

Recreation 100-53-46751-160 Recreation - Visual Arts (5,000) 830 (4,170)

Recreation 100-53-46751-170 Recreation - Zumba Kids (200) 200 -

Recreation 100-53-46751-180 Recreation - Track (1,150) 225 (925)

Recreation 100-53-46751-900 Uniforms (2,200) 450 (1,750)

Recreation 100-53-46752-000 Weight Room (14,500) 58 (14,442)

Recreation 100-53-46753-310 Vending Machines (1,200) 637 (563)

Recreation 100-53-55300-215-160 Prof Services - Visual Arts 4,110 (2,860) 1,250

Pool 100-53-55420-221-000 Water & Sewer 4,200 (771) 3,429

Pool 100-53-55420-222-000 Electricity 8,500 (1,407) 7,093

Pool 100-53-55420-223-000 Heat 4,423 (665) 3,758

To reduce expenditure budget for revenues that came in under budget

Capital Equipment Fund

General Government 490-10-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied (288,450) (52,375) (340,825)

Public Works 490-31-53240-814-000 Equipment Purchases - 52,375 52,375

To create budget for Crafco Tar Kettle utilizing fund balance

Urban Development

Engineering 440-30-42100-000
Public Improvements
Assessment - (20,790) (20,790)

New Sidewalk 440-52-56110-270-000 Special Services - 20,790 20,790

To create budget for dangerous tree removal

Library Segregated

Library 850-51-48110-000 Interest on Investments - (9,008) (9,008)

Library 850-51-55110-300-000 Operating Expense 21 8,251 8,272

Tfr to Library Seg /Bldg 850-51-59285-900-000 Cost Reallocation - 757 757

To create budget for planned expenditures

Library Building Fund

Library 851-51-48210-000 Rents and Leases - (40,395) (40,395)

Library 851-51-55110-215-000 Professional Services - 26,500 26,500

Library 851-51-55110-221-000 Water & Sewer - 379 379

Library 851-51-55110-222-000 Electricity - 3,255 3,255

Library 851-51-55110-223-000 Heat - 637 637

Library 851-51-55110-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 190 7,620 7,810

Library 851-51-55110-270-000 Speciall Services 4,579 331 4,910

Library 851-51-55110-340-000 Operating Supplies - 333 333

Library 851-51-55110-822-000 Building Improvements - 1,340 1,340

To create budget for planned expenditures

Library Segregated

Library 850-51-49294-000 Transfer fr Friends of Libr - (21) (21)

Library 850-51-55110-300-000 Operating Expense 8,251 21 8,272

To create budget for planned expenditures

Library Building Fund

Library 851-51-48110-000 Interest on Investments - (5,101) (5,101)

Library 851-51-55110-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 7,620 190 7,810

Library 851-51-55110-270-000 Speciall Services 331 4,579 4,9107



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #181

Library 851-51-55110-510-000 Insurance - 332 332

To create budget for planned expenditures

Public Safety Impact Fees

Fire 252-21-46843-000 Public Safety Development - (20,000) (20,000)

Fire 252-21-52200-215-000 Professional Services - 20,000 20,000

To create budget for RW Management Fire Department Study

Firefighters Retirement Fund

Fire 900-21-47400-000 Contributions from Local Depts - (12,000) (12,000)

Fire 900-21-48110-000 Interest on Investments - (1,805) (1,805)

Fire 900-21-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied - (3,769) (3,769)

Fire Protection 900-21-52200-300-000 Operating Expense - 17,574 17,574

To create budget for planned expenditures

Airport Capital Imprvmnt Fund

Airport 632-35-43220-000 Federal Transportation Grant - (1,957,012) (1,957,012)

Airport 632-35-53510-821-000 Land or Land Improvements 395,341 1,957,012 2,352,353

To create budget for federal grant award for land improvements

Stormwater Utility

Sewer Depreciation 950-36-40417-001 Utility Bond Proceeds - (22,584) (22,584)

Sewer Depreciation 950-36-40300-541-000 Amortization - 7,701 7,701

Sewer Long Term Debt 950-36-42700-620-161 Interest - 2016A 1,798 6,052 7,850

Sewer Long Term Debt 950-36-42700-630-000 Issuance Costs 65 8,831 8,896

To create budget for portion of new debt and interest

Economic Development Fund

General Government 560-10-48320-000 Sale of Property - (165,000) (165,000)
Community
Development 560-67-56700-880-000 New Development Distribution - 165,000 165,000

To create budget for Harrington Loan Receivable

Corson Square
Community
Development Authori 981-67-40601-000 CDA Equity applied - (56,292) (56,292)
Community
Development Authori 981-67-40340-100 CDA-Rent HUD (45,000) 2,015 (42,985)

CDA Administration 981-67-41000-215-001 Prof Serv-Auditing 2,500 1,426 3,926

CDA Administration 981-67-41000-215-002 Prof Serv-Legal 2,500 1,193 3,693

CDA Administration 981-67-41000-215-003 Prof Serv-Management Services 19,500 195 19,695

CDA Administration 981-67-41000-219-000 Accounting Services 500 4,273 4,773

CDA Administration 981-67-41000-220-000 Telephone 1,200 538 1,738

CDA Administration 981-67-41000-343-000 Postage 500 99 599

CDA Administration 981-67-41000-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 1,000 65 1,065

CDA Administration 981-67-41000-530-000 Rents and Leases - 1,607 1,607

CDA Utilities 981-67-43000-221-000 Water & Sewer 4,500 173 4,673

CDA Utilities 981-67-43000-225-000 Garbage 3,800 727 4,527

CDA Utilities 981-67-43000-226-000 Stormwater 750 413 1,163

CDA Ordinary Maint 981-67-44000-214-000 Caretaker Services - 10 10

CDA Ordinary Maint 981-67-44000-220-000 Telephone - 378 378
8



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #182

CDA Ordinary Maint 981-67-44000-281-000 Snow Removal & Mowing 3,500 541 4,041

CDA Ordinary Maint 981-67-44000-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 500 42 542

CDA Ordinary Maint 981-67-44000-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 1,500 1,332 2,832

CDA General Expense 981-67-45000-580-000 PILOT 1,280 12,001 13,281

CDA Property Additions 981-67-75000-822-000 Building Improvements 25,000 4,264 29,264

CDA Property Additions 981-67-75000-899-000 Contra-Contributed Capital (25,000) 25,000 -

To apply reserve for budget deficit

City Admin Building Fund
Community
Development Authori 982-67-40347-100 CDA Capital Lease Interest Rev - (300,787) (300,787)
Community
Development Authori 982-67-40361-000 CDA Interest Earnings - (26,258) (26,258)
Community
Development Authori 982-67-40363-000 CDA Premium Amortization - (141,402) (141,402)

CDA General Expense 982-67-45000-620-000 Interest - 410,697 410,697

CDA General Expense 982-67-45000-630-000 Issuance costs - 57,750 57,750

To create budget for interest and issuance cost amortization

ED Grant
Community
Development Authori 984-67-40347-000 CDA-Loan Interest Income (1,888) (1,432) (3,320)

CDA Administration 984-67-41000-215-002 Prof Serv-Legal 500 1,347 1,847

CDA Administration 984-67-41000-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense - 85 85

To create budget for planned expenditures

79 Revolving
Community
Development Authori 986-67-40601-000 CDA Equity applied - (84,000) (84,000)

CDA Property Additions 986-67-75000-880-000 New Development Distribution 5,000 84,000 89,000

To create budget for Countryside Loan

Capital Catalyst Fund
Community
Development Authori 989-67-40346-000 CDA-Loan Principal Payment - (1,076) (1,076)
Community
Development Authori 989-67-40347-000 CDA-Loan Interest Income - (1,048) (1,048)

CDA Administration 989-67-41000-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense - 124 124

CDA Property Additions 989-67-75000-880-000 New Development Distribution - 2,000 2,000

To create budget for Parker Loan Distribution

General Fund

Parks 100-52-48210-000 Rents and Leases (57,000) (4,415) (61,415)

Parks 100-52-46720-000 Parks (10,800) 629 (10,171)

Parks 100-52-46730-000 Dog Park Fees (5,700) 581 (5,119)

Parks 100-52-46753-330 Zoo Concessions (5,000) 6 (4,994)

Parks 100-52-55200-220-000 Telephone 640 1.00 641

Parks 100-52-55200-226-000 Stormwater 10,134 143.00 10,277

Parks 100-52-55200-321-000 License & Fees 38 1.00 39

Parks 100-52-55200-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 3,978 1.00 3,979

Zoo 100-52-55410-211-000 Veterinary Services 4,500 1,155.00 5,655

Zoo 100-52-55410-221-000 Water & Sewer 8,000 1,897.00 9,897

Zoo 100-52-55410-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 1,715 1.00 1,716
9



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #183

To create budget for planned expenditures

Lead LSL Funds

Lead LSL Revenue 261-37-43540-610 LSL Grant Funds - (84,509) (84,509)

Water Service 261-37-53700-120-000 Wages - 2,753 2,753

Water Service 261-37-53700-122-000 Overtime - 99 99

Water Service 261-37-53700-130-000 Social Security - 203 203

Water Service 261-37-53700-131-000 Retirement - 231 231

Water Service 261-37-53700-132-000 Health Insurance - 905 905

Water Service 261-37-53700-215-000 Professional Services - 5,251 5,251

Water Service 261-37-53700-238-000 R & M Service - Services - 75,067 75,067

To create budget for planned expenditures

TIF #9

General Government 309-10-41120-000 Tax Increments - (714) (714)

Urban Development 309-10-56600-120-000 Wages - 33 33

Urban Development 309-10-56600-130-000 Social Security - 3 3

Urban Development 309-10-56600-131-000 Retirement - 3 3

Independent Auditing 309-11-51510-215-000 Professional Services - 675 675

To create budget for planned expenditures

TIF VI

General Government 360-10-41120-000 Tax Increments (387,806) (282,731) (670,537)

Industrial Development 360-10-56800-110-000 Salaries - 108 108

Industrial Development 360-10-56800-130-000 Social Security - 9 9

Industrial Development 360-10-56800-131-000 Retirement - 9 9

Industrial Development 360-10-56800-132-000 Health Insurance - 4 4

Transfer to TIF 360-10-59238-900-000 Cost Reallocation - 277,420 277,420

Independent Auditing 360-11-51510-215-000 Professional Services 650 5,181 5,831

To create budget for planned expenditures

TIF #7

General Government 370-10-41330-000 Payment in lieu of Tax increme - (3,325) (3,325)

Industrial Development 370-10-56800-110-000 Salaries - 488 488

Industrial Development 370-10-56800-130-000 Social Security - 38 38

Industrial Development 370-10-56800-131-000 Retirement - 40 40

Interest on Advance 370-10-58290-620-000 Interest on Advance - 2,084 2,084

Interest on Advance 370-11-51510-215-000 Professional Services - 675 675

To create budget for planned expenditures

TIF #8

General Government 380-10-43582-620 PECFA - (304,335) (304,335)

General Government 380-10-49238-000 Transfer from TIF - (199,286) (199,286)

Urban Development 380-10-56600-110-000 Salaries - 1,809 1,809

Urban Development 380-10-56600-130-000 Social Security - 131 131

Urban Development 380-10-56600-131-000 Retirement - 146 146

Urban Development 380-10-56600-132-000 Health Insurance - 232 232

Urban Development 380-10-56600-215-000 Professional Services - 3,375 3,375

10



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #184

Urban Development 380-10-56600-226-000 Stormwater - 2,207 2,207

Urban Development 380-10-56600-270-000 Special Services - 473,098 473,098

Urban Development 380-10-56600-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense - 13,547 13,547

Urban Development 380-10-56600-510-000 Insurance - 92 92

Urban Development 380-10-56600-720-000 Grants. Donations. Contribs - 7,590 7,590

Interest on Advance 380-10-58290-620-000 Interest - 719 719

Independent Auditing 380-11-51510-215-000 Professional Services - 675 675

To create budget for planned expenditures

Liability Insurance

Finance 720-11-48140-000 Other Dividend Interest Inc - (3,638) (3,638)

Insurance Claims 720-11-51493-510-000 Insurance - 3,138 3,138
Public Works Insurance
Claims 720-31-51493-510-000 Insurance 974 500 1,474

To create budget for insurance claims

General Fund

General Government 100-10-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied (567,967) (22,220) (590,187)

Library 100-51-55110-110-000 Salaries 170,793 22,220 193,013

To create budget for employee separation benefits

General Fund

Police 100-20-49310-000 Fund Balance Applied-Desig (5,372) (163) (5,535)

Police Department 100-20-52110-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 15,330 163 15,493

To appropriate funds from reserve for bike expenditures

General Fund

Police 100-20-49310-000 Fund Balance Applied-Desig (5,068) (467) (5,535)

Police Department 100-20-52110-315-000 Crime Prevention Supplies 250 125 375

Police Department 100-20-52110-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 2,205 342 2,547

To appropriate funds for youth/donation expenses

General Fund

Fire 100-21-49310-000
Fund Balance
Applied_Donations (700) (2,776) (3,476)

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-340-000 Operating Supplies 7,110 766 7,876

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 13,561 597 14,158

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 1,167 724 1,891

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 10,775 196 10,971

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 2,746 493 3,239

To appropriate funds from fire donation account

General Fund

Street Department 100-31-46391-000 Sale of Garbage Carts (5,000) (971) (5,971)

Garbage & Refuse 100-31-53620-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase - 971 971

To appropriate additional reserve for sale of garbage carts

11



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #185

City of Baraboo

4th Quarter Budget Amendments

Budgetary Transfers

UW Campus

UW Campus 800-80-55600-215-000 Professional Services 15,000 (15,000) -

UW Campus 800-80-55600-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 15,000 (4,032) 10,968

UW Campus 800-80-55600-220-000 Telephone 1,080 112 1,192

UW Campus 800-80-55600-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment - 20 20

UW Campus 800-80-55600-280-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Facilities 3,309 5,600 8,909

UW Campus 800-80-55600-330-000 Travel - 300 300

UW Campus 800-80-55600-822-000 Building Improvements 132,982 13,000 145,982

To transfer funds for line items over budget

City Admin Building Fund

CDA Ordinary Maint 982-67-44000-814-000 Equipment 35,000 (24,000) 11,000

CDA Ordinary Maint 982-67-44000-392-000 Small Equipment 10,000 24,000 34,000

To transfer budget for snow blower & other equipment

General Fund

Finance 100-11-51500-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 16,013 (1,500) 14,513

Finance 100-11-51500-330-000 Travel 260 500 760

Finance 100-11-51500-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues - 1,000 1,000

To transfer budget for WGFOA trainings

General Fund

Pool 100-53-55420-280-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Facilities 8,980 (2,122) 6,858

Pool 100-53-55420-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 3,600 2,122 5,722

To transfer budget for pool repair

General Fund

ROW - Trees 100-52-53370-530-000 Rents and Leases 23,071 (3,427) 19,644

Parks 100-52-55200-377-000 Trees. Seed & Sod 1,500 (654) 846

Forestry 100-52-56110-377-000 Trees. Seed & Sod 9,000 4,081 13,081

To transfer budget for forestry fall tree plantings

Stormwater Utility

Recycling 100-31-53635-240-000 Repair & Maint Service-Vehicle 43,432 (1,000) 42,432

Sewer Street Cleaning 950-36-81000-340-000 Operating Supplies 7,000 (2,000) 5,000

Recycling 100-31-53635-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 7,076 1,000 8,076

Sewer Street Cleaning 950-36-81000-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 20,864 2,000 22,864

To transfer budget for brake parts & batteries

General Fund

Machinery & Equipment 100-31-53240-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 56,342 (1,500) 54,842

Garbage & Refuse 100-31-53620-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 5,502 1,500 7,002

To transfer budget for #83 refuse truck joystick control

General Fund

Garbage & Refuse 100-31-53620-340-000 Operating Supplies 2,000 (13) 1,98712



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #186

Garbage & Refuse 100-31-53620-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 6,989 13 7,002

To transfer budget for #83 refuse truck joystick control

Airport Capital Imprvmnt Fund

Airport 632-35-47300-100 Appropriations- City - (192,113) (192,113)

Airport 632-35-47300-200 Airport Appropriations-Owners (384,226) 192,113 (192,113)

To allocate revenue to proper account

General Fund

ROW - Trees 100-52-53370-530-000 Rents and Leases 20,694 (1,050) 19,644

Forestry 100-52-56110-215-000 Professional Services 10,129 1,050 11,179

To transfer budget for removing hazard tree from tree bank

General Fund

Machinery & Equipment 100-31-53240-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 54,874 (32) 54,842

Recycling 100-31-53635-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 8,044 32 8,076

To transfer budget for replacing #81 fan clutch

General Fund

City Services Facility 100-31-53270-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 3,845 (1,729) 2,116

City Services Facility 100-31-53270-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 4,180 1,729 5,909

To transfer budget for CSC scissor lift joystick

General Fund

Machinery & Equipment 100-31-53240-341-000 Tires 15,000 (1,621) 13,379

Recycling 100-31-53635-341-000 Tires 3,000 1,621 4,621

To transfer budget for #81/#83 replacement tires

General Fund

PW Operations 100-31-53230-346-000 Uniforms 2,000 (1,300) 700

PW Operations 100-31-53230-319-000 Safety 3,500 1,300 4,800

To transfer budget for HI-VIS safety gear

General Fund

Administration 100-14-51400-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 200 (50) 150

Administration 100-14-51400-346-000 Uniforms - 50 50

To transfer budget for uniform

General Fund

Finance 100-11-51500-330-000 Travel 800 (40) 760

Finance 100-11-51500-310-000 Office Supplies - 40 40

To transfer budget for office supplies

UW Campus

UW Campus 800-80-55600-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 50,026 (8,717) 41,309

UW Campus 800-80-55600-822-000 Building Improvements 137,265 8,717 145,982

To transfer budget for building improvements

General Fund

Civic Center 100-52-55130-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 2,134 (870) 1,264

Civic Center 100-52-55130-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 1,517 870 2,387

To transfer budget for gym floor finish 13



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #187

Stormwater Utility

Sewer Street Cleaning 950-36-81000-341-000 Tires 3,000 (1,000) 2,000

Sewer Street Cleaning 950-36-81000-340-000 Operating Supplies 8,000 (3,000) 5,000

Sewer Street Cleaning 950-36-81000-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 18,864 4,000 22,864

To transfer budget for #89 leaf vac parts

General Fund

Pool 100-53-55420-280-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Facilities 8,226 (1,368) 6,858

Pool 100-53-55420-340-000 Operating Supplies 2,536 1,368 3,904

To transfer budget for chase lounge chairs

General Fund

Parks 100-52-55200-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 1,562 (182) 1,380

Recreation 100-53-55300-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 1,189 (156) 1,033

Recreation 100-53-55300-340-171 Operating - Aerobics 364 288 652

Parks 100-52-55200-330-000 Travel 150 50 200

To transfer budget for Tai Chi books/Hardy Mileage

General Fund

Pool 100-53-55420-280-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Facilities 6,958 (100) 6,858

Pool 100-53-55420-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 5,622 100 5,722

To transfer budget for pump repairs

General Fund

Parks 100-52-55200-340-000 Operating Supplies 6,372 (185) 6,187

Parks 100-52-55200-343-000 Postage 500 185 685

To transfer budget for stamped envelopes

General Fund

Economic Development 100-15-56710-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 1,000 (777) 223

BEDC 100-67-56710-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues - 777 777

To transfer budget for Economic Development booklets

General Fund

Pool 100-53-55420-822-000 Building Improvements 8,333 (1,684) 6,649

Pool 100-53-55420-280-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Facilities 5,174 1,684 6,858

To transfer budget for pool ladder replacement

General Fund

Police Department 100-20-52110-814-000 Equipment Purchases 65,900 (1,000) 64,900

Data Processing 100-10-51450-814-000 Equipment Purchases 13,960 1,000 14,960

To transfer budget for V Center license & support

General Fund

Library 100-51-55110-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 13,783 (535) 13,248

Library 100-51-55110-311-000
Automation Software &
Supplies 7,935 (410) 7,525

Library 100-51-55110-328-000 Lib Mat - Audio Visual 17,284 (260) 17,024

Library 100-51-55110-324-000 Lib Mat-Juvenile 14,400 (62) 14,338

Library 100-51-55110-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 13,275 (27) 13,248

Library 100-51-55110-391-510
Library-Programming-
Children's 5,049 (45) 5,004

14



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #188

Library 100-51-55110-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 4,800 (236) 4,564

Library 100-51-55110-311-000
Automation Software &
Supplies 8,590 (1,065) 7,525

Library 100-51-55110-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 1,438 535 1,973

Library 100-51-55110-310-000 Office Supplies 1,325 410 1,735

Library 100-51-55110-323-000 Lib Mat-Adult Fiction 13,700 260 13,960

Library 100-51-55110-327-000 Lib Mat-Teen 4,993 62 5,055

Library 100-51-55110-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 3,750 27 3,777

Library 100-51-55110-391-511 Library-Programming-Teen 722 45 767

Library 100-51-55110-391-513 Library-Programming-Adult 1,975 236 2,211

Library 100-51-55110-530-000 Rents and Leases 5,050 1,065 6,115

To transfer budget for items over budget

General Fund

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 12,896 (240) 12,656

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-310-000 Office Supplies 1,526 (392) 1,134

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 2,607 632 3,239

To transfer budget for service awards

General Fund

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-270-000 Special Services 17,694 (3,900) 13,794

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-240-000 Repair & Maint Service-Vehicle 12,629 3,900 16,529

To transfer budget for squad #2 emergency repair

General Fund

Parks 100-52-55200-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 4,057 (78) 3,979

Civic Center 100-52-55130-220-000 Telephone 906 68 974

Pool 100-53-55420-220-000 Telephone 566 10 576

To transfer budget for Civic Center phone overage

General Fund

Parks 100-52-55200-340-000 Operating Supplies 6,523 (336) 6,187

Parks 100-52-55200-341-000 Tires 1,302 336 1,638

To transfer budget for tractor tires

General Fund

Parks 100-52-55200-340-000 Operating Supplies 6,721 (534) 6,187

Forestry 100-52-56110-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 4,758 534 5,292

To transfer budget for forestry equipment maintenance

General Fund

Parks 100-52-55200-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 4,099 (120) 3,979

Parks 100-52-55200-319-000 Safety 600 120 720

To transfer budget for safety boot purchase

General Fund

Zoo 100-52-55410-346-000 Uniforms 250 (140) 110

Zoo 100-52-55410-340-000 Operating Supplies 7,638 (338) 7,300

Zoo 100-52-55410-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 3,000 478 3,478

To transfer budget for zoo shirt purchase 15



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #189

General Fund

Zoo 100-52-55410-223-000 Heat 3,500 (806) 2,694

Zoo 100-52-55410-222-000 Electricity 8,818 806 9,624

To transfer budget for otter house electric

General Fund

Parks 100-52-55200-310-000 Office Supplies 734 (62) 672

Parks 100-52-55200-340-000 Operating Supplies 6,667 (480) 6,187

Parks 100-52-55200-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 1,318 62 1,380

Recreation 100-53-55300-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 553 480 1,033

To transfer budget for McKevitt conference

General Fund

Zoo 100-52-55410-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 5,800 (466) 5,334

Zoo 100-52-55410-280-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Facilities 10,589 466 11,055

To transfer budget for zoo fence repair

General Fund
Mapping & Engineering
Support 100-30-53100-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 1,000 (650) 350
Mapping & Engineering
Support 100-30-53100-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase - 650 650

To transfer budget for laser level

General Fund

Police Department 100-20-52110-814-000 Equipment Purchases 71,600 (6,700) 64,900

Data Processing 100-10-51450-814-000 Equipment Purchases 8,260 6,700 14,960

To transfer budget for server backup domain controller

Stormwater Utility
Sewer Mains
Maintenance 950-36-83100-423-000 Castings 16,963 (5,812) 11,151

Sewer Street Cleaning 950-36-81000-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 17,052 5,812 22,864

To transfer budget for #88 leaf vac clutch and other expenses

General Fund

Parks 100-52-55200-810-000 Vehicle Purchase 22,400 (1,000) 21,400

Zoo 100-52-55410-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 1,150 (300) 850

Zoo 100-52-55410-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 4,334 1,000 5,334

Zoo 100-52-55410-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 5,034 300 5,334

To transfer budget for owl exhibit repair

General Fund

Recreation 100-53-55300-220-000 Telephone 570 (152) 418

Parks 100-52-55200-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 5,303 (1,324) 3,979

Parks 100-52-55200-346-000 Uniforms 650 (516) 134

Zoo 100-52-55410-342-000 Animal Feed 22,500 (215) 22,285

Recreation 100-53-55300-215-075 Prof Services - Mini Camp 2,020 (258) 1,762

Recreation 100-53-55300-346-150
Uniforms-Adventure/Summer
Camp 300 (180) 120

Forestry 100-52-56110-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 402 (342) 60

Pool 100-53-55420-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 950 (438) 512

Civic Center 100-52-55130-220-000 Telephone 935 39 97416



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #190

Pool 100-53-55420-220-000 Telephone 481 95 576

Parks 100-52-55200-220-000 Telephone 601 40 641

Parks 100-52-55200-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 9,819 1,569 11,388

Civic Center 100-52-55130-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 24,413 249 24,662

Zoo 100-52-55410-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 1,501 215 1,716

Recreation 100-53-55300-340-171 Operating - Aerobics 439 213 652

Recreation 100-53-55300-340-000 Operating Supplies 100 45 145

Recreation 100-53-55300-346-030 Uniforms - Basketball 300 180 480

Forestry 100-52-56110-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 4,950 342 5,292

Pool 100-53-55420-345-000 Chemicals 8,501 438 8,939

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

UW Campus

UW Campus 800-80-55600-215-000 Professional Services 15,000 (15,000) -

UW Campus 800-80-55600-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 15,000 (4,032) 10,968

UW Campus 800-80-55600-220-000 Telephone 1,080 112 1,192

UW Campus 800-80-55600-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment - 20 20

UW Campus 800-80-55600-280-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Facilities 3,309 5,600 8,909

UW Campus 800-80-55600-330-000 Travel - 300 300

UW Campus 800-80-55600-822-000 Building Improvements 132,982 13,000 145,982

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

General Fund

Recreation 100-53-55300-310-000 Office Supplies 700 (17) 683

Recreation 100-53-55300-340-020 Operating - Baseball 250 (95) 155

Pool 100-53-55420-223-000 Heat 3,835 (77) 3,758

Pool 100-53-55420-822-000 Building Improvements 8,316 (1,667) 6,649

Recreation 100-53-55300-210-000 Publishing 3,300 45 3,345

Recreation 100-53-55300-215-171 Prof Services - Sr Fitness 3,400 803 4,203

Recreation 100-53-55300-270-000 Special Services 1,500 108 1,608

Recreation 100-53-55300-340-100 Operating - Tennis 50 16 66

Recreation 100-53-55300-340-150 Operating - Adventure Camp 398 261 659

Recreation 100-53-55300-340-160 Operating - Visual Arts 310 2 312

Recreation 100-53-55300-340-171 Operating - Aerobics 651 1 652

Recreation 100-53-55300-340-180 Operating - Track - 123 123

Pool 100-53-55420-215-231 Prof Services - Water Aerobics 1,400 399 1,799

Pool 100-53-55420-220-000 Telephone 575 1 576

Pool 100-53-55420-226-000 Stormwater 2,658 1 2,659

Pool 100-53-55420-345-000 Chemicals 8,938 1 8,939

Pool 100-53-55420-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense - 78 78

Winter Recreation 100-53-55440-223-000 Heat 200 17 217

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

Capital Projects

Parks 430-52-55200-821-000 Land or Land Improvements 400,000 (1,373) 398,627

Parks 430-52-55200-861-000 Facilities Improvements - 1,373 1,37317



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #191

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

Kuenzi Estate

Recreation 830-53-55300-340-100 Operating - Tennis 1,500 (1,500) -

Recreation 830-53-55300-720-000 Grants. Donations. Contribs - 165 165

Recreation 830-53-55300-861-100 Facility Improvements - Tennis 5,518 1,335 6,853

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

Park Segregated

Parks 870-52-55200-814-000 Equipment Purchases 4,250 (3,715) 535

Parks 870-52-55200-300-000 Operating Expense - 2,592 2,592

Parks 870-52-55200-861-000 Facilities Improvements 7,900 800 8,700

Zoo 870-52-55410-300-000 Operating Expense 2,700 323 3,023

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

General Fund

Library 100-51-55110-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 13,613 (365) 13,248

Library 100-51-55110-326-000 Lib Mat-Periodicals 5,635 (128) 5,507

Library 100-51-55110-330-000 Travel 2,000 (216) 1,784

Library 100-51-55110-391-510
Library-Programming-
Children's 5,485 (481) 5,004

Library 100-51-55110-220-000 Telephone 1,100 8 1,108

Library 100-51-55110-221-000 Water & Sewer 780 356 1,136

Library 100-51-55110-226-000 Stormwater 384 1 385

Library 100-51-55110-327-000 Lib Mat-Teen 4,662 393 5,055

Library 100-51-55110-328-000 Lib Mat - Audio Visual 16,896 128 17,024

Library 100-51-55110-330-500 Travel - Programming - 216 216

Library 100-51-55110-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 3,727 50 3,777

Library 100-51-55110-391-511 Library-Programming-Teen 765 2 767

Library 100-51-55110-391-512 Library-Programming-Multi-age - 11 11

Library 100-51-55110-391-513 Library-Programming-Adult 2,186 25 2,211

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

General Fund

Police Department 100-20-52110-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 24,550 (9,057) 15,493

Departmental Services 100-20-52120-346-000 Uniforms 3,600 (67) 3,533

Records & Support 100-20-52130-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 1,500 (588) 912

Canine Unit 100-20-52140-340-000 Operating Supplies 500 (500) -

Canine Unit 100-20-52140-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 500 (392) 108

Police Department 100-20-52110-215-000 Professional Services 3,000 252 3,252

Police Department 100-20-52110-220-000 Telephone 9,000 2,079 11,079

Police Department 100-20-52110-346-000 Uniforms 15,000 170 15,170

Records & Support 100-20-52130-310-000 Office Supplies 4,000 467 4,467

Records & Support 100-20-52130-346-000 Uniforms 1,985 36 2,021

Police Department 100-20-52110-330-000 Travel - 17 17

Police Department 100-20-52110-392-610 Small Equipment-Ballistic Vest - 6,539 6,539

Departmental Services 100-20-52120-270-000 Special Services 1,000 67 1,067

Records & Support 100-20-52130-346-000 Uniforms 1,936 85 2,021

18



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #192

Canine Unit 100-20-52140-211-000 Veterinary Services 200 892 1,092

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

General Fund

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-220-000 Telephone 2,205 (153) 2,052

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-510-000 Insurance 10,491 153 10,644

To transfer funds for insurance

Capital Projects

New Streets - Aidable 430-30-57330-821-000 Land or Land Improvements 2,283,328 (7,030) 2,276,298

New Streets - Aidable 430-30-57330-215-000 Professional Services - 3,620 3,620

New Streets - Aidable 430-30-57330-270-000 Special Services - 3,410 3,410

To transfers funds for services being over budget

Stormwater Utility

Sewer Street Cleaning 950-36-81000-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 7,000 (52) 6,948

Sewer Mains
Maintenance 950-36-83100-340-000 Operating Supplies 2,500 (950) 1,550
Sewer Mains
Maintenance 950-36-83100-422-000 Pipe 3,000 (1,963) 1,037
Sewer Billing and
Collection 950-36-84000-343-000 Postage 6,075 (577) 5,498
Sewer
Administration/General 950-36-85000-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 2,500 (22) 2,478

Sewer Street Cleaning 950-36-81000-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 22,812 52 22,864
Sewer Mains
Maintenance 950-36-83100-250-000

Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 500 525 1,025

Sewer Mains
Maintenance 950-36-83100-270-000 Special Services - 425 425
Sewer Mains
Maintenance 950-36-83100-423-000 Castings 9,188 1,963 11,151
Sewer Billing and
Collection 950-36-84000-530-000 Rents and Leases 8,086 577 8,663
Sewer
Administration/General 950-36-85000-231-000 Digger's Hotline 900 22 922

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

Donahue Terrace

CDA General Expense 980-67-45000-610-900 Principal - Contra expense - (30,950) (30,950)

CDA Administration 980-67-41000-215-001 Prof Serv-Auditing 500 3,426 3,926

CDA Administration 980-67-41000-215-003 Prof Serv-Management Services 19,500 195 19,695

CDA Administration 980-67-41000-219-000 Accounting Services 500 3,506 4,006

CDA Administration 980-67-41000-343-000 Postage 600 15 615

CDA Administration 980-67-41000-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 750 345 1,095

CDA Administration 980-67-41000-530-000 Rents and Leases - 1,607 1,607

CDA Utilities 980-67-43000-221-000 Water & Sewer 6,500 422 6,922

CDA Utilities 980-67-43000-222-000 Electricity 50,000 5,096 55,096

CDA Utilities 980-67-43000-223-000 Heat 7,500 2,116 9,616

CDA Utilities 980-67-43000-224-000 Television 5,800 2,111 7,911

CDA Utilities 980-67-43000-225-000 Garbage 4,000 679 4,679

CDA Utilities 980-67-43000-226-000 Stormwater 400 186 586

CDA Ordinary Maint 980-67-44000-220-000 Telephone - 641 641

CDA Ordinary Maint 980-67-44000-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 35,000 2,372 37,372

19



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #193

CDA Ordinary Maint 980-67-44000-281-000 Snow Removal & Mowing 2,800 777 3,577

CDA Ordinary Maint 980-67-44000-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 35,000 6,905 41,905

CDA General Expense 980-67-45000-510-000 Insurance 7,750 551 8,301

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

Friends of the Library

Library 940-51-55110-390-001 Discretionary 10,000 (566) 9,434

Library 940-51-55110-225-000 Waste/Recycle Bins 3,555 1 3,556

Library 940-51-55110-300-000 Books Sale Supplies 250 565 815

To transfer funds for books being over budget

City Admin Building Fund

CDA Property Additions 982-67-75000-899-000 Contra-Contributed Capital - (2,316,209) (2,316,209)

CDA Administration 982-67-41000-215-000 Professional Services - 28,760 28,760

CDA Administration 982-67-41000-310-000 Office Supplies - 5,000 5,000

CDA Administration 982-67-41000-343-000 Postage - 25 25

CDA Administration 982-67-41000-390-000 Other supplies & expense - 67 67

CDA Utilities 982-67-43000-222-000 Electricity - 12,565 12,565

CDA General Expense 982-67-45000-510-000 Insurance - 7,632 7,632

CDA Property Additions 982-67-75000-215-000 Professional Services - 23,332 23,332

CDA Property Additions 982-67-75000-814-000 Equipment purchases - 825,315 825,315

CDA Property Additions 982-67-75000-822-000 Building Improvements - 1,413,513 1,413,513

To transfer funds for building improvements

CDBG

CDA Administration 983-67-41000-215-002 Prof Serv-Legal 5,000 (1,347) 3,653

CDA Administration 983-67-41000-530-000 Rents and Leases - 1,347 1,347

To transfer funds for chargeback from City

79 Revolving

CDA Administration 986-67-41000-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 5,000 (5,000) -

CDA Property Additions 986-67-75000-880-000 New Development Distribution 84,000 5,000 89,000

To transfer funds for Countryside loan

TIF Incentive Fund

CDA Administration 988-67-41000-215-000 Professional Services 500 (30) 470

CDA Administration 988-67-41000-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense - 30 30

To transfer funds for supplies being over budget

General Fund

ROW - Trees 100-52-53370-377-000 Trees, Seed, Sod 6,073 (1,598) 4,475

Civic Center 100-52-55130-222-000 Electricity 19,000 (496) 18,504

Civic Center 100-52-55130-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 2,630 (1,366) 1,264

Civic Center 100-52-55130-310-000 Office Supplies 600 (87) 513

Civic Center 100-52-55130-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 350 (350) -

Parks 100-52-55200-222-000 Electricity 11,000 (1,599) 9,401

Parks 100-52-55200-240-000 Repair & Maint Service-Vehicle 3,000 (2,105) 895

Parks 100-52-55200-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 18,696 (321) 18,375

Parks 100-52-55200-310-000 Office Supplies 838 (166) 67220



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #194

Parks 100-52-55200-340-000 Operating Supplies 6,557 (370) 6,187

Parks 100-52-55200-345-000 Chemicals 4,285 (327) 3,958

Parks 100-52-55200-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 1,000 (516) 484

Parks 100-52-55200-530-000 Rents and Leases 1,057 (403) 654

Forestry 100-52-56110-215-000 Professional Services 11,550 (371) 11,179

Forestry 100-52-56110-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 558 (498) 60

ROW - Trees 100-52-53370-530-000 Rents and Leases 17,523 2,121 19,644

Civic Center 100-52-55130-223-000 Heat 10,000 776 10,776

Civic Center 100-52-55130-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 24,661 1 24,662

Civic Center 100-52-55130-340-000 Operating Supplies 8,000 167 8,167

Civic Center 100-52-55130-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 2,370 17 2,387

Parks 100-52-55200-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 11,367 21 11,388

Parks 100-52-55200-280-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Facilities 19,073 4,503 23,576

Parks 100-52-55200-341-000 Tires 1,336 302 1,638

Parks 100-52-55200-348-000 Gas. Diesel. Oil. Grease 10,500 732 11,232

Parks 100-52-55200-814-000 Equipment Purchases 12,000 91 12,091

Zoo 100-52-55410-220-000 Telephone 200 3 203

Zoo 100-52-55410-222-000 Electricity 8,006 1,618 9,624

Zoo 100-52-55410-280-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Facilities 11,007 48 11,055

Zoo 100-52-55410-340-000 Operating Supplies 7,162 138 7,300

Forestry 100-52-56110-340-000 Operating Supplies 1,173 35 1,208

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

General Fund

PW Operations 100-31-53230-330-000 Travel 3,000 (470) 2,530

City Services Facility 100-31-53270-319-000 Safety 500 (49) 451

City Services Facility 100-31-53270-340-000 Operating Supplies 16,000 (5,881) 10,119

Street Maintenance 100-31-53300-270-000 Special Services 16,000 (458) 15,542

Trees and Brush 100-31-53370-340-000 Operating Supplies 500 (192) 308

Street Lighting 100-31-53420-222-000 Electricity 130,000 (9,314) 120,686

Parking Lots 100-31-53450-410-000 Concrete & Clay Materials 2,959 (77) 2,882

PW Operations 100-31-53230-210-000 Publishing 400 346 746

PW Operations 100-31-53230-220-000 Telephone 550 124 674

City Services Facility 100-31-53270-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment 1,271 845 2,116

City Services Facility 100-31-53270-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 14,000 2,623 16,623

City Services Facility 100-31-53270-348-000 Gas. Diesel. Oil. Grease 1,000 539 1,539

City Services Facility 100-31-53270-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 5,229 680 5,909

City Services Facility 100-31-53270-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 15,000 1,243 16,243

Street Maintenance 100-31-53300-410-000 Concrete & Clay Materials 4,000 418 4,418

Street Maintenance 100-31-53300-530-000 Rents and Leases - 40 40

Trees and Brush 100-31-53370-250-000
Repair & Maint Serv-
Equipment - 192 192

Parking Lots 100-31-53450-226-000 Stormwater 1,900 77 1,977

Garbage & Refuse 100-31-53620-348-000 Gas. Diesel. Oil. Grease 17,000 2,482 19,482

Garbage & Refuse 100-31-53620-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 5,513 1,489 7,002
21



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #195

Recycling 100-31-53635-240-000 Repair & Maint Service-Vehicle 41,601 831 42,432

Recycling 100-31-53635-290-000 Other Contracted Services 32,000 2,243 34,243

Recycling 100-31-53635-348-000 Gas. Diesel. Oil. Grease 11,500 1,225 12,725

Recycling 100-31-53635-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 7,032 1,044 8,076

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

General Fund

Council 100-10-51100-220-000 Telephone 160 (95) 65

Council 100-10-51100-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 1,500 (1,395) 105

Council 100-10-51100-330-000 Travel 200 (200) -

Mayor 100-10-51410-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 1,440 (81) 1,359

Data Processing 100-10-51450-340-000 Operating Supplies 1,000 (460) 540
Celebrations &
Entertainment 100-10-55310-270-000 Special Services 300 (149) 151

Council 100-10-51100-210-000 Publishing 1,500 1,090 2,590

Council 100-10-51100-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 1,200 450 1,650

Council 100-10-51100-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase - 150 150

Mayor 100-10-51410-220-000 Telephone 400 55 455

Mayor 100-10-51410-310-000 Office Supplies 300 26 326

Data Processing 100-10-51450-814-000 Equipment Purchases 14,500 460 14,960
Celebrations &
Entertainment 100-10-55310-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense 950 149 1,099

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

General Fund

Elections 100-11-51440-340-000 Operating Supplies 2,760 (30) 2,730

Assessment 100-11-51530-215-000 Professional Services 37,960 (50) 37,910

PS/Admin Building 100-11-51640-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 8,503 (1,824) 6,679

Elections 100-11-51440-210-000 Publishing 300 30 330

Assessment 100-11-51530-310-000 Office Supplies 40 38 78

Assessment 100-11-51530-343-000 Postage - 12 12

PS/Admin Building 100-11-51640-340-000 Operating Supplies 4,750 1,824 6,574

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

Taxi Grant

Taxi Transportation 230-11-53500-290-000 Other Contracted Services 518,948 (505) 518,443

Taxi Transportation 230-11-53500-340-000 Operating Supplies - 5 5

Taxi Transportation 230-11-53500-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense - 500 500

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages

UW Campus

UW Campus 800-80-55600-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 64,883 (23,574) 41,309

UW Campus 800-80-55600-280-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Facilities 8,600 309 8,909

UW Campus 800-80-55600-822-000 Building Improvements 122,717 23,265 145,982

To transfer funds for project expenses

Unfunded Pension Liability

Interest on Notes 740-10-58220-620-000 Interest 21,075 (100) 20,975

Interest on Notes 740-10-58300-630-180 Issuance - 100 100

To transfer budget for yearend budget overages 22



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #196

General Fund

City Attorney 100-13-51300-320-000 Publications. Training. Dues 5,080 (499) 4,581

City Attorney 100-13-51300-215-000 Professional Services 500 499 999

To transfer funds for professional services

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Petty and carried that the Consent Agenda be approved-6
ayes.

NEW BUSINESS
Resolutions:

Resolution No. 18-142
WHEREAS, Federal monies are available under the Wisconsin CommunityDevelopment Block

Grant (CDBG) program, administered bythe State of Wisconsin, Department of Administration, Division
of Energy, Housing and Community Resources (DEHCR), for the improvement of public facilities
(CDBG-PF); and

WHEREAS, after public meeting and due consideration, the Citizen Participation Committee
has recommended that an application be submitted to the State of Wisconsin for the following
project:

The Reconstruction of Lake Street from Walnut Street to Springbrook Drive

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Common Council to approve the preparation and filing of
an application for the City to receive funds from this program; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has reviewed the need for the proposed projects and the
benefits to be gained therefrom;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Baraboo
does approve and authorize the preparation and filing of an application for the above-named project;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign all necessary
documents on behalf of the City; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the authority is hereby granted to the Baraboo
Community Development Authority Citizen Participation Committee to take the necessary steps to
prepare and file the application for funds under this program in accordance with this resolution.

Moved by Sloan, seconded by Petty and carried that Resolution No. 18-142 be approved-6
ayes.

Resolution No. 18-143
WHEREAS, the City accept the proposal from United Systems Associates, LLC to Monitor

the Delta Controls, provide preventative maintenance and offsite support on said system; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that a budget amendment for $2,770 be made to
increase expenditures for the Baraboo Municipal Building.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Petty and carried that Resolution No. 18-143 be
approved-6 ayes. 23



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #197

Resolution No. 18-144
To authorize the City Administrator to submit a grant application to WEDC on behalf of the

Al Ringling Brewery project.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Sloan and carried that Resolution No. 18-44 be approved-
6 ayes.

Ordinances:
Moved by Ellington, seconded by Petty and carried unanimously to approve the 1st reading of
Ordinance No. 2516 amending §17.18(4)(a) and the Zoning District Map rezoning tax parcels 206-
1152-99500, 206-1152-99510, & 206-1152-99800 from A-1 Agricultural Transition to I-4 Planned
Industrial/Business.

THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARABOO, WISCONSIN, DO ORDAIN AS
FOLLOWS:

1. Section 17.18(4)(a), Ordinances is hereby revised to reflect the following changes: Tax Parcels
206-1152-99500, 206-1152-99510, & 206-1152-99800, the following described 53.7 acres of
land located immediately west of USH 12 and immediately south of CTH W (South Blvd) .

Being the easterly 60 rods of the SE ¼ of Section 4, T11N, R6E except Sauk County CSM No.
5245 and the USH 12 right-of-way.

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as provided by law.

ADMINISTRATOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS – None.

REPORTS and MINUTES
The City officially acknowledges receipt and distribution of the following:
Monthly Reports for February 2019: Treasurer, Fire Dept., and Building Inspection

Minutes from the Following Meetings –

Finance/Personnel Committee – Dennis Thurow Committee Room, #305 March 12, 2019
Members Present: Petty, Thurow, Sloan
Absent: none
Others Present: Mayor Palm, E. Geick, E. Truman, T. Pinion, B. Zeman, M. Hardy, C. Haggard, W. Peterson

Call to Order –Ald. Petty called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. noting compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Moved by
Sloan, seconded by Thurow to approve the minutes of February 26, 2019. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to approve the
agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Action Items
a) Accounts Payable – Moved by Sloan seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council approval of the accounts payable

for $673,295.06. Motion carried unanimously.
b) Award contract for 2019 Emerald Ash Borer Treatments to TruGreen Commercial for $10,339 – M. Hardy noted

that this is the 6th year we are treating Emerald Ash Borer. Bid requests were sent out to 6 firms, 3 of them responded.
The lowest bid was received by TruGreen Commercial. This would be the 3rd year TruGreen Commercial has been
awarded the bid and we haven’t had any problems with them in past years. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and
carried unanimously to recommend to Council for action.

c) Approve using $10,000 from Park Segregated Fund (Zoo Donations) to install a Natural Water Filtration System
at the New Beaver Exhibit – M. Hardy explained that this filtration system would be filtered through the roots of the
different plants. It’s a natural, environmentally friendly system. It also would reduce the need to do dump and fill
saving staff hours. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried unanimously to recommend to Council for
action. 24



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #198

d) Approve transferring $2,184 from funds remaining from the budgeted skidsteer purchase to purchase new
Trailer – This trailer will fit the new skidsteer and the old trailer will be sold at auction. Moved by Sloan, seconded by
Thurow and carried unanimously to recommend to Council for action.

e) Approve using $3,710 from Parks Segregated Account (Steinhorst Park donations) to install Timed Magnetic
Locks on the Steinhorst Shelter Restrooms – These are the same locks that are currently used along the Riverwalk,
Maxwell-Potter, Statz Park, and Mary Rountree. There have been quite a few requests about getting more public
access for these restrooms. We’ve had success with the locks along the Riverwalk. Moved by Sloan, seconded by
Thurow and carried unanimously to recommend to Council for action.

f) Approve Proposals for Engineering Services for Oak Street Booster Station Electrical Upgrade in the amount of
$20,500 – W. Peterson explained that in 2020 we are looking at doing an electrical upgrade to the Oak Street Booster
Station. In order to accomplish this we need some engineering services. Requests for proposals were sent to 5
different firms, we received 4 back. After reviewing cost and quality, he is requesting that we hire Donohue &
Associates. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried unanimously to recommend to Council for action.

g) Approve Proposals for Engineering Services for Mill Race Water Mains and Sanitary Sewer River Crossing
Replacements – W. Peterson explained that in the 1930’s we ran a water and sewer line underneath the river right by
the old pump station. Because this is an old, single barrel pipe, we’ve had some issues with it backing up. All of the
new crossings are dual-barrel crossings. Right next to the sewer line is an old water main and we are looking at
replacing both of them. This is a 2020 project but we would like to do the engineering and bidding in 2019. Requests
for proposals were sent to 5 different firms, we received 2 back. MSA had several projects where they have already
done river crossing. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried unanimously to recommend to Council for
action.

h) Approve agreements for 2019 Public Works Contracts – T. Pinion explained that these are the annual bid packages.
This year includes a Mill Race pedestrian path. Low bids received are as follows:
 D.L. Gasser $86,320 – Proposal #1 – Asphaltic Paving

 D.L. Gasser $40,400 – Proposal #2 – Asphalt Pavement Materials

 ABBS Paving $33,070 – Proposal #3 – Asphaltic Patching

 Concrete Service Company $73,100 – Proposal #4 – Curb and gutter & sidewalk repair

 Yahara Materials $ 5,900 – Proposal #5 – Crushed Aggregate Base Course

 Gerke Excavating $35,980 – Proposal #6 – Concrete and Asphalt Crushing

 D.L. Gasser $16,576.80– Proposal #7 – Grading/Paving (Mill Race Path)

Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried unanimously to recommend to Council for action.
i) Approve Contract with Sunrise Property Care for Noxious Weed and Rank Growth Mowing for 2019

Only one bid received this year. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried unanimously to recommend to
Council for action.

j) Approve Contract with Top 2 Bottom for STH 136 Median Mowing for 2019 – T. Pinion noted that we received 2
bids this year with Top 2 Bottom being the low bidder. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried
unanimously to recommend to Council for action.

k) Approve Contract with MSA Professional Services for the Design of the 2019 Street Improvement Projects at a
cost of no more than $59,000 – T. Pinion explained that because these projects are as defined as the nature of the
projects, they invited 4 different consultants to submit proposals; 3 of them submitted. It was primarily a review based
on quality based selection, who do we think would do the best job and then asked them for an estimated cost for not to
exceed contract. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried unanimously to recommend to Council for action.

Informational Items
a) City Attorney’s report on insurance claims

o Atty. Truman stated that we did receive an insurance claim. The claim was for an alleged tire puncture, caused by a
pothole on 8th Ave. State law changed around 2012 lessening the liability on municipalities for tire damage caused
by streets and highways. It’s a negligent standard meaning that we would have to of had some kind of prior
knowledge and we failed to repair the street. The City is currently repairing potholes around the City as we become
aware of them but because the City had no knowledge of this pothole, this claim is denied.

Adjournment – Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried to adjourn at 6:22pm.

Minutes of the Public Safety Committee Meeting March 4, 2019

Members Present: Phil Wedekind, Tom Kolb, and Mike Plautz. Others Present: Tom Pinion, Mayor Palm, Chief M. Schauf,
Fire Chief K. Stieve, Wade Peterson, and Tony Gilman.

Call to Order - Committee Chairman Phil Wedekind called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. at Baraboo City
Service Center. Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to approve the agenda
as posted. Motion carried unanimously. It was moved by Plautz, seconded by Kolb to approve the minutes of the February 4, 2019
meeting. Motion carried unanimously.

New Business 25



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #199

a. Consideration of Proposed Policy that Prohibits the Use of Excessive Force and the Barring of Entrances/Exits for
Non-Violent Civil Rights Demonstration in accordance with the CDBG CLOSE Public Facilities Grant Application
program requirements – Engineer Pinion presented the background on this matter. He said that one of the requisite
conditions of this Grant is the City have a policy on the use of force. He said the Police Department, as part of their
WILEAG Accreditation, already have policies related to this, and they have been sent to the DOA, and they indicated that
they are good; however, they are missing one piece. The DOA has indicated that the City should adopt their model
resolution, there would be no questions asked. Pinion said that Chief Schauf has reviewed the resolution and has no
objection. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to send on to City Council with a positive recommendation. Motion
carried unanimously.

b. Review and Approve Bids for 2019 Public Works Projects – Pinion said this is the annual PW bids solicited. He said
that there were seven proposals and it is staff recommendation to award them to the low respective bidders. He said the first
six are the same every year, and Proposal 7 if for a Bike Path through the Park Department. Kolb moved to accept the low
bid on all seven proposals. Plautz seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

c. Consideration of Proposals for State Road 136 Median Mowing – Pinion said that Top 2 Bottom is the same price as
last year, and Sunrise Properties bumped their bid price a little. He said that Top 2 Bottom has done a decent job, and have
done it the last three or four years. It was moved by Plautz, seconded by Kolb to accept the low bid for State Road 136
Median Mowing. Motion carried unanimously.

d. Consideration of Proposals for Noxious Weed and Rank Growth Mowing – Pinion said that Sunrise Properties was the
only bid received. Kolb moved to accept Sunrise Property Care for Rank Growth Mowing. Plautz seconded. Motion carried
unanimously.

e. Consideration of Proposals for Concrete Grinding – Pinion said he receive three bid. He said that Safe Step has
historically been the high bidder, Hard Rock Concrete Cutter is new this year, and Asti has been the perennial low bidder on
this job, and do a very good job. Plautz moved to accept the low bidder of Asti Sawing for the Concrete Grinding. Kolb
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

f. Consideration of Proposals for Concrete Leveling – Pinion said that this is not an each and every year; however, this
year there is some to be done. He said that a defined square footage of what needs to be done was given, so the City was
looking for a placeholder. However, the bidder need more definite number so they could do an estimate on actual quantity.
Pinion said that there is no action necessary because there were no bids; however, when the final quantity is determined,
bids will be solicited and it was come back to the Committee in the future.

g. Consideration of Proposals for Engineering Design Services for 2019 Street Improvement Projects – Pinon said that
four proposals were submitted and staff has reviewed them. He said that this is a time and material, not to exceed proposal,
and a best estimate on their part based on the scope of services put together. Three of the four people invited did submit
proposals, which was summarized in the packet. He said that the City rates companies on a scale of 1 to 3, to get some
relative comparison of firm to firm. He said as far as total points, MSA ranks on the top because of some of their historic
work in the City with the Stormwater Utility. He said MSA also recognizes the aggressive schedule, and they are willing to
put two survey crews to get it done in a more timely and efficient manner. Pinion said that estimates are close, and the hours
are there. Pinion said, with the Committee’s permission, staff would negotiate a final price with MSA on a time and
material, not to exceed contract. He said the he expects for the final number to be below the $59,000. Kolb asked if the City
can justify going with MSA as opposed to the low bidder, Vierbicher. Pinion said that it really isn’t a low bid, this was a
time and material, not to exceed, give the City their estimated costs, and hours. Wedekind asked if this was just for
Washington, and Pinion answered that this is for all three projects, Lake Street, Washington Avenue, and the mill and
overlay on Broadway. Pinion said that he is looking for bid results in May. Kolb moved Wedekind asked questions
regarding the Washington Avenue storm sewer. Pinion said that a 60-inch pipe is feeding in to it on the lower end. He said it
goes through the big hill and right down to the river. He said that pipe has sufficient capacity; however, upstream is a little
hamstrung. He said at the time there are two parallel smaller diameter pipes, and what he is expecting, the City will have the
option to replace those with a much larger one within the street profile. He did say one of the challenges may be conflicts
with the sewer and water laterals. He said he thinks the better option would be a third pipe, much larger diameter east of the
sidewalk on the fairground property. He said this would require an easement from the fairgrounds; however, previous
discussion were favorable. He said this would be the most inexpensive construction, because it is in a greenfield, not with
curb and gutter. It was moved by Kolb to allow staff to negotiate a contract for engineering design services for the 2019
Street Improvement Projects. Plautz seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

h. Consideration of Proposals for Engineering Services for Oak Street Booster Station Electrical Upgrade – Wade
Peterson said request for proposal were sent out to five firms and four responses were received. It was Peterson’s
recommendation to use Donahue and Associates for the Electrical Upgrade. Peterson said that this fills the red and white
tower. It was moved by Kolb to approve the low bidder, Donohue & Associates for Oak Street Booster Station Electrical
Upgrade. Plautz seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

i. Consideration of Proposals for Engineering Services for Mill Race Water Main and Sanitary Sewer River Crossing
Replacements – Peterson said that this crossing is directly south from the old pumphouse. He said that this crossing is a

26



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #200

1930s version, single barrel. He said everything that the City has now on the sewer side in all dual barrel crossings. Kolb
asked the purpose of duel versus single. Peterson said that with a single barrel when it begins to back up, there are no
options; therefore, it is more for a safety factor. Plautz asked the process of putting in the crossing. Peterson said that the
local contractors thinks the ground will be suitable for a directional bore. He said that a Geo-Tech firm will be brought in to
do borings to verify that this is the best option. Peterson said that five requests for proposals were sent and two were
received, one form MSA and the other being Cedar Corp. He said that there was $150.00 difference. He said that the most
significant difference was that MSA had quite a bit of experience with doing siphons, and river crossings, where Cedar
Corp. has some directional bores, but nothing listed for doing a siphon type project. It was moved by Plautz, seconded by
Kolb to accept the proposal from MSA for the Mill Race Water Main and Sanitary Sewer River Crossing project. Motion
carried unanimously.

j. Consideration of proposed Application for a 2019 Urban Non-Point Source Planning Grant to update the City’s 2007
Water Quality Plan – Pinion said two years ago an application was submitted for the same grant program, the demand
exceeded the supply of fund; therefore, the City did not get funded. He said the City is a MS4 community, so the four Ss, it
is Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System. He said it is communities within the Wisconsin River Basin that have
populations greater than 10,000 people, the City is one of 13 MS4 communities in the Wisconsin River Basin. The DNR
worked with the EPA to establish total maximum daily limits (TMDL), for phosphorus, in the entire Wisconsin River Water
Shed for MS4 communities, and then they allocate what can be done. He said the applications have been submitted to the
EPA and are confident they will be approved, but updated the City’s Stormwater Quality Plan to address those specific
goals to comply with the impending TDMLs, it is budgeted to do that this year. He feels that it is worth throwing the
application at them, since there were already 30 done two years ago, the City stands a better chance. He said this would be
for planning done in 2020. He said that if this were successful it would save about 40% of the cost of planning, which is
approximately an $80,000 project. It was moved by Plautz, seconded by Kolb to approve the submission of the Application
for a 2019 Urban Non-Point Source Planning Grant as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

k. Review and approval of monthly Billing Adjustments/Credits for Sewer and Water Customers for January and
February 2019 – It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to approve the monthly Billing Adjustments/Credits for Sewer
and Water Customers for January and February, 2019 as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

Reports
a. Utility Superintendent’s Report – Peterson said the Department has been busy with water mains breaks. Peterson said

that the department keeps good inventory of parts to be able to repair most things. He said that wastewater project is up and
running. He met with the DNR last week, and had the finally okay signoff on the loan. He said he should be finalizing the
last bills in the next week or so and then will be sending out bills to the outlying communities for their portion of the
project. He said that the department will be doing a presentation at Wisconsin Rural Water Conference at the end of this
month, and it has also been selected for a presentation in Green Way at the Wastewater Conference in October.

b. Street Superintendent’s Report – Gilman said that the department helps the Water Department on a couple of water
main breaks. The department has been busy is plowing, and downtown snow removal. He said they are working on corners
and storm inlets for two weeks, trying to get everything open and flowable. He said that the pole building is up and ready to
be prepped for use. Gilman said that the new refuse truck was suppose to be her last Wednesday; however, it had a recall
before it ever got here. Wedekind asked how the salt supply was doing, and Gilman said that roughly 1100 ton per year, and
the City allots for 1400 per year. Gilman said that the season was started with 800 tons of sand, and another 500 tons was
mixed, with approximately one ton left. Plautz said that he would like to have the older snowplow trucks equipped with a
wing to go under the mailboxes. Gilman said that the trucks that do not have a wing at this time would have to be totally
refurbished as far as front axle springs, they are not designed for it. Gilman said that the downside to a wing is that they are
fixed and basically can only distribute one direction. He said people are misdirected thinking that the blades can be turned at
any time. He said that regarding the mailboxes, technically it is the residents responsibility to keep it clear for the post
office.

c. Police Chief’s Report – Schauf stated he did not have a report for the Committee because they did not have their
software yet, and the numbers that would be given to the Committee he could not support. He said the department has been
working with alternative side parking and cars being towed. Plautz questioned the snow emergency ordinance. Schauf said
that the challenge that is run into is a very significant catch 22, the people are told that there is no way that they can park on
the street, but they still have to park. Schauf said that in the 20 years that he has been with the City, the snow emergency
ordinance has never been enacted.

d. Fire Chief’s Report – Stieve presented the Committee with an article that was published in National Fire Magazine by
one of the Fire Department’s members. He said that was one member resign, he moved out of the area, which now leaves the
Department with 38. He said that the Assistant Chief interviews were completed without anyone to hire. He said that there
were 20 applicants, six were interviewed, invited three to a second interview, two of them declined, interviewed one;
however, he wasn’t the guy. Stieve said that the position will be readvertised. Stieve presented the Committee with
information regarding Baraboo/Lake Delton Mutual Aid. Kolb said that he wanted to let Plautz and Wedekind know that he
has always been opposed to Auto-Aid; however, sitting down with Stieve for some time, he is moving a little bit on this. He
said after talking with Stieve, he spoke with Geick, and he is going to be looking into the potential fiscal impact. He said
that 12 kids completed the Fire Academy. He said that eight of them became Certified Firefighter I, a couple of them have to

27



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #201

take the written exam over, and a handful that have to retake the Firefighter 2 exam. He said the practical exam was
cancelled due to cold weather in January. There is another Firefighter II in April, so hopefully the kids can get in and
certified, because the program that they are in, they start college now, and then another part of the program is once they
become certified, they can send in their certifications. Kolb asked the timeline for the Assistant Chief position, Stieve stated
probably six weeks.

e. Committee will tour garage and grounds to view the new storage building and 2019 Public Works Department
equipment purchases at the City Services Center – Pinion said that the Public Works Department was expecting two skid
steers, and a new garbage truck; however, only received one skid steer. He said given the temperature and everything, the
tour will be held another day.

ADJOURNMENT – It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to adjourn at 1:55 p.m. Motion carried.

BID, BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S MEETING February 20, 2019
Members Present: S. Fay, B. Stelling, M. Zolper, T. Wickus, D. Ender, N. Marklein Bacher, L. Stanek
Members Absent: L. Stanek, D. Ender
Also Attending: Ed Geick

Call to Order: Sarah Fay presided over the meeting, called it to order at 5:45PM and noted compliance with the Open Meeting
Law.

Meeting Minutes:
Moved by Byberg, seconded by Steffes and unanimously carried to approve the minutes of January 16, 2019.

Agenda: Moved by Zolper, seconded by Steffes and unanimously carried to approve the agenda as published.

Reports of Officers and Committies
None to Report

Old Business:
Joint Parking Committee Update – No Meeting, rescheduled for March.

New Business:
1. Vouchers Landscape Techniques $ 2250.00

Downtown Baraboo 140.00
Wisconsin Public Radio 675.00
The Sign Shop 1200.00
Fred Moh 355.20

TOTAL: 4620.20

Moved by Wickus, seconded by Byberg, and unanimously carried to approve the vouchers.

2. Fund request for the branding initiative, $5,000 from reserves – Moved by Steffes, seconded by Zolper to
request for regular communication and consultation with BID representative. $64,000 is in reserves.

3. Fund request from the promotions committee, over budget, $3459 from reserves – Moved by Zolper,
seconded by Stelling to approve request.

4. Laura Stanek has resigned and has a recommendation
5. By-law Review – Dana Ender continuing
6. 2018 Income Statement – No Action

Correspondence & Announcements:
Michael Zolper was thanked for his service to the BID Board.

Next Meeting: Wednesday, April 17, 2019 at 5:45pm, Committee Room #205.

Adjournment: Moved by Stelling, seconded by Byberg to adjourn at approximately 6:30 p.m.

28



City of Baraboo Council Minutes March 26, 2019 Volume 42 Page #202

Copies of these meeting minutes are on file in the Clerk's office:
Plan Commission 02-19-19 UW Campus Comm. 10-18-18,1-17-19
Park & Recreation 02-20-19 CDA 02-21-19
Emergency Mgmt. 01-23-19 Library Board 02-18-19,3-18-19
CDA Loan Comm. 08-07-18

Petitions and Correspondence Being Referred – None.

CLOSED SESSION
Moved by Sloan, seconded by Petty to go into Closed Session as per §19.85(1)(g), Wis. Stat.,

to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice
concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to
become involved (City Administrator to provide information on the ongoing union contract
negotiations with WPPA).

Council Members Present: Wedekind, Sloan, Petty, Ellington, Kierzek, Thurow
Council Members Absent: Kolb, Plautz, Alt
Others Present: Chief Schauf, Adm. Geick, Att. Truman, Mayor Palm, Clerk Zeman, C. Haggard

OPEN SESSION
Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Petty and carried on a unanimous roll call vote to return to

Open Session as per WI Stats 19.85(2) to address any business that may be the result of deliberations
made in Closed Session. No action taken at this time.

ADJOURNMENT
Moved by Ellington, seconded by Petty, and carried on voice vote, that the meeting adjourn.

Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

29



S:\Council\Resolutions\4-9-19 Claims.docx

CA –1

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - Dated: April 9, 2019

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background:

Fiscal Note: (Check one) [ ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the Accounts Payable, in the amount of $ as recommended for payment by the
Finance/Personnel Committee, be allowed and ordered paid.

Offered By: Consent Approved by Mayor:
Motion:
Second: Certified by City Clerk:

30



CA - 2

RESOLUTION NO. 2018- Dated: April 9, 2019

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background:
City Ordinance 3.05, Changes in Budget states, “The amount of the tax to be levied or certified, the
amounts of the various appropriations, and the purpose thereof shall not be changed after approval of
the budget except by a 2/3 vote of the entire membership of the Council pursuant to §65.90(5), Wis.
Stats. Notice of such transfer shall be given by publication within 10 days thereafter in the official City
newspaper.”

Therefore, the City is required to notify the citizenry through publication in the City’s official newspaper
about the supplemental budget amendments. The State Statute requires publication to happen within
ten (10) days upon Council approval of said amendments.

The City’s publication process is to identify budget amendments in the fiscal commentary section of
resolutions when spending authorizations are granted. Therefore, the City Council could approve budget
transfers as often as every meeting. The City satisfies the legal requirement of publication, by publishing
budget amendments after the Finance Committee and Common Council approves the listing.

Fiscal Note: (check one) [ ] Not Required [ X ] Budgeted Expenditure [ X ] Not Budgeted

Comments: Budget amendments, that are budgetary transfers, are budgeted expenditures. Budget
amendments, that are supplemental, are not budgeted. The 2019 City Budget provides for publishing
amendments.

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

That the following budget amendments are authorized:

 1st Quarter, 2019 City-Wide Budget Amendments for $346,336

See attached memorandum and amendment schedules.

Offered by: Finance/Personnel Committee Approved by: ______________________________
Mayor

Motion: ________________________

Second: ________________________ Certified by: ______________________________
City Clerk

31



Finance Department Memorandum

To: Finance Committee

From: Cynthia Haggard, Director of Finance,

Date: April 9, 2019

Re: Budget Amendments

Background:

City Ordinance 3.05, Changes in Budget states, “The amount of the tax to be levied or certified, the amounts of
the various appropriations, and the purpose thereof shall not be changed after approval of the budget except by
a 2/3 vote of the entire membership of the Council pursuant to §65.90(5), Wis. Stats. Notice of such transfer shall
be given by publication within 10 days thereafter in the official City newspaper.”

Current:

Budget amendments are typically presented to the Finance/personnel Committee which are then forwarded to
the Common Council for approval the same night. This process is a quarterly process.

Recommendation:

The Finance Director will continue to closely work with Department Heads and communicate budget amendments
to the City’s Finance/Personnel Committee and Common Council on a quarterly basis. The practice for the
Library, Business Improvement District, Community Development, Baraboo-Dells Airport, Parks and Recreation,
and UW-Baraboo/Sauk County is that their respective budget amendments will need to be presented to their
Boards and/or Commissions before the amendments are presented to the City Council as part of the overall city-
wide budget amendment process.

In order to make changes to the budget, a Notice and Resolution to Amend Budget must be adopted. The
resolution must summarize the appropriation changes for each spending classification and identify from where
the sources of funds are coming.

Two categories of budget amendments are identified:

1. Budgetary Transfers
2. Supplemental Budgets

32



 Page 2

Budgetary Transfers

The budgetary transfer will have a source of funds of either 1) Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same
Fund, or 2) Transfer from Other Fund.

Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same Fund - Essentially transferring budgeted and appropriated monies
between spending category within same fund.

Transfer from Other Fund - A transfer consists of moving budgeted and appropriated monies from one or more
spending categories in one fund to one or more spending categories in another fund.

Supplemental Budgets

A supplemental budget shall be adopted to account for revenues in excess of the budget and to authorize
expenditures of additional funds. Whenever the City receives unanticipated revenues, or revenues not assured
at the time of the adoption of the budget, a supplemental budget and appropriation shall be enacted to authorize
the expenditure of these unanticipated funds. The supplemental budget will have a source of funds of either 1)
Fund Balance Applied, or 2) New Revenue.

Fund Balance Applied – In this case, the City is utilizing available fund balance to cover actual net expenses
exceeding revenues. This situation is caused by expenses coming in higher than budget, or revenues coming in
lower than budget.

New Revenue – In this case, the City has received funds that were not planned and wishes to apply those funds
to expenses in the current year - not in the original budget.

Attached:

1. 1st Quarter, 2019 City-Wide Amendments

33



Common Council approved the following 2019 Budget Amendments at their April 9, 2019 meeting:

Account Number Account Name Original Budget

Increase/

(Decrease) Amended Budget

Fire 100-21-49310-000 Fund Balance Applied_Donations - 1,542 1,542

1,542$

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-346-400 Uniforms - Designated - 1,542 1,542

To create budget for Fire Helmets & Liners 1,542$

Parks 430-52-48300-000 Sale of Assets 28,000 9,500 37,500

9,500$

Parks 430-52-55200-814-000 Equipment Purchases 61,000 9,500 70,500

To create budget for trade-in value skidsteer 9,500$

General Government 100-10-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied 683,294 139,544 822,838

Finance 230-11-43531-610 Taxi Capital Grant 29,600 28,941 58,541

Finance 230-11-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied - 7,235 7,235

General Government 430-10-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied 1,813,860 9,963 1,823,823

General Government 490-10-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied - 136,952 136,952

Parks 870-52-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied 57,200 5,439 62,639

328,074$

Data Processing 100-10-51450-814-000 Equipment Purchases 16,810 6,688 23,498

Storage Buildings 100-31-51630-822-000 Building Improvements 10,000 24,752 34,752

Street Maintenance 100-31-53300-364-000 Signs & Materials 27,500 1,125 28,625

Snow & Ice 100-31-53350-361-000 Blades & Plow Materials 12,000 3,545 15,545

Snow & Ice 100-31-53350-814-000 Equipment Purchases - 77,573 77,573

Civic Center 100-52-55130-822-000 Building Improvements 30,700 16,413 47,113

Zoo 100-52-55410-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 4,900 2,800 7,700

Pool 100-53-55420-822-000 Building Improvements - 6,648 6,648

Taxi Transportation 230-11-53500-810-000 Vehicle Purchase 37,000 36,176 73,176

Parks 430-52-55200-821-000 Land or Land Improvements 137,000 9,963 146,963

Public Works 490-31-53240-810-000 Vehicle Purchase 101,500 136,952 238,452

Zoo 870-52-55410-861-000 Facilities Improvements 20,700 5,439 26,139

To create budget for 2018 Open POs 328,074$

BID 390-69-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied - 5,000 5,000

5,000$

Community Development 390-69-56700-300-972 Promotions 20,500 5,000 25,500

To utilize reserves for branding initiative 5,000$

City Administrator 100-14--49300-000 Fund Balance Applied - 2,220 2,220

2,220$

Administration 100-14-51400-215-000 Professional Services 500 2,220 2,720

To utilize fund balance for Mueller Communications_High School incident 2,220$

346,336$

162,769$

Published by the authority of the City of Baraboo.

Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director

Net impact on all city-wide funds' budgets

City of Baraboo
2019 1st Quarter Budget Amendments

Net impact on City's General Fund Only

Department

C reated by: C ityofB araboo Financ e D irec tor 34



General Fund

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Fund Balance Applied

Fire 100-21-49310-000 Fund Balance Applied_Donations - (1,542) (1,542)

(1,542)$

Use of Funds

Fire Protection 100-21-52200-346-400 Uniforms - Designated - 1,542 1,542

1,542$
To create budget for Fire Helmets & Liners

Capital Projects

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: New Revenue

Parks 430-52-48300-000 Sale of Assets (28,000) (9,500) (37,500)

(9,500)$

Use of Funds

Parks 430-52-55200-814-000 Equipment Purchases 61,000 9,500 70,500

9,500$
To create budget for trade-in value skidsteer

BID

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Fund Balance Applied

BID 390-69-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied - (5,000) (5,000)

(5,000)$

Use of Funds

Community Development 390-69-56700-300-972 Promotions 20,500 5,000 25,500

5,000$
To utilize reserves for branding initiative

General Fund

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Fund Balance Applied

City Administrator 100-14--49300-000 Fund Balance Applied - (2,220) (2,220)

(2,220)$

Use of Funds

Administration 100-14-51400-215-000 Professional Services 500 2,220 2,720

2,220$
To utilize fund balance for Mueller Communications_High School incident

2019 1st Quarter Budget Amendments

Department

Supplemental Budget

City of Baraboo

Department

Department

Department

C reated by: C ityofB araboo Financ e D irec tor 35



General Fund

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Fund Balance Applied

General Government 100-10-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied (683,294) (139,544) (822,838)

Source of Funds: New Revenue

Finance 230-11-43531-610 Taxi Capital Grant (29,600) (28,941) (58,541)

Source of Funds: Fund Balance Applied

Finance 230-11-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied - (7,235.00) (7,235.00)

General Government 430-10-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied (1,813,860) (9,963) (1,823,823)

General Government 490-10-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied - (136,952) (136,952)

Parks 870-52-49300-000 Fund Balance Applied (57,200) (5,439) (62,639)

(328,074)$

Use of Funds

Data Processing 100-10-51450-814-000 Equipment Purchases 16,810 6,688 23,498

Storage Buildings 100-31-51630-822-000 Building Improvements 10,000 24,752 34,752

Street Maintenance 100-31-53300-364-000 Signs & Materials 27,500 1,125 28,625

Snow & Ice 100-31-53350-361-000 Blades & Plow Materials 12,000 3,545 15,545

Snow & Ice 100-31-53350-814-000 Equipment Purchases - 77,573 77,573

Civic Center 100-52-55130-822-000 Building Improvements 30,700 16,413 47,113

Zoo 100-52-55410-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 4,900 2,800 7,700

Pool 100-53-55420-822-000 Building Improvements - 6,648 6,648

Taxi Transportation 230-11-53500-810-000 Vehicle Purchase 37,000 36,176 73,176

Parks 430-52-55200-821-000 Land or Land Improvements 137,000 9,963 146,963

Public Works 490-31-53240-810-000 Vehicle Purchase 101,500 136,952 238,452

Zoo 870-52-55410-861-000 Facilities Improvements 20,700 5,439 26,139

328,074$
To create budget for 2018 Open POs

Department

C reated by: C ityofB araboo Financ e D irec tor 36



General Fund

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same Fund

Parks 100-52-55200-822-000 Building Improvements 4,500 (4,500) -

Parks 100-52-55200-814-000 Equipment Purchases 7,500 (2,500) 5,000

(7,000)$

Use of Funds

Zoo 100-52-55410-814-000 Equipment Purchases 4,500 7,000 11,500

7,000$
To transfer Tommy Gate and shed $ for freezer

General Fund

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same Fund

PS/Admin Building 100-11-51640-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 17,492 (4,000) 13,492

(4,000)$

Use of Funds

PS/Admin Building 100-11-51640-220-000 Telephone 1,300 4,000 5,300

4,000$
To transfer funds for CCC Technologies Phone

Corson Square

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same Fund

CDA Ordinary Maint 980-67-44000-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 24,500 (3,000) 21,500

CDA Ordinary Maint 981-67-44000-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 17,500 (3,000) 14,500

(6,000)$

Use of Funds

CDA Ordinary Maint 980-67-44000-281-000 Snow Removal & Mowing 3,000 3,000 6,000

CDA Ordinary Maint 981-67-44000-281-000 Snow Removal & Mowing 3,000 3,000 6,000

6,000$
To transfer funds for snow plowing services

Department

Budgetary Transfers

City of Baraboo

Department

2019 1st Quarter Budget Amendments

Department

C reated by: C ityofB araboo Financ e D irec tor 37



Donahue Terrace

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same Fund

CDA Ordinary Maint 980-67-44000-260-000 Repair & Maint Serv-Buildings 30,000 (16,000) 14,000

(16,000)$

Use of Funds

CDA Ordinary Maint 980-67-44000-390-000 Other Supplies & Expense (15,000) 16,000 1,000

16,000$
To transfer funds for bed bug infestation

General Fund

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same Fund

PS/Admin Building 100-11-51640-222-000 Electricity 41,000 (5,000) 36,000

(5,000)$

Use of Funds

PS/Admin Building 100-11-51640-223-000 Heat 6,000 5,000 11,000

5,000$
To transfer funds for heat being underbudgeted

Donahue Terrace

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same Fund

CDA Ordinary Maint 980-67-44000-350-000 Repair & Maint Materials 27,000 (5,500) 21,500

(5,500)$

Use of Funds

CDA Ordinary Maint 980-67-44000-392-000 Small Equipment Purchase 1,500 5,500 7,000

5,500$
To trsfr funds for refrigerator & other equipt

General Fund

Account Number Account Name

Original
Budget Change

Amended
Budget

Source of Funds: Reduction in Other Appropriation within Same Fund

Machinery & Equipment 100-31-53240-348-000 Gas. Diesel. Oil. Grease 15,000 (4,000) 11,000

Street Maintenance 100-31-53300-348-000 Gas. Diesel. Oil. Grease 12,000 (3,000) 9,000

(7,000)$

Use of Funds

Snow & Ice 100-31-53350-348-000 Gas. Diesel. Oil. Grease 16,000 7,000 23,000

7,000$
To transfer funds for snow&ice over budget

Department

Department

Department

Department

C reated by: C ityofB araboo Financ e D irec tor 38



S:\Council\Resolutions\4-9-19 reso for Sauk MIS agreement.docx

NBR - 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2018- Dated: April 9, 2019
The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background Sauk County and the City have updated the existing agreement that allows the City to purchase
technical services from Sauk MIS department for the City’s computer network and security systems. As part of
this update the City is also submitting to the City Council a new Technology Policy for adoption. This policy
lays out the rules for properly operating the City’s computer systems and the way employees use those systems.

Note: ( one) [x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

Resolved by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin: To authorize the
City Administrator to sign the agreement with Sauk County MIS.

Offered by: Finance/Personnel Comt. Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

39



Sauk County MIS Memorandum of Understanding for the Provision of Intergovernmental
Services to the City of Baraboo for Computer Network and Technical Services

1

1) Purpose. This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) establishes an inter-governmental
agreement between Sauk County, by and through the Management Information Systems
Department (MIS), and other local units of government within Sauk County (the client). This
agreement is effective when signed by MIS and the client. Per Wisconsin Statute 66.0301 it is
the intention of this agreement to make available the computer support resources of Sauk
County to other units of local government, within Sauk County, at a minimal cost to those
agencies.

2) Scope. Under this MOU, Sauk County will provide network facilities and computer
configuration and support services to the client for the client’s computing systems. The client
will have access to support personnel during regular MIS business hours; currently 8:00 am. to
4:30 pm. Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. Additional considerations for the
exchange of network facilities are included in Addendum 2 of this document.

3) Costs. The client will reimburse MIS for any costs incurred in the provision of agreed upon
services. Upon request by the client, MIS will provide a written quotation of any costs prior to
the provision of services. Costs that will be passed on to the client are:

a) MIS Staff Labor for support and configuration services at the rates set forth in Addendum 1;
b) Any consulting or contract labor required to meet client specifications;
c) Any licensing or software costs incurred in order to meet client specifications;
d) Any hardware or software upgrades needed to meet client specifications;
e) Any travel expenses incurred by MIS staff in supporting the client’s equipment

4) MIS Responsibilities. MIS will assign the necessary personnel to provide the services
requested by the client. In order to fulfill the responsibility, MIS will:

a) Provide written quotation, if requested by the client, for services required by the client,
including an estimated completion date;

b) Provide computer configuration and testing;
c) Provide computer problem diagnosis and repair;
d) Provide phone support through the MIS helpdesk;
e) Provide on-site support when necessary;
f) Maintain records on services provided to the client, to include:

i) date and time of service
ii) a description of work performed
iii) any configuration changes or software updates installed;

g) Provide recommendations to the client for hardware and software necessary to meet client’s
specifications;

h) Provide tracking of client service contracts and software agreements.
i) Comply with any additional terms set forth in addendums to this agreement;

5) Client Responsibilities. The client shall:

a) Ensure that this MOU is signed by an official who is authorized to sign such agreements;
b) Comply fully with client agency’s policies regarding purchasing and computer usage;

40



Sauk County MIS Memorandum of Understanding for the Provision of Intergovernmental
Services to the City of Baraboo for Computer Network and Technical Services

2

c) Comply fully with all applicable Sauk County policies regarding the use of any Sauk
County owned systems;

d) Assist MIS staff in developing system specifications;
e) Provide full funding for costs incurred by MIS in order to meet client specifications,

ensuring that the funding is authorized by an official who is authorized to obligate funds;
f) Provide necessary access to client systems and facilities for the purpose of providing

support services;
g) Indemnify, hold harmless and defend Sauk County, its employees, agents, representatives

and co-producers from any and all claims, damages, liabilities and expenses arising from
client’s use of MIS services.

h) Comply with any additional terms set forth in addendums to this agreement.

6) Cancellation. Either party may cancel this agreement for any reason upon 120 days written
notice. If this agreement, or any order under this agreement, is canceled, the client assumes
responsibility for all costs resulting from the cancellation. MIS will not be liable for any
incomplete responsibility from paragraph 4 upon notice of cancellation of this agreement.

7) Authorization. The signatory for the Client represents and warrants that she/he is authorized
to execute this agreement on behalf of the Client Agency.

8) Term. This agreement shall be in effect for one year from the date signed and shall
automatically renew unless cancelled or replaced with a successor agreement

Client Representative: _____________________________ Date: _________________

Title: ________________________________________________

Agency: ______________________________________________

MIS Representative: _____________________________ Date: _________________

Title: ________________________________________________

41



Sauk County MIS Memorandum of Understanding for the Provision of Intergovernmental
Services to the City of Baraboo for Computer Network and Technical Services

3

ADDENDUM 1 – SERVICE RATES AND ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

The City of Baraboo (City) and Sauk County Management Information Systems (MIS) agree to the
following additional terms and conditions to the MOU for the Provision of Services for the term of
this agreement:

Rates

An hourly rate will be charged for all services provided between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30
p.m. Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. Rates are as follows:

 Helpdesk Staff Support $55.00 / Hour
 Tier 2 (Admin Level) Support $70.00 / Hour

Any call-in services will be billed at $85.00 per hour rounded up to the nearest hour with a one hour
minimum.

Invoicing and Payment Terms

MIS will invoice the City for services quarterly based on the calendar quarter. Payment for services
will be due 60 days from date of invoice. MIS will report labor hours to the City on a monthly
basis.

Workstation Permissions

Under this agreement, the City agrees to create policy limiting end user permissions on computer
workstations utilized in City Government and work with MIS to implement this policy.

Data Security and Privacy Compliance

The City agrees to develop, maintain and enforce any user or system policies required to ensure
compliance with applicable privacy and security regulations and make MIS aware of any such
requirements to be enforced through system policy configuration.

The City agrees to implement best practices with regard to privacy and security compliance.

MIS agrees to comply with all data security and privacy policies established by the City and to
enforce related system policy through appropriate system settings, at the direction of the City.

Both parties agree to comply with all applicable policies, laws and regulations related to
information privacy and security.

Software and System License Agreements

The City is responsible to obtain necessary software licensing and to manage, maintain and comply
with all license agreements related to City Systems.

42



Sauk County MIS Memorandum of Understanding for the Provision of Intergovernmental
Services to the City of Baraboo for Computer Network and Technical Services

4

Work Flow

Both parties acknowledge that communication is key to the success of this relationship. The City
and MIS will work together to establish the appropriate contact persons for the various City systems
and user groups.

City computer end users will be instructed to call the MIS helpdesk for assistance. The helpdesk
will be responsible for logging the call and attempting to provide problem resolution. In the event
the issue cannot be resolved by the MIS Helpdesk, the call will be passed on to second level
support. Second level support will make the appropriate contact with City staff and provide
problem status and estimated resolution time frame.

Activities internal to the City of Baraboo, which may impact computer systems, will be
communicated to the MIS Helpdesk by the appropriate City staff.

Any troubleshooting or repair that will require more than 4hrs of MIS time will be referred to the
appropriate City contact person for review

The City agrees to use the MIS department’s workflow applications for new user access and system
access changes.

ADDENDUM 2 – EXCHANGE OF FIBER OPTIC FACILITIES

This addendum addresses the exchange of fiber optic network facilities between Sauk County and
the City of Baraboo.

Section 1
Commencement Date and Basic addendum: This addendum shall commence on August 1st, 2012,
and the parties hereby agree to exchange conduit space, dark fiber, and building space.

Section 2
Obligations of the Parties and Description of Property to Be Exchanged:

2.1. Obligations of the County and Property:

2.1.1. Provide 560 feet of conduit space for one fiber cable from the Vault #37 of Leg A of
the County Fiber Loop on the northeast corner of 5th Avenue & Broadway to the Sauk
County Courthouse.

2.1.2. Provide 832 feet of Conduit space for one fiber cable from the Sauk County
Courthouse to Vault #7 on Leg K of the County Fiber Loop (Exit to the Civic Center)

2.1.3. Provide 270 feet of Conduit space for two fiber cables from Vault # 7 to Vault #6 on
Leg K of the County fiber. (Exit to the CDA and back to Civic Center)

2.1.4. Provide 770 feet of Conduit space for one fiber cable from Vault # 6 to Vault #5A on
Leg K of the County fiber Loop. (Exit to the Public works Garage)

2.1.5. Provide up to 10 rack unit space in the basement of the Courthouse, room C-17 in the
City of Baraboo.

43



Sauk County MIS Memorandum of Understanding for the Provision of Intergovernmental
Services to the City of Baraboo for Computer Network and Technical Services

5

2.1.6. Provide building occupancy which includes interior space for connectivity needs in
the basement of the Courthouse, 167 feet of building entry piping, and termination
space in one (1) -19” rack. The County will allow for 24/7 access to this site.
Occupancy shall include electrical and HVAC facilities.

2.1.7. Locating service for County owned conduit/duct space.
2.1.8. Maintenance and restoration of County owned Conduit.

2.2. Obligations of the City and Property:

2.2.1. Provide conduit space in the City of Baraboo from Vault #37 of Leg A of the County
Fiber Loop on the northeast corner of 5th Avenue & Broadway to the City of Baraboo,
City Hall Facility.

2.2.2. Provide fiber cable from City Hall to the Courthouse.
2.2.3. Provide conduit space in the City of Baraboo from Vault #7 on Leg K of the County

Fiber Loop to the Civic Center Facility.
2.2.4. Provide conduit space in the City of Baraboo from Vault #6 on Leg K of the County

fiber to the CDA.
2.2.5. Provide conduit space in the City of Baraboo from Vault #5A on Leg K of the County

Fiber Loop to the Public Works Facility.
2.2.6. Provide Fiber cable from the Courthouse to the Civic Center, CDA & Public Works

Facility.
2.2.7. Designate 2 strands of dark fiber from the Courthouse to the City Hall and from the

Courthouse to the Civic Center, Community Development and Public Works Facility
for county use.

2.2.8. Provide building occupancy which includes interior space for connectivity needs in
all City Facilities, building entry piping, and termination space in one (1)-19” racks.
The City will allow for 24/7 access to this site. Occupancy shall include electrical and
HVAC facilities.

2.2.9. Locating service for City owned conduit/duct space.
2.2.10. Maintenance and restoration of City owned fiber optic cable and cable.

2.3. Both parties shall provide each other reasonable access to the shared facilities for the purpose
of effectuating this addendum. Both parties shall provide reasonable advance notice to the
other, or make mutually agreeable arrangements for access to shared facilities, and such
access shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Section 3
Property in Exchange: Both the County and the City agree that the facility values as denoted in
section 2 are of equal value and that no exchange of money is required as part of this addendum.

Section 4
Additional Construction and Maintenance:

4.1. Additional Construction: In the case that any additional construction between the County
Courthouse and the City Hall is required the cost shall be divided divide based on a formula
of fifty (50%) percent cost to the County and fifty (50%) percent cost to the City.

44



Sauk County MIS Memorandum of Understanding for the Provision of Intergovernmental
Services to the City of Baraboo for Computer Network and Technical Services

6

4.2. Maintenance and Relocation of Shared Facilities: The costs for any damage, relocation or
other costs incurred because of circumstances that result in the relocation/repair of joint
facilities, shall be covered by the owner of that facility. The County shall pay for costs related
to relocation/repairs to its fiber and its conduit and the City shall pay for costs related to
relocation/repairs to its fiber and its conduit

Section 5
General Provisions:

5.1. Payment: There will be no exchange of money as a part of this initial addendum. Payment
for the exchange of any future facilities shall be evaluated at the time that addition services
or facilities are request by either party.

5.2. Insurance: Each Party shall maintain general liability, workers compensation and umbrella
insurance coverage in amounts sufficient to protect both parties from any and all claims,
demands, suits or other actions of a private or civil authority with regard to the actions of the
other party. Both parties agree that it shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other
party from the actions of its employees or agents that may give rise to any claim or cause of
action that may result from the use of the other party's facilities as provided herein.

5.3. Diggers Hotline: Both Parties shall have all buried plant registered with Digger’s Hotline.

5.4. Assignment: Neither party shall be allowed to assign or transfer its rights under this
addendum except to a public entity successor that assumes the public service responsibilities
of the party. No transfer to a commercial private entity of any property hereunder shall be
made without the express consent of the other party. Notwithstanding, nothing contained
herein shall prevent one party from leasing or authorizing the use of its facilities, or incidental
commercial use of the shared facilities, to a private commercial entity who enters into a
contract with one of the parties.

5.5. Notices: All notices required or permitted under this addendum shall be in writing and shall
be deemed delivered when delivered in person or deposited in the United States mail, postage
prepaid, addressed to the parties at the address indicated in Section 1.

5.6. Amendment: This addendum may be modified or amended if the addendum is made in
writing, approved by the respective governing bodies of the parties to this addendum and is
signed by both the City and the County.

5.7. Severability: If any provision of this addendum shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable
for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable. If a
court finds that any provision of this addendum is invalid or unenforceable, but that by
limiting such provision it would become valid and enforceable, then such provision shall be
deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited.

5.8. Waiver of Contractual Right: The failure of either party to enforce any provision of this
addendum shall not be construed as a waiver or limitation of that party's right to subsequently
enforce and compel strict compliance with every provision of this addendum.

45



Sauk County MIS Memorandum of Understanding for the Provision of Intergovernmental
Services to the City of Baraboo for Computer Network and Technical Services

7

City Representative: Date:

________________________________________ ______________________

Edward Geick, City Administrator
City of Baraboo

County Representative:
Date:

________________________________________ ______________________

Ian Crammond, Facilities Director
Sauk County Building Services

46



S:\Council\Resolutions\4-9-19 Purchasing Policy Reso.docx

NBR - 2

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - Dated: April 9, 2019
The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background. The City’s Purchasing Policy has been updated to reflect policy and procedure changes that
should result in time savings for all City Departments. The most significant change will be to allow City
Departments to make purchases of up to $1,000 (rather than the current limit of $500) without requiring the
purchase to be competitively bid unless otherwise required by law. Other changes include updating the
language for how City employees are to use the City’s purchase order software (miViewPoint), eliminating the
Claims Processing section (as this has now been delegated to the City Attorney), and the incorporation of
current ordinance language regarding what happens if there is a tie bid or if a bid has to be rejected as part of
the competitive bidding process.

Note: ( one) [] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

To adopt the revised Purchasing Policy for the City of Baraboo.

Offered by: Finance/Personnel Comm. Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

47



1

SECTION 1
POLICY OBJECTIVES

1.1 Objectives. The objectives of the City's Purchasing Policy are:
1. To ensure that materials, equipment and services are purchased at the lowest prices consistent with

quality and performance,
2. To provide adequate controls over City expenditures and financial commitments with proper

documentation,
3. To obtain quality goods required by City departments and to ensure that these goods are at the place

needed at the time needed, and;
4. To provide a standardized system of purchasing for use by all City departments.

SECTION II
COMPETITIVE BIDDING

2.1 Policy. It is the policy of the City of Baraboo to procure needed materials, equipment and services at the
lowest cost consistent with quality and performance. Therefore, City purchases will be made only after
price quotations have been obtained or attempted to have been obtained from different suppliers
through either formal or informal means, if required pursuant to this Policy.

2.2 Obtaining Bids. Unless required by State Statute, it shall be the Department Heads discretion on the
method of obtaining bids and proposals. Options include invitations to bid and proposals by US mail, e-
mail, and publication in the official newspaper, telephone contacts or verbal requests. Purchases shall
attempt to obtain bids or proposals from at least three (3) vendors to ensure that comparison pricing is
demonstrated.

2.3 Exceptions. The only exceptions to this Policy are:
1. Sole-source purchases (i.e., when only one known supplier is available): includes diagnostic vehicle

repairs and warranty work that needs to be done by service providers equipped and trained for repairs
on the make and model of equipment being repaired.

2. Emergency purchases and repairs covered by insurance proceeds.
3. Items purchased by State contract.
4. Purchases paid with grant funds which require specific purchasing procedures;
5. Professional services where the City Administrator has waived bidding requirements.
6. Other justifications as identified by a Department Head and approved by the City Administrator.
7. For purchases below $1,000, the bidding/proposal process is waived although the purchaser is

expected to compare prices for routine purchases and supplies. The intent is to look for quality and
price over convenience, wherever practical.

CITY OF BARABOO
TITLE:

PURCHASING POLICY
TARGET AUDIENCE: City Departments; City

Employees; Utilities and other component units
funded by City taxpayers or ratepayers, either
in whole or in part; Community Development
Authority; Vendors

POLICY SOURCE:
Finance Department

PAGE NUMBERS: 16

DATE APPROVED BY COUNCIL:
March 22, 2017

DATE AMENDED BY COUNCIL:
April XX, 2019

ATTORNEY REVIEW:
February 19, 2019

48



2

2.4 Prohibited Conduct. The intentional staggering of purchases as well as dividing purchases and/or contracts
to consciously evade this policy is strictly prohibited.

2.5 Competitive Bidding Process. To assist Department Heads in the bidding process, templates are available
from the City Attorney and Finance Director for soliciting bids. Templates are also available for RFIs, RFPs
and RFQs:

 Request for Bid (RFB): Commonly used when deliverables are commodities for which there are clear
specifications and when price will be the primary determining factor.

 Request for Information (RFI): Commonly used to develop lists of qualified sellers and gain more input
for resource availability.

 Request for Proposal (RFP): Commonly used when deliverables are not well-defined or when other
selection criteria will be used in addition to price.

 Request for Quotation (RFQ): Commonly used when deliverables are commodities for which there are
clear specifications and when price will be the primary determining factor. Unlike an RFB, this solicited
price quote is used for comparison purposes and is not a formal bid for work.

2.5.1 Tie Bids. If two or more bids are in the same amount or unit price, quality, service and other factors
deemed relevant being equal, the contract shall be awarded to a bidder whose principal place of business
is located within the City limits, if any. If there is not a City of Baraboo bidder, the Department Head should
award the contract to one of the tie bidders by cutting a deck of playing cards, with the highest card being
awarded the bid.

2.5.2 Rejection of Bids. Department Heads have the authority to reject bids or parts of bids, or all bids, where
the public interest will be served. In all cases, the Department Head has the authority to re-advertise and
re-bid any proposed purchase or to reject all bids and to negotiate a purchase directly with any supplier
if this procedure is deemed most advantageous to the City.

2.5.3 Bidders in Default to the City. A Department Head should not accept the bid of any supplier who is in
default or delinquent in the payment of taxes, licenses, forfeitures, or any other moneys whatsoever due
the City.

2.5.4 Selecting Bid. In addition to price, Department Heads may consider the following factors in selecting the
acceptable bid:
1. The ability, capacity and skill of the bidder to perform the contract or provide the service required.
2. Whether the bidder can perform the contract or provide the service promptly, or within the time

specified, without delay or interference.
3. The character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience and efficiency of the bidder.
4. The quality of performance of previous contracts or services by the bidder.
5. The previous and existing compliance by the bidder with laws and ordinance relating to the contract

or service.
6. The sufficiency of the financial resources and ability of the bidder to perform the contract or provide

the service.
7. The quality, availability and adaptability of the supplies or contractual services to the particular use

required.
8. The ability of the bidder to provide future maintenance and service for the use of the subject of the

contract.
9. The number and scope of conditions attached to the bid.

49



3

SECTION III
CENTRAL PURCHASING

3.1 Policy. Many of the items purchased by the City are commonly used by all or several departments. By
consolidating the needs of all departments, the City can take advantage of price discounts for large
quantity orders of these items. Annual orders are encouraged. Department Heads and all purchasers are
strongly encouraged to work together to coordinate purchases of common items between departments.

SECTION IV
PURCHASE RELATED CHARGES AND ALLOWANCES

4.1 Shipping and Freight. It is the policy of the City to avoid paying shipping charges whenever possible. If the
City is to pay shipping charges, it must be billed at the time of invoicing. Purchasers, when obtaining price
quotations, should inquire into applicable freight charges. Any charges to be paid by the City will be
regarded as part of the price quotation when selecting the successful bidder and noted on the purchase
requisition. Unless otherwise stated in the RFP/RFQ, all formal bids and proposals shall include freight and
delivery charges, if any.

4.2 Sales Tax Exemption. The City is exempt from paying city, county and state sales tax. Purchasers have the
responsibility to inform vendors of tax exempt status. Tax exempt forms are available in the City Finance
Director’s office. Invoices received by the City that include sales tax will be amended by reducing the
amount of sales tax prior to payment.

4.3 Vendor Discounts. It is the policy of the City to take advantage of all available vendor discounts. The
following considerations should be kept in mind:
1. Cash discounts are offered for prompt payment, usually within ten days of the date of the invoice.

Department Heads can aid the City by ensuring that their copy of the purchase order is signed and
forwarding invoices to the Finance Director’s office promptly for inclusion in accounts payable
batches. The Finance Director will notate, “Redeemed Prior to Council” for items released prior to
Council.

2. Trade discounts are sometimes offered to municipalities for the purpose of attracting business. In
most cases, the City will not be offered a trade discount unless the purchaser asks if one is available.
Therefore, it is essential that Purchasers ask if trade discounts are available when obtaining price
quotations.

SECTION V
COOPERATIVE PURCHASING

5.1 Policy. Cooperative purchasing between the City and the State of Wisconsin or between the City and
other local governments can result in significant savings on the purchase price of many items. The Finance
Director shall have the authority to analyze the desirability of cooperative purchasing arrangements and
to make recommendations to the City Administrator. The City Council encourages cooperative purchasing
but maintains the right to reject any or all such agreements. It is the policy of the City to enter into
cooperative purchasing agreements when:
1. Substantial savings will result;
2. Quality, availability, or service will not be sacrificed;

50



4

3. The City will be separately billed for its purchases;
4. Ordered items will be delivered directly to the City (unless otherwise agreed to).

SECTION VI
CHARGE CARDS

6.1 Policy. During the course of everyday business, situations arise that call for the use of a charge card. Some
examples of these situations might be making flight reservations, booking a hotel in connection with a
conference, purchasing government publications on-line, etc. A charge card is not meant to interfere with
any of the other policies and/or procedures currently in place in terms of purchasing needed items and/or
services for the City. Its use is meant to enhance or augment the City’s ability to make purchases in the
most efficient manner possible. Purchase orders and competitive pricing practices are still required for
items purchased on a charge card if above $1,000 dollars.

6.2 Use of Card. The charge card shall be used where necessary purchases: (1) cannot be billed or invoiced to
the City and (2) can only be made by a charge card by policy of the vendor. For example: on-line booking
of air travel or seminar registration. It is suggested to routinely ask if the company would bill the City as
this would be the preferred method of payment.

6.2.1 Examples of when the charge card MAY be used:
1. Lodging (registering in advance and paying upon departure).
2. Some transportation: Flights, car rentals, trains, inter-city buses (see below for exceptions when card

cannot be used in this category).
3. Registration fees for conferences and seminars.
4. Costs associated with business-related training.
5. Online purchases for items such as government or business-related literature.
6. Meal costs (including the standard 15% tip) as follows:

a. Costs must follow the standards established in the City’s Travel Guidelines/ Expense
Reimbursement Policy.

b. Group meetings where the City is paying (must receive prior approval of the City
Administrator whose approval means that it is appropriate for the City to pay the expense).

c. The City will allow tips up to 15% of the bill to be applied to the charge card. If a tip is made
that is in excess of 15%, the overage should be left by the employee in cash and will not be
recoverable from the City as a valid expense.

d. Employees do not need to obtain tax exemption for individual meals or groups up to three (3)
people. Groups over three should try to obtain the tax exempt status. (See Tax Exemption
section of this policy below.)

6.2.2 Examples of when the charge card MAY NOT be used:
1. Taxi fares, intra-city bus lines.
2. Tips, except when it is part of an approved meal cost.
3. Personal purchases of any kind.
4. Cash advances.

6.3 Employee Access to Credit Card. Department Heads are responsible for determining the individual(s) in
their organization who will have a charge card. Employees may not make purchases without the prior
knowledge of the Department Head. Approved employees will be required to sign an agreement that:
1. Acknowledges that they understand the purpose of the use of credit cards,

51



5

2. Certifies that they have read and understand the City’s Purchasing Policy,
3. Confirms that improper use of the card may result in disciplinary action up to and including

termination of employment; and
4. Guarantees return of the card to the Department Head for reasons such as, but not limited to:

a. Change in duties,
b. Retirement,
c. Termination of employment,
d. Improper use, or
e. Any other sound reason determined by the Department Head or City Administrator.

6.4 Tax Exemption. Purchases made on credit cards are still eligible for tax exemption. The City, as a government
office, is exempt from paying tax on purchases. Those who will be issued cards will be given the tax exemption
number. Certificates are available by contacting the Finance Department. The Purchaser is responsible to
provide the vendor proof of the City’s tax exempt status at the time the charge is incurred.

6.5 Automatic Payroll Deduction. If a meal (plus tip) purchase exceeds that which is allowed by the City’s
Travel Guidelines/Expense Reimbursement Policy, located in the Employee Handbook,, or if an
unauthorized charge occurs, or if a good faith attempt to receive a tax exemption is not made, the
employee must immediately reimburse the difference between what is allowed and the dollar amount
being charged to the Finance Department. If the employee does not submit the difference to the Finance
Department, that lack of action acts as the employee’s permission for an automatic payroll deduction for
the unauthorized charges or the amount in excess of what is allowed to be taken from the employees
next payroll check.

6.6 Documentation. As with any purchases made for the City, paperwork is required. To ensure that our Finance
Department can make payment of the charge card debt in a timely manner, it will be necessary for the
following rules to be followed:
1. Employees who use a City charge card shall, as soon as possible after making a purchase, submit

supporting documentation to the Department Head. Supporting documentation may include:
a. The vendor’s detailed sales receipt;
b. Itineraries;
c. Rental agreements;
d. Completed registration flyers,
e. Renewal notification letters,
f. Order confirmations.

2. Documentation must include the name of the vendor providing the goods or services, the date (and
time for meal reimbursements), the employee(s) involved, the goods and services received, the
amount, and the business purpose.

3. All sales documentation needs to be clearly marked as a charge card purchase with the
department/card number indicated and the name of the employee who made the purchase.

4. Department Heads will approve the purchase that was made by placing an account code and signing
the submitted documentation as they would with any other request for payment. Include the
purchase order number on the invoice.

5. Department Heads or designee must enter the documentation information into the City’s financial
software.

7. The charge card statement will be mailed directly to the Finance Department. All sales slips should be
in the Accounts Payable Department by the time the statement gets here. Accounts Payable will
match up the slips to the statement. Statements will only be distributed when information is missing.

52



6

We are required by the charge card vendor to make an electronic payment within 14 days of the
statement date so we do not have time to search for information.

8. Charge card purchases will have to be paid before Council can approve them. We will include the
vouchers in the Council batch following the end of the month when we process our batch of all
electronic payments made for the month. Based on the vendor’s statement date of the 25th, it will
miss the cycle at the end of the current month and would have to wait another month. These vouchers
would then be 7 to 11 days past the purchase date by the time the Council sees them.

9. Upon leaving employment, or when an employee no longer needs to have the charge card, the
Department Head will be responsible for retrieving it. The Finance Director or his/her designee will
maintain a list of employees to whom cards have been issued. Department Heads therefore must
inform the Finance office when it is necessary to either reassign a card or to remove the employee’s
name from the list of those who are holding a City charge card.

6.7. Loss of Privilege. If an employee exhibits non-compliance with these procedures, discipline for non-
compliance may occur, up to an including the loss of privilege to use the charge card or termination. A
Department Head has the right to establish additional restrictions on City charge card use within his/her
respective department

SECTION VII
FLEET FUEL CHARGE CARDS

7.1. Department Use of Card. All fuel for City owned vehicles and equipment will be purchased using a fleet
charge card. The following department’s vehicles have been issued a fleet card for each City owned
vehicle or equipment:

o Fire Department
o Police Department
o Engineering Department
o Building Inspector

o Administration
o Water Department
o Sewer Department

The following departments have employees that have been selected to receive fleet charge cards in their
name on behalf of the City:

o Department of Public Works o Parks Department

7.2 Department Head Responsibilities. The respective Department Head will be responsible for reporting and
managing authorized users for their department to the Finance Director.

7.3. Employee’s Use of Fleet Charge Card. The Department Heads are responsible for determining the
individual(s) in their organization who will have a fleet charge card. All users will be issued a Personal Pin
# and will be required to enter the pin at the pump (or at the cashier) to authorize the fuel purchase. All
purchases can and will be tracked by the department, vehicle and user. The Department Head has the
right to establish additional restrictions on City fleet charge card use within his/her respective
department. Those individuals will be required to sign an agreement that:
1. Acknowledges that they understand the purpose of the program;
2. Certifies that they have read and understand this Fleet Charge Card Policy Section of the City’s

Purchasing Policy.
3. Confirms that improper use of the card may result in disciplinary action up to and including

termination of employment; and
4. Guarantees return of the card to the Finance Director for reasons such as, but not limited to:

53



7

a. Change in duties,
b. Retirement,
c. Termination of employment,
d. Improper use, or
e. Any other sound reason determined by the Department Head or City Administrator.

7.4 Automatic Payroll Deduction. If an unauthorized charge occurs, the employee must immediately
reimburse the dollar amount being charged to the Finance Department. If the employee does not submit
payment to the Finance Department, that lack of action acts as the employee’s permission for an
automatic payroll deduction for the unauthorized charges or the amount in excess of what is allowed to
be taken from the employees next payroll check.

7.5 Documentation - As with any purchases made for the City, paperwork is required. To ensure that our Finance
Department can make payment of the charge card debt in a timely manner, it will be necessary for the
following rules to be followed:
1. Employees who use a City fleet charge card shall, as soon as possible after making a purchase, submit

supporting documentation to the Department Head. Supporting documentation may include:
a. The vendor’s detailed sales receipt.
b. Documentation must include the name of the vendor providing the goods, the employee(s)

involved, vehicle or equipment the fuel is for, the amount, and the date.
2. All sales documentation needs to be clearly marked as a charge card purchase with the

department/card number indicated and the name of the employee who made the purchase.
3. Department Heads will receive the fleet card statement at the end of each billing cycle, and approve

the purchases made by writing the proper account code and signing the statement. The Department
Head will be required to attach the supporting documentation to each statement.

4. Department Heads or designee must enter the documentation information into the City’s financial
software.

4. Department Heads or designee will promptly place the approved charges in the Accounts Payable
basket in the Finance Department.

5. Upon leaving employment or there is no longer a need for an individual to have a fleet charge card,
the Department Head will be responsible for retrieving the card. The Finance Director or designee will
maintain a list of employees to whom cards have been issued. Department Heads therefore must
inform the Finance Department when it is necessary to either reassign a card or to remove the
employee’s name from the list of those who are holding a fleet charge card.

7.6 Loss of Privilege. If an employee exhibits non-compliance with these procedures, discipline for non-
compliance may occur, up to an including the loss of privilege to use the charge card or termination. A
Department Head has the right to establish additional restrictions on City charge card use within his/her
respective department.

SECTION VIII
SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY

8.1. Tangible Property. City property is declared “surplus” when it is no longer necessary, practical or
economical to be retained by the City. Department Heads are responsible for identifying surplus furniture,
equipment, supplies, etc., in their departments. The City Administrator or designee is responsible for the
sale or disposal of all surplus property. The City Administrator or designee shall determine the best

54



8

method for sale or disposal of the surplus property. Such methods shall include internet postings on well-
known sites such as eBay or Craigslist, public bid, public auction or private sale.

8.2 Police Unclaimed Property. In accordance with Wisconsin State Law, the Baraboo Police Department sells
at public auction all lost, abandoned, unclaimed, forfeited or stolen property remaining in the possession
of the Police Department for a period of six months without a lawful claimant, except that unclaimed
bicycles may be auctioned after a three-month waiting period. The Police use the services of a public
internet auction site.

8.3 Real Estate. Whenever City owned property is proposed for sale, there should be an internal review
conducted by the City Administrator and Department Head to determine whether the City may need the
parcel in the future and for what purpose. The City Administrator will then prepare a report for Plan
Commission for review. The Plan Commission will consider the land sale request, along with the
Administrator’s Report on the property, and then prepare a recommendation based on zoning or land use
of the property. The Plan Commission recommendation will then be submitted to the Finance Committee
who shall considers whether an appraisal is necessary, how the property may be disposed of, and then
forwards a recommendation on to the City Council for final action. The City Administrator is responsible
for carrying out the Council’s actions for disposition of the property. Property may be disposed of by public
auction, sealed bids, or by a mutual sales agreement.

SECTION IX
PURCHASING PARAMETERS

9.1 Routine Budgeted Purchases. Routine budgeted purchases made by the City of Baraboo may be grouped
under the following categories:
1. Purchases under $1,000 are authorized by a Department Head without further authorization except

that purchases shall meet the competitive bidding requirements, as outlined in this Policy, and the
item is included in the current budget.

2. Purchases from $1,000 to $10,000 dollars shall be approved prior to ordering by the Finance Director
but only after the Department Head complies with competitive bidding requirements, forwards a
completed a purchase order with copies of bids or quotes received to the Finance Director, and the
item is included in the current budget.

3. Purchases from $10,001 to $50,000 shall be approved prior to ordering by the City Administrator, but
only after the Department Head complies with competitive bidding requirements, forwards a
completed purchase order with copies of bids or quotes received to the Finance Director, and the
item is included in the current budget.

4. Purchases over $50,000 shall be approved prior to ordering by the City Finance/Personnel Committee,
but only after the Department Head complies with competitive bidding requirements, forwards a
completed purchase order with copies of bids or quotes received to the City Finance Director, and the
item is included in the current budget.

9.2. Construction and Public Works Contracts. Construction and public works contracts must be advertised
and bid according to state law.

9.3 Department Head Responsibilities. Except for labor, Department Heads shall request transfers of
budgeted funds in the General Fund within each function code as part of their purchase order requisition
in the “Notes” section. Department Heads are required to monitor total spending for each of their
function budgets and not exceed the total budgeted amount for each function. The total budget for each

55



9

function will be considered the spending parameter for legal notice purposes. These transfers are
approved or denied as part of the purchase order processing according to the thresholds set in this policy
for the Finance Director and/or the City Administrator.

9.4 Unbudgeted or Under-Budgeted Purchases. The Common Council, by way of a recommendation from the
City’s Finance/Personnel Committee, must approve all non-budgeted purchases prior to purchasing. The
Department Head must still comply with competitive bidding requirements and forward a completed
purchase order with copies of bids or quotes received to the City Finance Director.

9.5 Purchase Orders.
1. A Purchase Order is required before a purchase is made to obtain goods and services for the

following:
a. Operating supplies
b. Office supplies
c. Clothing acquisitions
d. Small tools and minor equipment
e. Maintenance and repair supplies
f. Equipment Rentals (requests shall state approximate hours and rental cost per hour)
g. Printing
h. Office furniture or equipment
i. Capital Outlay Items
j. Services not covered by a contract

2. A Purchase Order is not required for the following purchases:

a. Professional contracted service such as legal, architectural, engineering, auditing,
maintenance contracts and janitorial contracts, if the contract has been approved by
the Council.

b. Utility expenditures such as electricity, natural gas, cable TV and telephone service.

c. Payroll and related expenses such as employee hospitalization, insurance payments,
pension payments and mandatory state and federal employee withholding.

d. Routine expenditures such as insurance premiums, and bond payments that have
received prior Council approval and authorization.

e. Reimbursement to citizens for a canceled recreation program.

f. Employee reimbursement for miscellaneous out-of-pocket expenses.

9.6 Purchasing Procedure. The following is the standard procedure to be used for all purchasing
categories after proper authorization is secured. Also see Appendix C – General Purchasing
Workflow for Departments.
1. The Department Head or designee shall follow procedures listed in this policy and the Baraboo

Municipal Code for all purchases.
2. The Department Head or designee will complete a requisition using the Purchase Order

module associated with the City’s accounting software.
3. Request must include required competitive bidding obtained, including quotes or bids

received, and budget amendments or transfer requests to ensure that the purchase will not
exceed the approved budget.

4. The Finance Director will return a response to the Department of purchase who shall include
the PO number on the invoice and packing slip.

5. When the material or service has been received and accepted, the Department Head will

56



10

write the PO on applicable invoices and packing slips to the Finance department for
processing. Invoices shall indicate approval for payment by the Department Head whose
budget accounts will be affected by the payment. If partial shipments are received, the
Department will submit applicable invoices marked in the same manner previously described
to the Finance Department in order to make timely payments.

6. The Finance Department will review the invoices awaiting payment for accuracy, discounts
available, erroneous sales tax charges and may make changes if errors are found.

7. All financial obligations, after administrative review, shall be submitted to the Council for
approval at the regular meetings of the Council. The City Administrator is authorized to
deviate from this point when it is in the best interests of the City to take advantage of
discounts offered by suppliers or contractors, which if not pursued, would result in additional
costs to the municipality. Said payments shall be listed for Council approval also, but the
checks may be released early if the in the best interest of the City.

SECTION X
PROCEDURES FOR CONTRACTED SERVICES AND OTHER CONTRACTED PURCHASES

10.1 Contracts Defined. For purposes of this policy, “contracts” are defined as any document:
1. Requiring signature of statutory officers of the City.
2. Expressly waiving liability of the vendor.
3. Expressing a scope of service to be performed by the vendor.
4. Placing conditions (other than payment) upon the City.
5. Contracts also include lease agreements and memorandum of understandings (MOU’s).

10.2 Competitive Bidding. Department Heads must follow all competitive bidding requirements for
procuring contracted services or purchases. However, a purchase order is not needed in these
instances.

10.3 Signatories. The signatories for the City are the City Clerk, Mayor and the City Administrator, each
of whom are authorized to execute the contracts without additional Council action; two of the
three persons must sign each contract. Department Heads do not have legal standing to enter
into contracts on behalf of the City unless expressly authorized to do so by the City Council.

The City Administrator shall have authority to sign contracts to purchase vehicles or equipment
without an additional signatory provided they are included in the annual budget and meet the
guidelines of the purchasing policy.

10.4 Contract Review. All contracts must be reviewed by the City Attorney as to form prior to the
execution of the contract. Department Heads should submit contracts to the City Attorney as
soon as possible for timely review – ideally at least one business week prior to the execution date.
All questions about whether a document is a contract should be directed to the City Attorney
prior to execution of the document.

SECTION XI
EMERGENCY PURCHASES

11.1 Policy. Emergency purchasing procedures should only be used when normal purchasing channels
are not feasible. Emergency purchases may be made:

57



11

1. When there is a need for immediate delivery of items.
2. To prevent delays in work or construction schedules.
3. When there is an immediate threat to employees, public health or safety, or
4. To meet emergencies rising from unforeseen causes.
5. When there is an emergency declaration.

11.2 Emergency Purchases over $1,000. For emergency purchases over $1,000, the Department Head
shall take the following steps:
1. Notify the City Administrator of the emergency and receive a waiver of the provisions of the

purchasing policy.
2. Complete a purchase requisition after the fact and document emergency status in the “Notes”

section.

SECTION XII
GRANTS AS A REVENUE SOURCE

12.1 Policy. Prior approval from the Finance/Personnel Committee is required when the grant requires
a City matching contribution. Approval must be granted prior to the submission of the grant
application. City matching contributions are defined to include any monetary contribution,
change in service or staffing.

SECTION XIII
DONATION POLICY

13.1 Policy. The purpose of this policy is to establish a formal process for acceptance and
documentation of donations made to the City and to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
accounting procedures. This policy supersedes other departmental policies regarding these
issues. This policy provides guidance when individuals, community groups, and businesses wish
to make donations to the City. This policy also establishes the standards for City employees and
City officials regarding the acceptance of gifts and fundraising activities during the performance
of City business.

13.2 Types of Donations. Donations may be offered in the form of cash, real or personal property.
Designated donations are those donations that the donor specifies for a City department,
location, or purpose. Undesignated donations are those donations that are given to the City for
an unspecified use. Designated donations may only be accepted when they have a purpose
consistent with the City’s goals and objectives and are in the best interest of the City of Baraboo.

13.3 Acceptance of Donations. Based on the value of the donation offered as outlined below,
appropriate City staff shall review every donation and determine if the benefits to be derived
warrant acceptance of the donation. The following points list the threshold amounts for donation
acceptance.

1. Offers of donations of cash or items valued at $5,000 or below shall be considered for
acceptance the Department Head.

2. Offers of donations of cash or items valued more than $5,000 and up to $50,000 shall be
considered for acceptance the City Administrator. All donations over $10,000 shall be
reported to the City Council as informational.

3. Offers of donations of cash or items valued more than $50,000 shall be considered for

58



12

acceptance by the City Council. Conations valued at more than $50,000 require acceptance
through a written agreement consistent with these guidelines and approved by the City
Council.

13.4 Acceptance of Designated Donations. Prior to acceptance of designated donations, appropriate
City staff will review the conditions of any designated donation and determine if the benefits to
be derived warrant acceptance of the donation. Criteria for the evaluation include but are not
limited to:
1. Consideration of an immediate or initial expenditure required in order to accept the donation;
2. The potential and extent of the City’s obligation to maintain, match, or supplement the

donation; and
3. The need for the property, including where and what type of property it is.

13.5 Fundraising. Solicitation of voluntary contributions shall not violate the Code of Ethics for local
officials under Wisconsin Statutes and City of Baraboo Code of Ordinances. In addition, no
solicitation shall state or imply that a donation will influence or affect how the party is treated by
City officer and employees.
1. All fundraising and solicitation efforts shall be consistent with the missions, goals, and

mandates of the City. Solicitation for business, commercial, or personal reasons by City
employees not directly related to City operations is prohibited. All donated funds or property
become public property upon acceptance and shall be used or expended for public purposes.

2. All significant fundraising and solicitation efforts, as reasonably defined by the City
Administrator, which support City programs and projects shall be authorized by the City
Council after prior review and recommendation by the appropriate oversight Committee,
Commission or Board. Council authorization may include continuing authorization or
authorization for a one-time only project.

13.6 Accounting. Following donation acceptance, the Department shall obtain written approval of
Finance Director or delegate regarding procedures to account for the donation. Said approval
shall include proper accounting protocols for fundraising revenues and expenditures to be
coordinated through the office of the Finance Director. No Department shall be allowed to
maintain a checking or savings account for fundraising activities that tis separate from the City
accounting system. The Finance Director shall also be responsible for ensuring donated property
is properly insured upon acceptance of said property.

13.7 Status of Donated Property. All donated property given to the City of Baraboo becomes the
property of the City to oversee, maintain, and manage and may be used in the complete discretion
of the City, unless the parameters of the donation specifically require otherwise. The City will
decide when changes shall be made to any facility or materials, with no guarantee of donated
items being retained. If personal property becomes obsolete, the City will attempt, if possible, to
find another use for the property. The City is not required to maintain the property beyond its
useful life. The City does not guarantee future funding for repair, maintenance, use or
replacement of donated items.

13.8 Library Donations. All donations to the library are governed by its Gift Policy adopted November
19, 2013, and as amended.

SECTION XIV
MISCELLANEOUS CONSIDERATIONS

59



13

14.1 Encumbrances and Financial Recordkeeping. Encumbrances are commitments related to
purchase orders or contracts that have been issued, but for which no goods or services have yet
been received. Encumbrances are recorded as they occur for budgetary control purposes.

The issuance of a purchase order or the signing of a contract creates an encumbrance of the
amount required to be paid during the current year. This amount is no longer available for
obligation or expenditure, unless the purchase order or contract is canceled. Encumbrance
records shall be maintained by the City Finance Director.

14.2 Non-Budgeted Items. Purchases that have not been provided for in the current budget will
require Council approval through budget transfers or amendments. The Department Head shall
notify the City Finance Director and provide written documentation regarding the expenditure.
This information will be provided to the Finance Committee for a recommendation to Council
concerning purchase approval and necessary budgetary transfers or amendments.

14.3 Insurance Claim and Settlement Proceeds. Purchases resulting from an accident or loss covered
by the City's insurance policy or legal settlement will be treated as non-budgeted items. Although
money will be received from the claim or settlement, this is deposited into an "Insurance
Proceeds" revenue account. Purchases will be expended from the appropriate capital outlay or
maintenance account, hence necessitating a budget amendment.

14.4 Property Room Surplus. Police Department property room surplus items shall be disposed of at
the discretion of the Police Chief or designee and pursuant to State Statute. Any proceeds from
the sale of said items shall be entered into the Police Property Surplus budget.

14.5 Local Merchants. The City will give utmost consideration to local merchants taking price and
service into account.

14.6 Conflict Of Interest. Employees of the municipality are regulated by §946.13, Wis. Stat., and
§1.77, City Code, concerning conflicts of interest. The statutory amount that an employee can
earn directly or indirectly per 12-month period from the City for doing contracted work for the
City is $15,000.00. For lesser amounts, it shall be unethical for any City employee to participate
directly or indirectly in a purchase or contract when the City employee or any member of the
employee's immediate family has a financial interest pertaining to the contract or purchase unless
the contract has been competitively bid or the service is highly specialized and only one supplier
is available, and the employee has followed the procedure set forth in §1.77, City Code,.

14.7 New Vendors. New vendors must be approved and created by the Finance Department prior to
the purchase being initiated to satisfy internal control procedures. The Purchase Order Software
will not complete the requisition process until the vendor has been created. To facilitate approval,
complete the New Vendor Request Form and submit it to the Finance Department.

60



14

61



15

PURCHASING WORKFLOW FOR CITY DEPARTMENTS

City departments may use this as a general guide for purchases, but this is intended to be a summary only
and does not supersede the material contained in the Purchasing Policy.

PURCHASE UNDER $1,000
1. Department verifies purchase is within budget or obtains approval from Council via

Finance/Personnel Committee.
2. Department should competitively bid, but not required.
3. Department determines if purchase will require a contract.

If YES:
a. Submit vendor’s contract to City Attorney for review or contact City Attorney for

contract drafting.
b. Contract is signed by Finance Director, City Administrator or Mayor (2 of 3) AFTER the

vendor has signed.
c. Original copy of contract goes to City Clerk for filing in the Vault.

If NO:
a. Department places order.
b. Invoice must be entered into MiViewPoint and original placed in basket in Finance

Dept.

PURCHASE BETWEEN $1,000 - $10,000
1. Department verifies purchase is within budget or obtains approval from Council via

Finance/Personnel Committee.
2. Department competitively bids for the purchase pursuant to Purchasing Policy.

3. Department completes purchase order requisition and submits copies of bids/quotes to
Finance Department (done in MiViewPoint).

4. Finance Director approves purchase order requisition.
4. Department determines if purchase will require a contract.

If YES:
a. Submit vendor’s contract to City Attorney for review or contact City Attorney for

contract drafting.
b. Contract is signed by Finance Director, City Administrator or Mayor (2 of 3) AFTER the

vendor has signed.
c. Original copy of contract goes to City Clerk for filing in the Vault.

If NO:
a. Department places order.
b. Invoice must be entered into MiViewPoint and original placed in basket in Finance

Dept.

PURCHASE BETWEEN $10,001 - $50,000
1. Department verifies purchase is within budget or obtains approval from Council via

Finance/Personnel Committee.
2. Department competitively bids for the purchase pursuant to Purchasing Policy.
3. Department completes purchase order requisition and submits copies of bids/quotes to Finance

Department (done in MiViewPoint).
4. Finance Director approves purchase order requisition.

62



16

5. City Administrator approves purchase order requisition.
6.. Department determines if purchase will require a contract.

If YES:
a. Submit vendor’s contract to City Attorney for review or contact City Attorney for

contract drafting.
b. Contract is signed by Finance Director, City Administrator or Mayor (2 of 3) AFTER the

vendor has signed.
c. Original copy of contract goes to City Clerk for filing in the Vault.

If NO:
a. Department places order.
b. When Department receives bill/invoice, this must entered into MiViewPoint

PURCHASE $50,001+
1. Department verifies purchase is within budget or obtains approval from Council via

Finance/Personnel Committee.
2. Department competitively bids for the purchase pursuant to Purchasing Policy.
3. Department completes purchase order requisition and submits copies of bids/quotes to Finance

Department (done in MiViewPoint).
4. Finance Director approves purchase order requisition.
5. City Administrator approves purchase order requisition.
6. Purchase Order requisition requires approval from Common Council ONLY IF the item was not

previously approved by Council.
7. Department determines if purchase will require a contract.

If YES:
a. Submit vendor’s contract to City Attorney for review or contact City Attorney

for contract drafting.
b. Contract is signed by Finance Director, City Administrator or Mayor (2 of 3)

AFTER the vendor has signed.
c. Original copy of contract goes to City Clerk for filing in the Vault.

If NO:
a. Department places order.
b. Invoice must be entered into MiViewPoint and original placed in basket in

Finance Dept.

63



S:\Council\Resolutions\4-9-19 reso approval of City Technology policy.docx

NBR - 3

RESOLUTION NO. 2018- Dated: April 9, 2019
The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background The policy has been reviewed by Information Tech Committee, the Department Heads and the
City Attorney. This new policy will consolidate numerous individual policies and those which related to
technology that are contained in the City’s Employee Handbook.

Sauk County and the City have updated the existing technical services agreement that allows the City to
purchase services from Sauk MIS department for the City’s computer network and security systems. As part of
this update the City is also submitting to the City Council a new Technology Use Policy for adoption. This
policy lays out the rules for properly operating the City’s computer systems and the way employees use those
systems.

Note: ( one) [ x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

Resolved by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

To adopt the City of Baraboo Information Technology Use Policy.

Offered by: Finance/Personnel Comt. Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

64



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

Draft - City of Baraboo
TECHNOLOGY USE POLICY

City of Baraboo - Information Technology Committee

This document serves as a reference guide to the policies of City of Baraboo
Government regarding the use of City information technology resources

Review Date Revisions

Information Technology
Committee Review

??/??/18

Attorney Review March 4, 2019

Administrative
Committee Review

Council Review and Approval

65



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

1) INTRODUCTION. In order to maximize the benefits of the information technology resources of City of
Baraboo, the IT Committee has developed this Technology Use Policy to serve as a guide for City
employees and elected officials who utilize the City’s technology resources. The IT Committee’s
guiding principles are:

a) To support City operations and facilitate the continuous improvement of business processes,
through the provision of knowledge, tools and support services to the information technology
users of the City.

b) Provide quality services and solutions.
c) Be professional and customer focused – to our citizens, City employees, and business partners.
d) Maximize our information technology investment by leveraging our solutions and services to

the fullest extent possible.
e) Promote the standardization of technology solutions, whenever feasible.
f) Revise business processes to achieve maximum benefit from available application packages.

2) POLICY GOALS.
a) Provide the capability to improve the processes of City government, through the provision

of secure and effective technology solutions to City departments, other agencies and the
public.

b) Ensure the availability and security of our networks and information.
c) Enable the ease of obtaining and sharing of data.
d) Achieve IT standardization, where feasible.
e) Expedite the recovery of critical systems.
f) Minimize the disruption to user access for system maintenance.
g) Provide quality, professional services.

3) UPDATES TO THIS POLICY. The IT Committee will make minor updates to this policy as needed
and will communicate updates to all Department Heads and IT contacts, as appropriate.
Substantial policy changes require the approval of the Common Council by way of the
Finance/Personnel Committee. The IT Committee will also provide access to this Policy on the City
website.

4) DEFINITIONS. As used in this Policy, the following words and terms shall have the following meanings:
a) Attachments – Files created in other applications (such as a word processor or spreadsheet)

that are incorporated into an e-mail message.
b) Blog – Publically accessible web forum that contains an online personal journal with reflections,

comments, and opinions; which often solicits commentary from readers or provides hyperlinks
to other online resources.

c) Blogging – The act of updating or contributing to a blog.
d) City – The City of Baraboo.
e) Designated network storage location – A network folder, database, file share, inbox, mapped

drive, cloud storage or other network storage provided for the purpose of storing electronic
information on a secure computer network. Such locations are secured and regularly backed up
to protect against data loss Local device storage is not a Designated Network Storage Location

f) E-mail – An electronically transmitted message, along with any attachments and any
information appended by the e-mail system.

g) E-mail system – Computer hardware and software system that allows personal computer users
to send, receive and store messages, documents and files with other individuals or groups of
people over an internal network or the Internet.

66



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

h) Encryption – A means of coding messages so they appear to be random characters. Encryption
has two benefits. First, it prevents disclosure of sensitive information to unauthorized third
parties. Second, encryption allows for authentication of the information sent.

i) Flash drive – Removable storage media which plugs into a USB interface on a PC.
j) Freeware – Programming that is offered at no cost.
k) Instant message – An electronic form of instant communication whereby users communicate

using text messages displayed on their computer monitors.
l) Information system – All computer hardware (computer, servers, printers, etc.) software and

connecting devices interconnected for the purpose of storage, retrieval and sharing of
electronic information.

m) Internet – The World Wide Web, which is a worldwide computer network.
n) Internet browser – An application which displays Web Pages and other information found on

the Internet. Internet Explorer, Mozilla Firefox and Google Chrome are commonly used internet
browsers.

o) Internet Service Provider (ISP) – And entity that provides internet access, typically for a fee.
p) IT – Information Technology.
q) IT Committee – Label referring to the employees of the City who serve on the Information

Technology Committee. The Committee members are appointed by the City Administrator. The
Committee may also include employees of the Sauk Co. MIS.

r) Malware – Malicious program or code intended to do damage to any part of the Information
System

s) MDM (Mobile Device Management) – Software systems used to secure mobile devices and
enforce policy through remotely managed device control.

t) Mobile device – Any device used to access City’s information resources from outside of the
City’s secure facilities or via any network connection other than City’s private, secure network
facilities.

u) Network file system – A managed file system, on file servers for the storage of data, usually
designated drive letter, typically H: or S:

v) Personal device or personal mobile device – Any device not owned or provided to the
employee or contractor by City.

w) Protected Information - Any information that is considered private, confidential, proprietary or
sensitive for which access or release is restricted by policy, rule, regulation or law.

x) Public Resource – Includes not only City equipment, hardware, software or tangible articles,
but also the employee’s time expended while on duty with the City.

y) Removable Storage Media – Any storage device that is portable and can be used to transfer
information from one computer to another (flash drives, SD cards, USB disk drives, etc.).

z) Risk – Those factors that could affect confidentiality, availability, and integrity of City of
Baraboo's key information assets and systems

aa) Sauk Co. MIS – Stands for Sauk County Management Information Systems Department.
bb) Shared folder – A network storage location shared by a group of users on the network. Typically

designated by the drive letter “S.”
cc) Shareware – Software that is distributed free on a "trial basis" with the understanding that the

user may need to pay for it later. Some software developers offer a shareware version of their
program with a built-in expiration date (e.g., after 30 days, the user can no longer get access to
the program). Other shareware (sometimes called “liteware,” which provides the same visual
interface, icons and components of its full software counterpart) is offered with certain
capabilities disabled as an enticement to buy the complete version of the program.

67



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

dd) Social network – Publically accessible website or application which allows individual to create
profiles for the purpose of meeting and interacting with each other.

ee) Social networking – The practice of using social network applications.
ff) Social media – An application designed to facilitate social networking (synonymous with Social

Network).
gg) Standard applications – Those applications provided by the IT Committee to all computer users

within the City’s information system.
hh) System Access Form or System Access Authorization – A form available through Seamless Docs

that is available to department heads and their designees that must be used to request system
access permissions be granted to a user or updated.

ii) URL – Uniform resource locator, commonly called an “internet address.” It is the textual address
of a particular website or internet resource.

jj) Users – Information system end users including City employees, system vendors, consultants
and public users.

kk) Virus – A malicious computer program designed to execute and replicate itself without the
computer user’s knowledge typically by attaching itself to other programs.

5) SYSTEM ACCESS, SECURITY AND USE. Access to computer resources is provided to users for the
purpose of advancing the governmental functions of the City. This access imposes certain
responsibilities and obligations on all users. Users are subject to all applicable City policies as well as
local, state and federal laws.

a) City Property. All data, e-mail, e-mail attachments, documents and other electronic information
within the City’s information system are the property of City.

b) Department Specific Policies. A Department Head may provide for a stricter policy of
electronic communication and information systems use than is set forth in this Policy.

c) Expectation of Privacy. THERE IS AND SHOULD BE NO EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY OR
CONFIDENTIALITY WHEN USING THE CITY’S SYSTEMS. As provided for in this Policy and pursuant
to any applicable local, state and federal laws, the City has the capability and the right to view
data and e-mail at any time for City purposes or security. This Policy does not supersede any
state or federal laws regarding privacy, confidentiality and appropriate use.

d) Investigations. As a user of the City’s technology resources, you agree to cooperate with any
investigation regarding the use of your computer and your activities associated with technology
resources.

e) System Access and Permissions. Access to City systems is granted at the request of a
Department Head or their designee. Department Heads or designees wishing to obtain access,
or update system access permissions for an employee, must fill out a System Access Form. The
Form should be submitted at least two weeks prior to the time at which the access will be
required.

f) System User Accounts. Users are granted access to the City’s network resources through
password protected individual user accounts. Revisions to user profiles or account permissions
must be approved by the user’s Department Head or designee and must be requested in
advance, via a System Access Form.

g) User Account Responsibilities. The following apply to all user accounts on any City system:
1. Users are prohibited from using any account name other than those they are assigned or

given authorization to use by their Department Head or designee.
2. Department Heads or designees wishing to access a particular user account must request

such access from the City Administrator.

68



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

3. Users are responsible for all inquiries, entries, and changes made to any of the City’s
information systems using their username and password.

4. Users must not:
a) Leave usernames and passwords where someone else may see/find them.
b) Use their username and password to log other individuals into the system (unless

required for training purposes or addressing system issues and they watch them
use the system).

c) Use the username and password of others, or any information system logged in
under another username and password.

d) Store passwords electronically unless they are encrypted and password protected,
nor written down unless they are locked and accessible only to the owner.

h) Password Requirements. When supported by the technology, the City’s information system
configures systems to enforce minimum password requirements based on the security
requirements of the particular system. For all other systems, users are encouraged to utilize
these minimum requirements:

1. All passwords must be a minimum of eight characters alphanumeric.
2. Users are required to change passwords at a minimum of once every 90 days.
3. User passwords are not to be shared except for problem resolution or troubleshooting

with their Department Head or Sauk County MIS staff.
i) Permissions and Privileges.

1. The IT Committee will periodically review user permissions and remove permissions no
longer in use or required by an individual user.

2. Department Heads or their designees are responsible to advise the IT Committee and the
City Administrator and Sauk County MIS of changes to an employee’s job responsibilities
that impact the individuals need for system privileges by completing a System Access
Form.

j) System Security. It is the responsibility of every user of the City’s information systems to ensure
the confidentiality and integrity of the information owned or managed by City. Users must
adhere of the following:

1. All users are responsible for practicing precautions to protect the confidentiality,
integrity, and availability of Protected Information at all times.

2. Users are required to monitor workstations and take measures to prevent unauthorized
access and theft.

3. When approached by an individual that may be able to view Protected Information to
which they are not authorized, users are to minimize the system display or otherwise
secure it so that the individual is not able to view the Protected Information.

k) Workstations and Information Systems.
1. Workstations and information systems are to be used for authorized business purposes,

however users may utilize workstations for personal use if it does not interfere with the
City’s business needs and pursuant to the terms contained in this Policy and the Employee
Handbook.

2. The City maintains security software to block malicious web sites. In addition, users must
avoid using sites that are not known to be safe and substantially related to their job
responsibilities.

3. Workstations are to be placed in secure areas away from public view and display screens
are positioned to minimize unauthorized viewing and/or access, whenever feasible.

4. Software programs and applications must be licensed. The IT Committee maintains
licensing information for all City standard applications.

69



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

5. Users with access to download data are responsible for managing and protecting it from
unauthorized access, disclosure, and theft.

6. Removing the City’s workstations from the premises:
a) Laptops, notebooks, and smart phones may be taken offsite by employees or

contractors, when approved by the City Administrator, as needed to perform their
assigned job responsibilities.

b) Department Heads must maintain a list of individuals authorized to take equipment
offsite.

7. Users Must Not:
a) Allow any other individual to use any of the City’s workstations or information

systems that are not authorized by the City to utilize them.
b) Download any software to a workstation without prior approval from their

Department Head or designee or the IT Committee. The IT Committee may remove
unapproved software without advance notice to the user.

c) Download any Protected Information from the City’s information systems to store
or use it on any other system or device, other than the device authorized for their
use by the IT Committee.

d) Open any suspicious emails or suspicious website links in emails. If uncertain an
email or website is suspicious, don’t open it and notify your Department Head or
designee.

e) Connect any workstation to the City’s network or utilize information systems or
workstations not owned by City, unless the IT Committee evaluates and approves
such use.

f) Use tools or techniques to break/exploit or disable security measures.
g) Change operating system configurations, upgrade existing operating systems, or

install new operating systems on City equipment.
h) Connect to unauthorized networks through the City’s systems or devices.

l) Acceptable Use. Acceptable use is defined as that which is lawful, ethical, reflects honesty, and
shows restraint in the consumption of shared resources. The primary purpose for using the
City’s technology resources is to perform the governmental functions of the City. This includes,
but is not limited to:

1. Communication with, and providing service to, members of the public.
2. Conducting the business of the City department or unit.
3. Communicating with other employees for work-related purposes.
4. Gathering information relevant to job duties or to expand expertise.
5. Content created should be accurate. Users should use the same care in drafting e-mail

and other electronic documents as they would for any other written communication.
Anything created on the computer has the potential to be reviewed by others. User data
and documents are considered City assets and should be treated as such. For the purpose
of protecting these assets, users should store all data files on the network file systems
provided, as these files are backed up daily.

m) Prohibited Use. Employees are prohibited from engaging in the following activities, with the
exception of those activities required in the fulfillment of an individual’s job responsibilities for
which they have received prior approval by their Department Head or designee and the IT
Committee, as applicable:

1. Monopolizing systems.
2. Overloading networks with excessive data.
3. Wasting computer time, connection time, disk space or other resources.

70



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

4. Use which exceeds “Limited Personal Use,” as set forth in Section 5(l) of this policy.
5. Use technology resources for personal gain, political purposes, or to support or

advocate for non-City related business.
6. Create, distribute, upload or download any disruptive, abusive, harassing, threatening,

or offensive messages including offensive comments or graphics about sex, race,
gender, color, disabilities, age, sexual orientation, pornography, religious beliefs,
political beliefs, or national origin.

7. Use technology resources for illegal or unlawful purposes or to support or assist such
purposes.

8. Use technology resources for wagering, betting or selling chances or to support or assist
such purposes.

9. Use technology resources for personal long distance telephone calls.
10. Attempt to circumvent or subvert system or network security measures, provide

internal network access to any unauthorized users or use your account to gain
unauthorized access to other networks and systems.

11. Mount an attack on the security of any system or attempt to hack or introduce viruses
into any system.

12. Use the network in a manner that may disrupt network users, services or equipment.
Disruptions include, but are not limited to, distribution of unsolicited advertising,
propagation of computer viruses or malware, and sustained high volume network
traffic.

13. Intercept network traffic for any purpose unless engaged in authorized network
administrative duties.

14. Install encryption software on any City computers without first obtaining written
permission from your department head and the IT Committee. Users may not use
encryption keys or encryption technology that is unknown to their department head or
the IT Committee.

15. Engage in online fundraising.
16. Engage in mass-mailing, “everyone e-mails,” or send City-wide messages without

department head, the IT Committee or City Administrator approval, as applicable.
17. Send or forward mailings about viruses or other warnings about outside computer

attacks to users other than their Department Head or designee or the IT Committee
(these are almost always a hoax and should not be propagated).

18. Initiate or forward chain letters by e-mail.
19. Spoof (disguise) your identity or send anonymous e-mail or send e-mail under another

employee’s name.
20. Forge header information or any use that does not appropriately and accurately identify

the sender.
21. Download any non-standard or non-business related files or software, including

"freeware" and/or "shareware" programs unless previously approved by the IT
Committee.

22. Load personal ISP email accounts on City owned equipment.
23. Disburse or share any City data not authorized by their department head or designee

and relevant to the job being performed, or any data considered protected, unless
expressly authorized to do so in the performance of one’s job responsibilities.

24. Make or use illegal copies of copyrighted software or other mediums, store such copies
on City systems, or transmit them over the City network.

25. Any activity not deemed to be in the best interest of the City.

71



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

26. Any activity that compromises the security or integrity of the City’s information system.
27. Any activity that violates any City ordinance, including the City of Baraboo Code of

Ethics, Federal, State or local laws.
n) Informing Employees. It is the responsibility of the Department Head or designee to be aware

of how the City’s information system is being utilized by his/her employees and ensure that
employees are periodically informed and aware of the IT Committee policies. If a Department
Head or designee suspects any employee is violating this Policy, they should contact the City
Administrator.

o) Limited Personal Use.
1. Authorized users may use the internet and e-mail for limited personal use. This is defined

as any personally initiated computer based activity (email, internet browsing, etc.).
2. Limited personal use is a privilege, not a right, and may be limited or removed at any time

and is subject to the terms and conditions of this Policy.
3. The City does not accept liability for any loss or damage suffered by an employee as a

result of using the City internet connection for personal use.
4. Improper personal use of the City’s information systems could result in disciplinary action.
5. Occasional, limited, appropriate personal use of the computer system is permitted,

provided such use does not:
a) Interfere with the user’s work performance.
b) Interfere with the normal operation of your department or work unit.
c) Interfere with any other user’s work performance or have a negative impact on

overall employee productivity.
d) Have an undue impact on the operation of City systems.
e) Have a negative impact on the public’s perception of work duties.
f) Cause any additional expense or load to the City or department.
g) Compromise a department or the City in any way.
h) Engage in concerted work activities of any kind.
i) Violate any other provision of this policy, or any other policy, guideline, law,

regulation, or standard.
j) Violate departmental policies or standards of an employee’s department. In limiting

personal use, the City expects employees to exercise the same good judgment that
they would use in all work situations regarding personal activities.

p) System Monitoring. All computer applications, programs, data and information, created or
stored on City information systems is the property of City. The City may monitor this information
without prior notice. The City reserves the right to access any information stored, created or
received on the City’s information systems. The reservation of this right is to ensure that public
resources are not being wasted, the City’s business is carried out and to ensure the City’s
information systems are operating as efficiently as possible. Monitoring or access may be
exercised under any of the following circumstances:

1. Performance testing or problem solving purposes.
2. As necessary in the course of an investigation for possible violation of City policies.
3. If there is reasonable suspicion that a user has committed, or is committing a crime

against the City or for which the City could be liable.
4. Random or automated monitoring to ensure that content is in compliance with the

business’s established policies.
5. A request for monitoring made by appropriate authority.
6. When required to do so by law.
7. To perform a task or project in an employee’s absence.

72



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

6) ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION: E-MAIL. Electronic communications provide a fast and efficient
method of communicating. The City’s information system provides such capabilities for the purpose
of conducting City business. Upon Department Head or designee’s request, the City will authorize an
e-mail account, which includes an internet e-mail address, to users. In addition, a Department Head
or designee may require an instant messaging account for employees with an authorized email
account on the City’s email system.

a) Account Creation and Administration.
1. E-mail account creations or removals must be requested by a Department Head or

designee two weeks in advance with a System Access Form.
2. Changes to e-mail accounts require two weeks notification and Department Head or City

Administrator approval.
3. With the City Administrator’s approval, user accounts will be deleted after the

termination of employment. However, an employee may request their user account be
maintained and e-mail forwarded for up to 60 days, subject to the City Administrator’s
sole discretion, after which the user account will be deleted.

b) Limited Personal Use. While it is the intention of the IT Committee that the e-mail system be
used for City business, limited personal use, as defined in Section 5(l), above, is permitted,
provided such usage is deemed appropriate by the individual’s supervisor and does not impede
any individual’s ability to perform their job or violate any of the other provisions of this policy.

c) Account Use and Security.
1. Inappropriate use of the e-mail system may result in disciplinary action up to and

including termination.
2. E-mail accounts may be used only by the intended user. Use by anyone other than the

named account’s owner is not permitted except as provided by subsection (e), below.
3. It is the account owner’s responsibility to maintain proper password protection and take

reasonable precautions to prevent unauthorized use when the employee is absent for an
unanticipated or extended period of time.

4. Users are cautioned to remember that unencrypted, unsecured email may be
intercepted, forwarded and altered.

5. City e-mail addresses are not to be used as contact addresses for solicitations, account
bids, chat rooms, social networking, blogs, subscriptions, etc., not related to City business.

d) E-mail Records Retention.
1. E-mail and attached documents are the property of the City.
2. Many e-mail messages represent temporary communications that are non-vital and may

be discarded routinely. However, depending on the content of the e-mail message, it may
be subject to the City’s records retention policies and ordinances. E-mail falling under this
category must be retained as required pursuant to City's information practices ordinance
and shall only be destroyed in accordance with that authority. E-mail users must adhere
to the City’s records retention ordinance. Refer to Section 1.60 of the City of Baraboo
Code of Ordinances for more information.

3. Email messages may be automatically archived and users are cautioned to be aware that
deleting an e-mail message from a mailbox does not delete all copies of the message. The
City reserves the right to establish policy that e-mail messages will be retained on the
City’s e-mail server for finite period of time and then deleted.

e) Monitoring & Access.
1. It is not the practice of the City to routinely monitor email activity or content. As

necessary, Department Heads or designees, the City Attorney, the City Administrator, IT

73



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

staff (including Sauk Co. MIS) and consultants, and law enforcement may access e-mail
accounts for business purposes. Such purposes may include but are not limited to:

a) System maintenance.
b) Troubleshooting.
c) Performance monitoring.
d) In order to fulfill records request.
e) In the course of a legal or internal investigation.

2. Employee’s e-mail accounts may not be monitored for disciplinary purposes without first
contacting the City Administrator and City Attorney.

3. To ensure the continuity of operations, managers and supervisors may, with department
head approval, request access to an employee’s e-mail if the employee is on leave of
absence, extended leave or terminated.

f) Off-Site Account Access (Web Mail).
1. All email accounts are setup to allow the user off-site access through a web browser.
2. Passwords are synced with the City’s network.
3. Off-site access is for use only while performing work-related tasks.
4. Access may be terminated during periods of extended leave.
5. Off-site access to an e-mail account does not constitute approval for compensation for

work performed from outside of City premises. For non-exempt employees, prior
approval from your department head is required for compensation.

7) INTERNET USE.
a) Internet Accessibility. The internet is a powerful tool for research, procurement, and

communication. The City will provide internet connectivity to users who require it to effectively
perform their duties for City. Internet accessibility for individuals may be requested by a
Department Head or designee via a System Access Form and should be requested two weeks in
advance.

1. Only the individual(s) assigned or authorized to a computer workstation may access the
internet from that station. Use by other individuals to access the internet constitutes a
violation of this policy, unless approved by the individual’s department head or designee.

2. Individuals who have been granted internet access are responsible for appropriate use. It
is the intention of the City that internet access is provided for the purpose of performing
City business, although limited personal use, as discussed in Section 5(l), above, will be
allowed.

3. All internet activity on the City’s network is logged by URL. The City may use this
information in the assessment of system performance, troubleshooting and monitoring
of appropriate use.

4. The City reserves the right to block access to any internet site deemed to be malicious or
in conflict with any City policy.

5. Inappropriate use of the internet, as defined in Section 5, above, may result in loss of
internet access and disciplinary action up to and including termination.

b) Safety and Security. Use of the internet incurs certain risks and it is up to the user to exhibit
caution and good judgment when accessing internet content. Some internet websites are
infected with viruses and malware, which may be downloaded to the user’s workstation
without any interaction from the user. The following guidelines should be adhered to when
browsing from City computers:
1. Avoid unknown websites.
2. Do not install or activate any unexpected installations or downloads.

74



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

3. Do not respond to messages or click on links from unknown sources
4. Contact your Department Head and/or the Sauk Co. MIS Helpdesk (see Section 11, below)

immediately if you encounter an unexpected or suspicious download or virus warning.
c) Objectionable Content. A wide variety of information is available on the internet. Some

individuals may find this information offensive or otherwise objectionable. Users should be
aware that although the City may utilize filtering to avoid objectionable material, it does not
have complete control over the Internet and can therefore not be responsible for the content
of information available.

d) Blogging. The use of blogs on City computers is discouraged unless such use is necessary in the
performance of an individual’s job responsibilities. Blogging activities on City computers are
subject to all provisions of this Policy and all other policies of the City.

e) Instant Messaging and Chat Rooms. Users may only engage in chat rooms, instant messenger
communications or newsgroups if it is required as a part of their job requirements and has been
approved by their Department Head or designee. Questions about these services should be
referred to the IT Committee.

f) Social Networking and Social Media. Unless specifically required in the performance of an
individual’s work activities, social networking and the use of social network sites is prohibited
on City systems. These sites often present security risks due to malware and computer viruses
If an employee does access social network sites for authorized purposes, in addition to the
terms and conditions set forth elsewhere in this policy, they are subject to the terms and
conditions found in the City of Baraboo Social Media Use Policy.

g) Use of Fee Sites. Users who access any internet sites for which a charge or a fee is involved,
without the written consent of their Department Head or designee, may be held responsible for
any and all payments associated with visiting that site.

h) Use during Non-Work Hours. Access to the internet during a user’s non-work hours via City
equipment requires adhere to all provisions of this Policy and cannot conflict with the best
interests of the City.

i) High Bandwidth Applications. Accessing entertainment, games and other websites that use
significant bandwidth could jeopardize network speed for other business uses and should be
avoided. This includes websites that broadcast radio, TV, video, or any streaming technology,
and other similar high-bandwidth sites that are not related to City business.

j) Suspension of Internet Access Privileges. User internet access is at the discretion of a
Department Head or designee and may be suspended at any time. Use may also be suspended
in the event of a continued breach of this or any other policies through the internet usage of a
specific user. In addition to the suspension of internet access, improper use may result in
disciplinary action up to and including termination.

8) NETWORK COMPUTER USE. The City’s information network provides connectivity for City
departments to centrally managed systems. These systems provide communications, data security,
storage and external connectivity via the internet.

a) Network Storage. Network user accounts provide access to designated network storage
locations. Each individual account is assigned a “Home” network folder, designated by the drive
letter H:, which is not shared with other users; and a “Shared” network folder, designated by
the drive letter S:, which is shared with other users within the department or business unit. In
addition, other storages locations (drives) may be designated for application specific storage.

b) Data Backup. The City will provide regular backups of all data stored to the City’s designated
network storage locations. These backups provide the capability to restore a system or file share
in the event of loss due to device malfunction, file corruption or catastrophic system failure. To

75



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

ensure the successful backup of all critical data files must be closed and available to the backup
system.

1. All users should close all files and log off at the end of the day.
2. Files should only be stored to designated network storage locations and not be stored on

the desktop workstations local storage devices.
3. Data stored on laptops for mobile use should be synchronized to system or network

storage regularly.
4. Requests for the restoration of accidentally deleted or corrupted files from backup should

be made to the Sauk Co. MIS Helpdesk (see Section 11, below).
5. Deleted files are temporarily retained in the backup system, as determined by the IT

Committee.
6. Backup copies do not provide permanent retention and are not suitable for proper

records retention.
c) Attachment of Equipment or Other Devices. Prior approval from your department head must

be obtained before any equipment is attached to the City network or to a City computer (these
provisions do not apply to the City’s public Wi-Fi network). When using the City’s private
network resources, users may not:

1. Connect any networking devices to the City network.
2. Make connection to individual servers / desktops / workstations for remote access

purposes, without prior approval from the user’s supervisor and the IT Committee.
3. Allow non-City agencies or entities to access the City network without prior IT Committee

approval.
d) Removable Storage Media. The use of removable storage media presents a risk for the loss of

data or the accidental release of confidential or private information. Removable storage devices
also provide a vehicle through which computer viruses may be spread. Users who have a need
to use these devices are cautioned to do so in a manner that reduces these risks and adheres
to the following guidelines:

1. Use must be approved by the user’s Department Head and the IT Committee.
2. It is recommended that the device be obtained through your Department Head.
3. Only non-confidential or public information may be stored on such devices, unless the

device is encrypted, password protected and the user has obtained authorization from
their department head or designee and the IT Committee.

4. User accepts the responsibility of protecting any information stored on the device.
5. Devices used to store City information should not be used for any other purpose.
6. Lost devices should be immediately reported to the user’s Department Head and the IT

Committee.
e) Unauthorized Software. Use of unauthorized software may degrade the performance of the

City's systems, create security risks, reduce employee productivity and expose the City to
copyright liability.

1. Users are prohibited from installing applications, plugins, etc., on their City workstation
without receiving approval from the IT Committee prior to installation.

2. Software installations not approved prior to the instillation by the IT Committee may be
considered unauthorized and will be subject to removal.

3. The IT Committee will immediately remove any unauthorized software in use, when
encountered, unless the software has a legitimate business purpose for the user, is
appropriately licensed and approved by the user’s supervisor. The IT Committee will work
with the Department Head to address any legitimate business need before removal.

76



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

4. It is the responsibility of all users to comply with maintaining City standards and
protecting computing resources by not downloading or installing unauthorized software.

5. According to the US Copyright Law, illegal reproduction of software can be subject to civil
damages of as much as $150,000 per work copied, and criminal penalties, including fines
and imprisonment. Users who make, acquire or use unauthorized copies of computer
software shall be disciplined as appropriate under the circumstances. Such discipline may
include termination. The City does not condone the illegal duplication of any copyright
protected material.

9) MOBILE DEVICES
a) Use During Working Hours. The use of mobile devices in the workplace can be distracting and

disruptive. Employees using approved mobile devices in the work place are required to do so in
a manner that is respectful and non-disruptive.

1. The City discourages the non-work related use of personal mobile devices during working
hours.

2. Employees are asked keep personal devices off or silenced and limit their use to breaks,
outside of common work areas, and are to avoid inappropriate discussions and
interrupting or distracting others

3. Each department may have its own policy related to these devices. Employees should
consult their Department Head, manager or supervisor for additional guidance.

b) Approved Use.
1. Employees wishing to have mobile access to the City’s information systems must have a

legitimate business need for such access and obtain approval from their manger or
supervisor. Mobile access to the City’s information systems must also be reviewed and
approved by the City Administrator and a Mobile Device Authorization Request Form is
to be submitted to the IT Committee describing the work related need and the
information to be accessed.

2. Approval and work related use of an authorized mobile device is subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in the City of Baraboo Employee Policy and Procedure Handbook as
well as in this Policy.

3. Generally, access to City information will require a City issued device. However, under
some circumstances, when information to be accessed is not considered to be Protected
Information, a personal mobile device may be configured for system access. This is
provided that such device may be configured to meet all requirements for mobile access
set forth by City policies, subject to review and approval by the IT Committee. Any and all
mobile access to the City’s information resources is subject to these terms and any other
related City policies.

c) Appropriate Use of City Owned Devices. Mobile devices used to conduct the business of the City
are subject to same appropriate use guidelines as any other computing device. Additionally, the
following shall apply to mobile devices owned by City of Baraboo:

1. The City Administrator may authorize employees to use a City owned mobile device as a
personal mobile device, in addition to a business device, contingent upon the employee
signing a waiver and release and agreeing to reimburse the City for the employee’s
personal use of the mobile device. The waiver and release must be signed by both the
employee and the City Administrator prior to the issuance of a cell phone and will be kept
in the employee’s personnel file.

2. Employees provided a City owned mobile device but not authorized to use said device for
personal use may not use the device for personal use unless all of the following are met:

77



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

a) No additional costs are incurred by the City or, if incurred, the employee promptly
reimburses the City for said costs.

b) The use is for emergency purposes or is authorized by manager or supervisor.
c) The use does not violate the terms set forth in this and other related City policies.

3. City owned devices must be properly secured at all times to prevent loss, theft and
unauthorized access.

4. The loss or damage of a City owned device may lead to disciplinary action and may also
result in the employee being required to reimburse the City for the cost of the device.
The decision to take disciplinary action and/or to require reimbursement will be decided
on a fact-specific basis as determined by the City Administrator or designee.

5. Mobile devices should not be used while driving or operating equipment unless they have
a “hands free” capability and are being used hands free.

d) Work Related Use of Employee Owned Devices.
1. The use of personal mobile devices approved under this section is subject to the same

terms and conditions as a City owned device when being used for work related purposes.
2. The use of a personal device for City business may subject the device to Wisconsin’s open

records laws. Any information stored on the device is subject to review by the City or
other government entities.

3. The use of a personal device for work related activities is permitted only at the request of
the device owner and upon approval by the Department Head or designee. When such
use is requested by the device owner, the Department Head must evaluate whether the
employee’s use of their personal mobile device for work purposes is routine or essential
to the employee’s job performance or if it will be occasional and non-essential. If the use
is more than occasional and/or is essential to the performance of the employee’s job, the
Department Head should consult with the City Administrator about having the employee
be issued a City owned device.

4. Any risks associated with such use are the owner’s sole responsibility. The City will not be
responsible for:

a) Damage or malfunction caused by the configuration of the device for work
related activities.

b) Provider service charges for work related activities.
c) Costs incurred by loss or theft of the device.
d) The loss of any information stored on the device.
e) The support or repair of the device.
f) Compensation for time spent accessing City information on the device outside of

an employee’s regular work hours unless approved prior by the employees
supervisor.

e) Loss or Theft of a Device.
1. Loss of any device used to access the City’s information resources must be reported

immediately to the Sauk Co. MIS Helpdesk (see Section 11, below).
2. Upon notification of the loss of a device, the IT Committee or designee will:

a) Remotely lock out access to the device.
b) Attempt to determine the location of the device.
c) Work with device owner to locate the device.
d) Issue the command to remotely wipe the device if it cannot be located.

3. Services to lost personal mobile devices, used for work related purposes, are not to be
discontinued until the above activities have been completed and the City has authorized
such service discontinuation.

78



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

f) Security. Mobile devices, authorized by the IT Committee for access to the City’s information
resources, are secured based on the classification of the information to be accessed by the
device. The user is expected to comply with all policies related to the security of the City’s
Protected Information regardless of where or how such information is accessed. It is the user’s
responsibility to:

1. Maintain appropriate passwords.
2. Protect the device from loss or unauthorized access.
3. Utilize all provided security safeguards.
4. Notify the IT Committee of any suspected virus or malfunction.
5. Ensure devices used to access Protected Information have the proper encryption.
6. Transmit Protected Information via VPN connection.
7. Avoid any use which may compromise device security.
8. Refrain from disabling or circumventing installed MDM clients or security measures.

10) RECORD RETENTION. The City’s Code of Ordinances, Section 1.60, Information Practices, formally
adopts the State of Wisconsin Public Records Board’s General Schedules for City Governments.
Elected Officials, Department Heads and managers are responsible to ensure that records subject to
this retention schedule are appropriately retained. Records may be retained in hardcopy or electronic
format. For the purpose of this policy, records are presumed to be in electronic format. The following
guidelines relate to the retention of electronic records created on City of Baraboo’s systems. Refer to
§1.60 of the City of Baraboo Code of Ordinances for specific information regarding retention of all City
records.

a) Records Custodian. Each department is responsible for the records created during its regular
course of business. Unless otherwise prescribed by policy, ordinance or law, the department
head is presumed to be the records custodian for a given department.

b) Retention. Retention is the responsibility of the custodian of the record. To retain a record in
an electronic format means to store such record to a designated network storage location. Do
not store electronic records to a local workstation hard drive or removable storage location as
such storage is subject to loss due to device failure, malfunction or theft.

c) System Backups and Archives. System backups and archives are utilized to protect information
from accidental loss due to system failure, disaster or accidental deletion. Backups and archives
are not intended to be used for records retention. Files deleted from a designated network
storage location will also be deleted from backups within a number of days. Likewise,
information archives are periodically purged. To ensure the retention of the record in
accordance with the prescribe schedule, a records custodian must save a copy in a designated
network storage location.

d) Email Archive. The City maintains a dedicated email storage archive to better facilitate records
discovery for email record requests. Archives are not configured to fulfill specific records
retention requirements and custodians are advised to retain copies of any and all records
subject to retention in a designated network storage location.

e) Records Requests. Records requests are to be directed to the custodian of the records
requested. The IT Committee will assist custodians in locating records by utilizing available tools
to search for records using dates, keywords and metadata, however, it is the custodian’s duty
to fulfill the request. All records requests should be reviewed by the City Attorney before any
records are released.

79



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

11) COMPUTER SUPPORT / TECHNOLOGY REQUESTS.
a) Helpdesk. The City contracts with Sauk Co. MIS to provide certain network and workstation

maintenance and software services through the MIS Helpdesk. There may also be members of
your department designated to perform tech services to equipment and personnel. Please
consult your department head for advice before calling the Sauk Co. MIS Helpdesk.

1. The Sauk Co. MIS Helpdesk’s normal business hours are 7:30am-4:30pm, Monday
through Friday, and can be reached at 608-355-3555.

2. For those departments that require 24/7 support, cell phone and/or pager numbers will
be provided.

3. You may also enter any non-urgent requests via the Helpdesk e-mail account at
Helpdesk@co.sauk.wi.us.

b) Remote Access. Sauk Co. MIS Helpdesk personnel utilize remote access to aid is computer
support and maintenance. Prior to remotely accessing a user’s computer, when feasible, Sauk
Co. MIS Helpdesk staff will notify the user in advance.

c) Outside Technical Support. Prior to contacting outside technical support for assistance with
dedicated departmental applications, users are encourage to contact the Sauk Co. MIS Helpdesk
to verify the problem and ensure that the issues they are experiencing are not part of a known
issue. Contacting the Sauk Co. MIS Helpdesk will:

1. Ensure a timely response by the appropriate resource.
2. Avoid redundancy in support response.
3. Ensure documentation of issue for tracking and future reference.
4. Avoid unnecessary cost to the City.

d) Purchase Requests. All proposed purchases of computer software, hardware, and peripherals
are to be submitted to the City Administrator or his/her designee before purchase. The City
Administrator or his/her designee will determine if the purchases need review by the IT
Committee. Authorization for purchases will come from the City Administrator or his/her
designee. Departments will budget for purchases as per the work plan approved in their
respective Departmental budget.

12) SYSTEM ACCESS AUTHORIZATION REQUESTS.
a) System Access Requests. System access request should be submitted to a Department Head or

the City Administrator as they are the only people authorized to submit formal request to the
Sauk Co. MIS department for services. The form is available at the City of Baraboo SeamlessGov
web site: https://baraboowi-internal.seamlessgov.com/ or the Sauk County MIS web site:
http://scm.co.sauk.wi.us/Internet/Applications/main.nsf/misforms.xsp

b) System Access Authorization Request. To initiate, terminate or modify a User’s accessibility to
City systems must be approved by the City Administrator or other designated City Staff and
submitted to Sauk County MIS on their form at:
http://scm.co.sauk.wi.us/Internet/Applications/main.nsf/misforms.xsp

c) Other Requests. Other requests, such as a Project Request (to request hardware or software
changes or system modifications) and Mobile Device Request (to request mobile access to the
City’s information resources) must be directed to your department head. Department Heads
are granted access to the Sauk Co. MIS forms system and may authorize other staff to submit
requests and security access changes for City information systems on their behalf.

13) COMPUTER TRAINING.
a) Applications Training. Due to the diversity of applications used throughout the City, it is difficult

to have a single training solution to meet the needs of all City employees. For this reason, it is

80



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

left up to the individual departments to determine the training needs of their employees. The
IT Committee will facilitate this process by providing information regarding the training
resources available and working with the individual departments in arranging training.
Additionally, the IT Committee will periodically make available in-house training on those
applications that are considered to be standard applications. This training will be for basic to
intermediate level users and focus primarily on new employees.

b) Security Training. The City provides regular system security training to all employees via a web
based training system. These training sessions are mandatory for all employees that access the
City’s information systems and the systems are configured to provide user tracking to ensure
compliance. Users who do not complete the training will be referred to their supervisor or
department head for disciplinary action.

14) WEBSITES AND SOCIAL MEDIA SITES. Website and social media sites are important tools for the
provision of information to the public in a timely and easily accessible manner. The City encourages
the responsible use of these tools.

a) City Website. The official City website at www.cityofbaraboo.com provides a home page for
each City department. This is to be every department’s primary web presence and home page.
Additional websites and authorized social media portals must link from this home page.

b) Department Website. All internet content related to a department on is to be included on the
departmental home page.

1. The accuracy and timeliness of internet content is the responsibly of the department
head.

2. The department head may delegate the activity of updating their departmental home
page by contacting the City Administrator’s Office.

c) City Social Media Sites. There will be no more than one official City social media site on each
social media platform (e.g., one official City Facebook page, one official City YouTube site).
Each official social media site shall be run by the City Administrator or his/her designee.

d) Department Social Media Site.
1. A Department Head may elect to create no more than one official department specific

social media site per social media platform (e.g., one department specific Facebook page,
one department specific YouTube site), but only if the department’s information would
not be better shared on the main City sites.

2. If a department makes social media site(s), the department must include a link to this
site(s) from their department home page and the City’s official social media directory on
the City’s official website, and the department head must notify the City Administrator
and the IT Committee.

3. The department is responsible for maintaining their social media site(s), including making
regular postings to the site(s), training the employees authorized to post on the site(s),
and ensuring the site(s) are up-to-date.

4. All social media sites must, at minimum, contain a link prominently displayed that directs
the user to the Website and Social Media Site Terms and Conditions for the City of
Baraboo, which is available from the City Attorney.

5. Employees posting to a social media platform on behalf of the City or department must
not post any material that is copyright protected or otherwise in violation of this policy or
the Employee Handbook.

6. By creating a social media site, a department creates a limited public forum for purposes
of First Amendment protections. This means that the department is not able to
indiscriminately monitor comments without potentially violating a person’s constitutional

81



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

rights. This does not mean the City has to allow all comments. The best way to address
comments on a department’s social media page is as follows: “The opinions and
comments expressed on this social media site may not reflect the opinions and positions
of the City government, its officers, or employees. If you have any questions concerning
this social media site, please contact the City Administrator’s Office.”

15) INTERNET USE – WEB LINKING. The City’s website is used to enhance and promote the City, to make
people aware of available community services, and to provide information about the City’s operations
and activities. THE CITY’S WEBSITE IS NOT A PUBLIC FORUM FOR EXPRESSIVE ACTIVITY. Having a
website allows the City to link to other web sites consistent with the above purpose. This is typically
done in order to provide related information to someone coming to the City’s website. The City
exercises no editorial control over any of the information contained in these other organizations’
websites. In addition, the City has no control over decisions made by these other organizations as to
their website links. As a result, it is possible that someone starting with the City’s website could
eventually link to information that may not be related to the City, or that the viewer may find
offensive, or that may negatively impact the City’s website purpose. Such links may interfere with the
purpose to which the City’s website is dedicated. While this cannot be totally prevented, we can
attempt to minimize the probability of it happening by developing some guidelines that can be used
in determining whether the City should link to an organization’s website. The City is not responsible
for the content of any web site to which it provides a link. This policy applies to all departments that
have or maintain a website, including the City’s primary website.

a) Guidelines for Website Inclusion on the City’s Website.
1. Government websites.
2. Tourism websites related to the greater Baraboo area.
3. Websites that contain community information, e.g., civic, recreational, educational, and

the like, for the greater Baraboo area.
4. School websites.
5. Library websites.
6. Websites that contain regional cultural information.
7. Benevolent and charitable organizational websites that provide or promote local

community services. h. Websites for organizations that are funded by the City.
8. Websites of non-profit professional organizations of which the City or its agencies are

members.
9. Websites that contain information related to the greater Baraboo area deemed to be of

use to the City, its citizens, visitors, or businesses.
10. Websites of a similar character to sites listed above that would likewise support the

City’s website purpose.
b) Guidelines for Website Exclusion.

1. Websites containing information promoting any illegal activities.
2. Websites for which the focus is to market a particular commercial service or product

(See Acknowledgments below).
3. Websites containing information that would violate any of the City, state or federal

Affirmative Action policies, Equal Opportunity Ordinance, Ethics Ordinance, or that may
be in violation of any other City ordinances, or state or federal laws.

4. Websites unrelated to the City of Baraboo and the surrounding community.
5. Websites for a specific political candidate or political party. Rather, the City may link to

independent organizations such as the League of Women Voters.
6. Websites containing material that is harmful to minors.

82



DRAFT 2019-1 – Subject to Revision 01-16-19

s:\council\resolutions\4-9-19 tech usage policy.docx

7. Websites that are not consistent with the purpose of the City’s website.
8. Websites containing material that is obscene, profane, defamatory, libelous, or

fraudulent.
9. Acknowledgments. From time to time, a for-profit commercial company may partner

with the City on a particular project and/or they may contribute toward a project. An
acknowledgment for that company’s contribution can be made on the City’s website
including the company’s logo along with the acknowledgment is also acceptable. In
keeping with the above guidelines, no direct link should be made to the company’s
website.

c) Decision Making Authority. The decision to link to an organization’s web site can be made by
each individual department or department head or their designee. The City Administrator is
available for consultation to assist in the decision. Organizations wishing to appeal the
decision of an agency should be instructed to submit their appeal in writing to the City
Administrator. The decision of the City Administrator shall be final. Any denial of a request to
provide a link should be documented and forwarded to the City Administrator. After
consultation with the City Attorney, links will be removed if found to be in violation. The City
reserves the right to limit the number of websites to which it links in order to ensure the
usefulness and effectiveness of the website for its intended purpose.

16) POLICY INFRACTIONS
a) City employees who violate this Policy may have their IT access removed and may be subject to

disciplinary action up to and including termination. In addition, contractors or other third parties
who violate this policy may have their contract revoked. Other legal remedies, including criminal
prosecution, may also be pursued if warranted.

b) It is the policy of City to handle infractions as follows:
1. Policy violations must be reported to the user’s department head.
2. The user’s department head should approach the violator(s) directly with the findings, ensure

the user is aware of the policy, and give them the opportunity to cease and desist; or,
depending on the severity, follow disciplinary procedures consistent with the guidelines and
policies of the City of Baraboo Employee Handbook.

83



S:\Council\Resolutions\4-9-19 Residential Anti-Displacement and Reloc Assist Plan CDBG Programs.docx

NBR - 4

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - Dated: April 09, 2019

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: This resolution seeks the approval of a Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation
Assistance Plan for CDBG Programs, which is a requisite condition for the CDBG CLOSE Public Facility
grant application the City is planning to submit. Both the Finance Committee and City Council reviewed the
CDBG CLOSE program at their respective meetings on January 22, 2019 and the City Council authorized the
submittal of a grant application to the CDBG CLOSE Public Facilities program at the March 26th meeting.

Fiscal Note: [ X ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

WHEREAS, Federal monies are available under the Wisconsin Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) program, administered by the State of Wisconsin, Department of Administration, Division
of Energy, Housing and Community Resources (DEHCR), for the improvement of public facilities (CDBG-
PF); and

WHEREAS, after public meeting and due consideration, the Citizen Participation Committee
has recommended that an application be submitted to the State of Wisconsin for the following project:

The Reconstruction of Lake Street from Walnut Street to Springbrook Drive

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Common Council to approve a Residential Anti-
Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan.

This Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan (RARAP) is prepared by the City
of Baraboo in accordance with the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended;
and HUD regulations at 24 CFR 42.325 and is applicable to our CDBG projects.

Minimize Displacement
Consistent with the goals and objectives of activities assisted under the Act, the City of Baraboo will take
the following steps to minimize the direct and indirect displacement of persons from their homes:

Coordinate code enforcement with rehabilitation and housing assistance programs.

Stage rehabilitation of apartment units to allow tenants to remain in the building/complex
during and after the rehabilitation, working with empty units first.

Where feasible, give priority to rehabilitation of housing, as opposed to demolition, to
avoid displacement.

Target only those properties deemed essential to the need or success of the project.

Additional action that will be taken to address local needs & priorities, as determined by
the Unit of General Local Government (UGLG).

84



S:\Council\Resolutions\4-9-19 Residential Anti-Displacement and Reloc Assist Plan CDBG Programs.docx

Relocation Assistance to Displaced Persons
The City of Baraboo will provide relocation assistance for lower-income tenants who, in connection with an
activity assisted under the CDBG Program, move permanently or move personal property from real property
as a direct result of the demolition of any dwelling unit or the conversion of a lower-income dwelling unit in
accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR 42.350. A displaced person who is not a lower-income tenant,
will be provided relocation assistance in accordance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24.

One-for-One Replacement of Lower-Income Dwelling Units

The City of Baraboo will replace all occupied and vacant occupiable lower-income dwelling units demolished
or converted to a use other than lower-income housing in connection with a project assisted with funds
provided under the CDBG Program in accordance with 24 CFR 42.375.

Before entering into a contract committing the City of Baraboo to provide funds for a project that will directly
result in demolition or conversion of lower-income dwelling units, the City of Baraboo will make public by
[describe how, such as publication in a newspaper of general circulation] and submit to HUD [the
State, under the State CDBG Program] the following information in writing:

1. A description of the proposed assisted project;

2. The address, number of bedrooms, and location on a map of lower-income dwelling units that
will be demolished or converted to a use other than as lower-income dwelling units as a result
of an assisted project;

3. A time schedule for the commencement and completion of the demolition or conversion;

4. To the extent known, the address, number of lower-income dwelling units by size (number of
bedrooms) and location on a map of the replacement lower-income housing that has been or
will be provided. NOTE: See also 24 CFR 42.375(d).

5. The source of funding and a time schedule for the provision of the replacement dwelling
units;

6. The basis for concluding that each replacement dwelling unit will remain a lower- income
dwelling unit for at least 10 years from the date of initial occupancy; and

7. Information demonstrating that any proposed replacement of lower-income dwelling units
with smaller dwelling units (e.g., a 2-bedroom unit with two 1-bedroom unit), or any proposed
replacement of efficiency or single-room occupancy (SRO) units with units of a different size,
is appropriate and consistent with the housing needs and priorities identified in the HUD-
approved Consolidated Plan and 24 CFR 42.375(b).

To the extent that the specific location of the replacement dwelling units and other data in items 4
through 7 are not available at the time of the general submission, the City of Baraboo will identify the
general location of such dwelling units on a map and complete the disclosure and submission
requirements as soon as the specific data is available.

Replacement not Required Based on Unit Availability
Under 24 CFR 42.375(d), the City of Baraboo may submit a request to HUD (or to the State, if funded
by the State) for a determination that the one-for-one replacement requirement does not apply based
on objective data that there is an adequate supply of vacant lower-income dwelling units in standard
condition available on a non-discriminatory basis within the area.

85



S:\Council\Resolutions\4-9-19 Residential Anti-Displacement and Reloc Assist Plan CDBG Programs.docx

Contacts

The Community Development Authority of the City of Baraboo (608-355-2700) is responsible for tracking
the replacement of lower-income dwelling units and ensuring that they are provided within the required
period.

The Community Development Authority of the City of Baraboo (608-355-2700) is responsible for
providing relocation payments and other relocation assistance to any lower-income person displaced by
the demolition of any dwelling unit or the conversion of lower-income dwelling units to another use.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Baraboo
does approve this Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan.

Offered by: Baraboo CDA Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

86



87



88



89



Funds 100,430 & 432 Function

12/31/2019

Original Budget

Budget

Adjustment

Increase/

(Decrease)

12/31/2019

Total Budget

03/31/2019

Actual

% of

Budget

Should be

25 Comment

General Government

General Fund Council 40,819.00 - 40,819.00 9,020.27 22.10
General Fund Mayor 13,773.00 - 13,773.00 2,970.69 21.57

General Fund Data Processing 77,875.00 6,688.00 84,563.00 35,912.32 42.47

Mostly service renewals that are

paid in lump sum during the 1st

quarter.

General Fund Ambulance 288,408.00 - 288,408.00 144,204.00 50.00

The City makes 2 installments. 50%

is reasonable.

General Fund Airport 39,342.00 - 39,342.00 39,342.00 100.00

The City pays 1 lump sum during 1st

quarter. 100% is reasonable.

General Fund Cemetery 29,000.00 - 29,000.00 29,000.00 100.00

The City pays 1 lump sum during 1st

quarter. 100% is reasonable.
General Fund Cultural Expense - - - - -
General Fund Celebrations & Entertainment 1,370.00 - 1,370.00 - -
General Fund Cable TV 32,000.00 - 32,000.00 5,333.34 16.67

General Fund UW Campus 102,500.00 - 102,500.00 102,500.00 100.00

The City pays 1 lump sum during 1st

quarter. 100% is reasonable.

General Fund Sauk County Development 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 10,000.00 100.00

The City pays 1 lump sum during 1st

quarter. 100% is reasonable.

General Fund Pink Lady Rail Commission 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 100.00

The City pays 1 lump sum during 1st

quarter. 100% is reasonable.
General Fund Contingency 38,810.00 - 38,810.00 - -
General Fund Transfer to Debt Service - - - - -
General Fund Transfer to TIF - - - - -
General Fund Transfer to Capital Projects - - - - -
Capital Projects Principal on Notes - - - - -
Capital Projects Debt Issuance Costs - - - - -
Capital Projects Transfer to Debt Service - - - - -
Special Assessment Projects General Government - - - - -
Special Assessment Projects General Government - - - - -

General Government Total 674,397.00 6,688.00 681,085.00 378,782.62 55.61

City of Baraboo

1st Quarter Financial Report
March 31, 2019

Created By: Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director 4/4/2019

90



Funds 100,430 & 432 Function

12/31/2019

Original Budget

Budget

Adjustment

Increase/

(Decrease)

12/31/2019

Total Budget

03/31/2019

Actual

% of

Budget

Should be

25 Comment

City of Baraboo

1st Quarter Financial Report
March 31, 2019

Finance Department

General Fund City Clerk 116,759.00 - 116,759.00 24,340.80 20.85
General Fund Elections 33,873.00 - 33,873.00 3,180.04 9.39

General Fund Finance 300,784.00 - 300,784.00 91,912.71 30.56

CIVIC Systems software final

payment was paid in January. 31%

is reasonable.
General Fund Independent Auditing 45,450.00 - 45,450.00 - -
General Fund City Treasurer 97,786.00 - 97,786.00 22,172.47 22.67
General Fund Assessment 42,648.00 - 42,648.00 322.35 0.76
General Fund Municipal Building - - - 4,534.17 -
General Fund PS/Admin Building 164,720.00 - 164,720.00 40,552.67 24.62

General Fund Other General Government 2,940.00 - 2,940.00 2,937.11 99.90

League of Wisconsin membership

dues paid in lump sum during the 1st

quarter. 100% is reasonable.
General Fund Illegal Taxes, Tax Refund 863.00 - 863.00 (0.45) (0.05)

General Fund Property Insurance 96,195.00 - 96,195.00 95,865.00 99.66

Auto physical damage, boiler and

property insurance all paid in lump

sum during 1st quarter. 100% is

reasonable.
General Fund Liability Insurance 14,634.00 - 14,634.00 - -

General Fund Worker's Compensation 189,789.00 - 189,789.00 174,362.00 91.87

Worker's Compensation insurance is

paid in lump sum during 1st quarter.

Roughly 100% is reasonable.
General Fund Sealer of Weights & Measures 4,400.00 - 4,400.00 - -
General Fund Taxi Transportation 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 - -

Capital Projects PS/Admin Building 503,119.00 - 503,119.00 342,425.00 68.06

USDA payments to CDA during 1st

quarter. Roughly 70% is reasonable.
Finance Department Total 1,363,345.00 - 1,363,345.00 802,603.87 58.87

City Attorney

General Fund City Attorney 132,963.00 - 132,963.00 24,809.72 18.66
City Attorney Total 132,963.00 - 132,963.00 24,809.72 18.66

Created By: Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director 4/4/2019

91



Funds 100,430 & 432 Function

12/31/2019

Original Budget

Budget

Adjustment

Increase/

(Decrease)

12/31/2019

Total Budget

03/31/2019

Actual

% of

Budget

Should be

25 Comment

City of Baraboo

1st Quarter Financial Report
March 31, 2019

City Administrator

General Fund Administration 210,927.00 2,220.00 213,147.00 45,851.43 21.51
General Fund Personnel/Safety 6,350.00 - 6,350.00 1,472.00 23.18
General Fund Planning 5,707.00 - 5,707.00 17.82 0.31

City Administrator Total 222,984.00 2,220.00 225,204.00 47,341.25 21.02

Economic Development

General Fund Economic Development 61,357.00 - 61,357.00 4,625.34 7.54
Economic Development Total 61,357.00 - 61,357.00 4,625.34 7.54

Police Department

General Fund Police Department 2,838,833.00 - 2,838,833.00 587,785.52 20.71
General Fund Departmental Services 609,558.00 - 609,558.00 80,537.00 13.21

General Fund Records & Support 381,574.00 - 381,574.00 119,426.07 31.30

$23K ITI contract for 2019 paid in

one lump sum. 31% is reasonable.
General Fund Canine Unit 13,165.00 - 13,165.00 150.00 1.14
General Fund Animal Control 2,250.00 - 2,250.00 127.75 5.68
Capital Projects Police Department - - - - -

Police Department Total 3,845,380.00 - 3,845,380.00 788,026.34 20.49

Fire Department

General Fund Municipal Building - Fire Dept 44,202.00 - 44,202.00 9,662.85 21.86

General Fund Alma Waite Annex 1,400.00 - 1,400.00 988.70 70.62

Alliant Energy (electric and heat) for

January and February. Utilities are

projected to come in over budget by

$6K. Will need to address

Ambulance occupancy expense.
General Fund Fire Protection 674,245.00 1,542.00 675,787.00 111,950.41 16.57
General Fund Hydrant Rental 289,307.00 - 289,307.00 - -
General Fund Emergency Government 8,634.00 - 8,634.00 13.87 0.16
General Fund Transfer to Capital Fund 200,000.00 - 200,000.00 - -
Capital Projects Fire Protection - - - - -

Fire Department Total 1,217,788.00 1,542.00 1,219,330.00 122,615.83 10.06

Created By: Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director 4/4/2019

92



Funds 100,430 & 432 Function

12/31/2019

Original Budget

Budget

Adjustment

Increase/

(Decrease)

12/31/2019

Total Budget

03/31/2019

Actual

% of

Budget

Should be

25 Comment

City of Baraboo

1st Quarter Financial Report
March 31, 2019

Inspection & Zoning

General Fund Building Inspection 112,104.00 - 112,104.00 6,835.09 6.10
General Fund Zoning 752.00 - 752.00 126.73 16.85

Inspection & Zoning Total 112,856.00 - 112,856.00 6,961.82 6.17

Engineering

General Fund Mapping & Engineering Support 192,156.00 - 192,156.00 48,913.75 25.46 Pass

General Fund Bridges 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 1,251.39 83.43

Sauk County Highway Department

January bridge inspection is the only

activity in this account, thus far. 83%

is reasonable.
General Fund Sidewalk Repair 56,764.00 - 56,764.00 (64.44) (0.11)
General Fund Railroad Repairs - - - - -
General Fund New Streets - Aidable 11,788.00 - 11,788.00 - -
General Fund New Sidewalks 16,667.00 - 16,667.00 122.65 0.74
Capital Projects Bridges - - - - -
Capital Projects Railroad Repairs - - - - -
Capital Projects New Streets - Aidable 1,364,041.00 - 1,364,041.00 - -
Capital Projects New Sidewalk 14,300.00 - 14,300.00 - -
Capital Projects Transfer to Capital Projects 12,000.00 - 12,000.00 - -
Special Assessment Projects Sidewalk Repair - - - - -
Special Assessment Projects New Streets - Aidable - - - - -
Special Assessment Projects New Curb & Gutter 74,432.00 - 74,432.00 - -
Special Assessment Projects New Sidewalk 171,257.00 - 171,257.00 - -

Engineering Total 1,914,905.00 - 1,914,905.00 50,223.35 2.62

Created By: Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director 4/4/2019

93



Funds 100,430 & 432 Function

12/31/2019

Original Budget

Budget

Adjustment

Increase/

(Decrease)

12/31/2019

Total Budget

03/31/2019

Actual

% of

Budget

Should be

25 Comment

City of Baraboo

1st Quarter Financial Report
March 31, 2019

Public Works

General Fund Storage Buildings 28,738.00 24,752.00 53,490.00 26,999.14 50.48

Purchased truss for cold storage

building. 50% is reasonable.
General Fund PW Operations 410,767.00 - 410,767.00 70,288.59 17.11
General Fund Machinery & Equipment 328,891.00 (4,000.00) 324,891.00 74,013.52 22.78
General Fund City Services Facility 131,144.00 - 131,144.00 23,114.48 17.63
General Fund Street Maintenance 306,818.00 (1,875.00) 304,943.00 24,372.79 7.99
General Fund Alleys 74,111.00 - 74,111.00 - -

General Fund Snow & Ice 294,737.00 88,118.00 382,855.00 329,570.33 86.08

$77K Plow truck purchased. 86% is

reasonable.
General Fund Trees and Brush 69,887.00 - 69,887.00 2,814.32 4.03
General Fund Street Lighting 153,545.00 - 153,545.00 23,728.53 15.45
General Fund Parking Lots 30,753.00 - 30,753.00 - -
General Fund Garbage & Refuse 108,350.00 - 108,350.00 20,712.17 19.12
General Fund Solid Waste Disposal 213,000.00 - 213,000.00 27,670.80 12.99
General Fund Recycling 123,108.00 - 123,108.00 13,998.82 11.37
General Fund Weeds 10,143.00 - 10,143.00 - -
General Fund Compost 40,285.00 - 40,285.00 - -

Capital Projects PW-Machinery & Equipment 92,900.00 - 92,900.00 92,900.00 100.00

Skid steers purchased. 100% is

reasonable.
Capital Projects City Services Center - - - - -
Capital Projects Street Maintenance - - - - -
Capital Projects Street Maintenance - - - - -
Capital Projects Parking Lots - - - - -
General Fund Transfer to Capital Funds 100,000.00 - 100,000.00 - -

Public Works Total 2,517,177.00 106,995.00 2,624,172.00 730,183.49 27.83

Library

General Fund Library 936,800.00 - 936,800.00 240,841.28 25.71 Pass
Library Total 936,800.00 - 936,800.00 240,841.28 25.71

Created By: Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director 4/4/2019

94



Funds 100,430 & 432 Function

12/31/2019

Original Budget

Budget

Adjustment

Increase/

(Decrease)

12/31/2019

Total Budget

03/31/2019

Actual

% of

Budget

Should be

25 Comment

City of Baraboo

1st Quarter Financial Report
March 31, 2019

Parks

General Fund ROW - Trees 102,502.00 - 102,502.00 26,334.00 25.69 Pass
General Fund Civic Center 287,537.00 16,413.00 303,950.00 67,294.98 22.14
General Fund Parks 611,833.00 (7,000.00) 604,833.00 65,354.41 10.81
General Fund Zoo 258,307.00 9,800.00 268,107.00 51,089.76 19.06
General Fund Forestry 102,613.00 - 102,613.00 18,073.57 17.61
Capital Projects Civic Center - - - - -

Capital Projects Parks 198,000.00 19,463.00 217,463.00 72,779.10 33.47

$65K skid steer purchase. 33% is

reasonable.
Capital Projects Zoo - - - - -

Parks Total 1,560,792.00 38,676.00 1,599,468.00 300,925.82 18.81

Recreation

General Fund Recreation 172,330.00 - 172,330.00 28,625.71 16.61
General Fund Pool 112,105.00 6,648.00 118,753.00 559.32 0.47

General Fund Winter Recreation 987.00 - 987.00 863.49 87.49

Skating rink payroll January - March.

If activity occurs for December this

year, this budget may go over by

roughly $200.
Capital Projects Pool 20,000.00 - 20,000.00 - -

Recreation Total 305,422.00 6,648.00 312,070.00 30,048.52 9.63

Community Development Authority

General Fund Community Development 662.00 - 662.00 75.36 11.38

General Fund BEDC 41,436.00 - 41,436.00 16,060.00 38.76

City webpage update $4K; Chamber

of Commerce (branding) $10K.

Roughly 40% is reasonable.
General Fund CDA Accts Receivable - - - - -

Community Development Authority Total 42,098.00 - 42,098.00 16,135.36 38.33
Total All 14,908,264.00 162,769.00 15,071,033.00 3,544,124.61 23.52

Created By: Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director 4/4/2019

95



P ER M IT T YP E IS S U ED YT D ES T CO S T YT D FEES YT D IS S U ED YT D ES T CO S T YT D FEES YT D

Com m ercial,N ew 1 1 $800,000.00 $800,000.00 $2,272.63 $2,272.63 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Com m ercialA ddition 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Com m ercial,A lterations 3 10 $128,381.00 $618,857.00 $752.00 $2,661.05 4 9 $35,750.00 $458,200.00 $660.00 $3,640.24

Com m ercial,R azing 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R esidential,N ew S F 2 3 $430,000.00 $592,000.00 $1,641.66 $2,527.61 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R esidential,N ew Duplex 0 2 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $2,018.24 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R esidential,A dditions 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R esidentialR em odel 3 8 $33,000.00 $287,850.00 $225.00 $1,409.56 7 12 $108,565.00 $154,563.00 $525.00 $960.00

R esidential,A ccessory R azing 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R esidentialDw ellingR azing 0 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R oofing/S iding/W indow s 10 17 $101,700.00 $256,700.00 $696.00 $1,812.00 19 29 $416,542.00 $600,542.00 $2,302.00 $3,418.00

Garage/S heds/Deck/Fence 4 4 $29,700.00 $29,700.00 $300.00 $300.00 2 4 $19,000.00 $32,400.00 $120.00 $285.00

M ulti-Fam ily U nits 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

P lum bingO nly 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ElectricalO nly 3 6 $2,825.00 $20,125.00 $220.00 $460.00 1 11 $350.00 $29,521.00 $60.00 $820.00

HVA C O nly 1 2 $3,800.00 $7,602.00 $60.00 $120.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

S ignP erm its 2 5 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $240.00 $510.00 3 5 $2,500.00 $4,500.00 $150.00 $270.00

M isc.P erm its 2 4 $0.00 $0.00 $90.00 $210.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

T O T A L S 31 63 $1,533,406.00 $2,625,834.00 $6,497.29 $14,331.09 36 70 $582,707.00 $1,279,726.00 $3,817.00 $9,393.24

R EP O R T O FBU IL DIN G IN S P ECT IO N

Construction,P lum bing,Electrical,HVA C,Com m ercial

M A R CH
20192018

96



Finance/Personnel Committee – Dennis Thurow Committee Room, #305 March 26, 2019

Members Present: Petty, Thurow, Sloan
Absent: none
Others Present: Mayor Palm, E. Geick, E. Truman, B. Zeman, C. Haggard, John Bare, Joe Colossa

Call to Order –Ald. Petty called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. noting compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to approve the minutes of March 12, 2019. Moved by Sloan, seconded by
Thurow to approve the agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Action Items
a) Accounts Payable – Moved by Sloan seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council approval of the

accounts payable for $962,974.32. Motion carried unanimously.
b) Approve the 2018 4th Qtr. Budget Amendments The Committee reviewed the amendments 2018 4th Qtr.

Budget amendments. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried unanimously to recommend to
Council for action.

c) Approve a Budget Amendment of $2,770 for a proposal from United Systems Associates, LLC to
monitor the Delta Controls, provide preventative maintenance and offsite support for the Baraboo
Municipal Building C. Haggard explained that was initially estimated at $1,500 because we were unsure of
what the needs would be. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried unanimously to recommend to
Council for action.

d) Authorize the City Administrator to submit a grant application to WEDC, Wisconsin Economic
Development Corporation, on behalf of the Al Ringling Brewery project. Adm. Geick introduced John
Bare and Joe Colossa from the Al Ringling Brewery to the Committee and explained that we are applying to
WEDC for some grant funds to help them out with their project; they are principally self-funded for their
project. This business fits into the downtown very well, it is supportive of the downtown business
community and it’s also helping to preserve the mansion. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried
unanimously to recommend to Council for action.

Informational Items
a) City Attorney’s report on insurance claims – We have received another claim for a pothole but Atty. Truman has

not yet reviewed this claim. She will provide an update at the next meeting.

Adjournment – Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried to adjourn at 6:40pm.
Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

97



Baraboo Economic Development Commission
Meeting Minutes

March 7, 2018

I. Call to Meeting to Order and Note Compliance with Open Meeting Law
Chair Jim Bowers called the meeting to order at 5:34 PM at the Baraboo High School, 1201 Draper St,
Baraboo, WI. The meeting was noticed in conformance with Wisconsin State Statues regarding open
meetings.

II. Roll Call
Present: Bowers, Alt, Ayar, Palm, Platt-Gibson, Reppen, Taylor, Wastlund, White
Absent: Alt, Umhoefer, Bingle, Caflisch
Other: Patrick Cannon

III. Approve Agenda
Motion to approve the agenda as presented
Taylor (1); Ayar (2)
Aye: All via voice vote
Nay: None

IV. Approve Minutes
Motion to approve the minutes for February 14, 2019 with the addition of MSA Professional Services
for a future presentation
Wastlund (1); Johnson (2)
Aye: All via voice vote
Nay: None

V. Public Comment
a. Presentation regarding the April 2, 2019 School Referendum
b. Tour of High School Facilities and Renovations

Superintendent Dr. Lori Mueller, School Board member Mike Kohlman and High School Principal Glenn
Bildsten presented the need for the currently proposed referendum. They indicated how this current
request is a major part of their overall capital improvements for all school facilities. With the
completion of the High School renovations the other facilities still need renovations.

The tour of the High School included the new areas and how the older areas have been upgraded.
Overall the facility’s renovation will ensure a better learning environment.

VI. Old Business
a. Updates on Development Activities

Ed Geick provided a written update on Development Activities. A copy of the report is attached.

b. Updates from Plan Commission and Council
Mayor Palm spoke on the following items:

 The Lake Street project is scheduled for 2019. A Public Hearing is scheduled for March 11,
2019 and the City Council will address the issue on March 12, 2019.

c. Update from economic development partners and collaborators

 Mr. Reppen indicated that they have had some success in their recent employment activities.
He also indicated that the County is in the process of reviewing a potential Nursing Home and
the downtown parking issue.

 Mr. Taylor indicated that the loan delinquencies at the bank are down.

 Ms. Platt-Gibson gave an update on the hiring of a new Oncologist for St Clare. He both lives
and works in Baraboo. The Hospital is also looking at expansions into the Dells area. 98



 Mr. White indicated that the SCDC has their annual meeting upcoming. They will be awarding
several businesses for their efforts.

 Mr. Johnson that livestock sales are down due to the weather. This has caused an increase in
pricing.

 Mr. Bowers updated the committee on the construction of the kayak launch in West Baraboo.
He also updated the homeless shelter has been receiving mixed reviews with their residents.

d. Consideration of development of a strategic plan for BEDC
i. Ad Hoc Committee on Eastside Corridor Study

No updates
ii. Ad Hoc Committee on Business Walk

No updates

VII. New Business
None

VII. Update Partner Presentation Schedule
St Clare President Laura Walczak will be presenting at the April meeting.

VIII. Commissioner and City Staff comments

IX. Adjournment
Motion to adjourn the meeting was made at 7:34 pm.
Ayar (1); Reppen (2)
Aye: All via voice vote
Nay: None

Jim Bowers Patrick Cannon
Chairperson Recorder

99



       

 

Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 

 

 

The January 23, 2019 meeting of the Baraboo District Ambulance Service Commission was called to order 
by Puttkamer at 7:00 pm. 
 
Commissioners present:  Erik Larson, Robin Meier, Darlene Otto, Joel Petty, Randy Puttkamer, Scott Sloan, 
Tim Stieve, and Phil Wedekind 
Also present were:  Attorney Maffei, Chief Sechler, Deputy Chief Rago, Captain Johnson, Captain Koepp, 
N. Rago, Snow, Vande Hei, Woodstock, Mayor Palm, and City Administrator Geick 
 
Puttkamer noted that the meeting had been posted in compliance with the Open Meeting Law. 
 
Adoption of Agenda 

• The agenda was adopted by a motion made by Sloan, seconded by Petty.  Voice vote, all ayes.  
Motion carried. 

 
Approval of Previous Minutes 

• A motion to approve the December 5, 2018 minutes was made by Sloan, seconded by Stieve. 
Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 
 

Public Invited to Speak 

• None 
 

Appearances/Announcements/Correspondence 

• None 
 

Reports 

1. Legal Counsel Report – No report. 
2. President’s Report – No report. 
3. Treasurer’s Report – No report.  
4. Chief’s Report – Sechler reviewed the written report that was submitted in the Commission packet. 

 
Consent Agenda 

1. Approve check details and online payments for November 25, 2018 – January 12, 2019 in the 

amount of $164,371.35. 

2. Approve write-offs in the amount of $17,916.16. 

A motion to approve as presented was made by Petty seconded by Larson.  Voice vote, all ayes.  

Motion carried. 

 

Old Business 

1. Mayor Palm and City Administrator Gieck met with the Commission to discuss the concept of a safe, 

modern facility/ station that is cost effective to the Community.  The City of Baraboo would like to 

discuss the idea of a 50-year building that would potentially be utilized by both the Fire Department 

and the Ambulance Service.  Several questions were asked, including financing / leasing, design of 

the building, and the timeline.  It was indicated that the plan / design phase would be this year (2019) 

and the build phase would be next year (2020) with a move in date of 12/2020 or 1/2021.  Other 

topics discussed included ownership of the building, versus renting / leasing.  Similarities were 

compared to the current municipal building, with financing potentially from the USDA.  The Mayor 

would like to come to future meetings to give updates, and see if the Commission would be 

100



       

 

Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 

 

 

interested in participating in this venture.  The Commission will consider appointing an ad hoc 

building committee to participate in future discussions, at the next Commission meeting.  

2. The Compliance Policies that were presented at last month’s Commission meeting were reviewed, 

and items that had been changed / revised were noted.  A motion was made by Sloan, seconded by 

Petty to approve the Compliance Policies. Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 

3. Sechler presented the background on employee wage rates and staffing for 2019.  The documents 

that had been requested at the previous Commission meeting were passed out, and a number of items 

were reviewed.  The initial request was an increase of $1.45 an hour for all line staff.  After 

discussion, a motion was made by Sloan, seconded by Larson to approve half the amount of the 

proposed $1.45 per hour, for each EMS level hourly employee, to be effective with the current pay 

period—as well as to appropriately change the hourly wages for the Coordinators, in order to address 

the wage compression. Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried.  The intent is to bring this item back to 

the Commission in about 6 months, to review the competitive wages, as well as the current revenue 

for the Service, in order to determine if any other wage increases are to be given at that point in time. 

 

New Business 

1. Snow presented the Assignment of Fund Balance that is reviewed at the beginning of each year, 

which summarizes the Fund balances in all the accounts of Baraboo EMS.  A motion was made by 

Meier, seconded by Sloan to accept and approve the document. Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 

 

2. Sechler presented the proposed Procurement policy that is required for the AFG grant.  After 

discussion, a motion was made by Meier, seconded by Petty to approve the Procurement policy, to 

include changing the wording “Request for Proposal (RFP)” to “Request for Bid (RFB)”.   Voice 

vote, all ayes.  Motion carried.   

 
3. Sechler presented the results of the Vehicle committee review of the Bids that came in for the 

Bariatric ambulance.  A number of items were discussed and considered by the Commission, 

including warranties, quality, and presentation material.  After discussion, a motion was made by 

Sloan, seconded by Wedekind to award the bid to Demer’s.  Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 

 

Commissioner Comments & Future Agenda Items 

• Sloan requested that the topic of “Ad hoc building committee” be added to the next Commission meeting 
agenda. 

• Please mark your calendars for the next Commission meetings, which will be the following: 
o February 27, 2019 
o March 27, 2019 

 
Adjournment 

• Motion to adjourn by Meier, seconded by Larson at 8:30 pm. Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Dana Sechler, Chief / EMS Director 
Baraboo District Ambulance Service   

101



Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 
Finance Ad Hoc Committee 

 
 

The January 23, 2019 meeting of the Ad Hoc Committee was called to order by Meier at 6:46 pm. Meier 
confirmed that the meeting had been posted in compliance with the Open Meeting Law. 
 
Committee members present: Meier, Petty, and Puttkamer.  Also present:  Otto, Sechler, Snow, and 
Vande Hei 
 
Approval of Agenda 

• The agenda was adopted with a motion made by Petty, seconded by Puttkamer.  Voice vote, all 
ayes.  Motion carried. 

 
Approval of Previous Minutes 

• A motion to approve the December 5, 2018 minutes was made by Puttkamer, seconded by Petty. 
Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 
 

Public Invited to Speak 

• No public comments. 
 
Appearances / Announcements / Correspondence / Reports 

• None 
 

New Business 
1. Approve check details and online payments for November 25, 2018 – January 12, 2019 in the 

amount of $164,371.35.  A motion to approve as presented was made by Petty, seconded by 
Puttkamer.  Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 

 

1. Approve write-offs in the amount of:  $17,916.16. 

A motion to approve as presented was made by Puttkamer, seconded by Petty.  Voice vote, all ayes.  

Motion carried. 

 

Additional Comments & Future Agenda Items  

• None 
 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Committee, a motion to adjourn was made by Petty, 
seconded by Puttkamer.  Voice vote, motion carried at 6:55 pm. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       Dana Sechler, Chief / EMS Director 
       Baraboo District Ambulance Service 

102



MINUTES of the BARABOO BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (BID) March 20, 2019
BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S MEETING

Members Present: S. Fay, B. Stelling, T. Wickus, L. Steffes, H. Kierzek, S. Byberg
Members Absent: D. Ender, N. Marklein Bacher
Also Attending: Ed Geick

Call to Order: Sarah Fay presided over the meeting, called it to order at 5:48 PM and noted compliance with
the Open Meeting Law.

Meeting Minutes:
Moved by Steffes, seconded by Stelling and unanimously carried to approve the minutes of February 20, 2019.

Agenda: Moved by Wickus, seconded by Byberg and unanimously carried to approve the agenda as
published.

Reports of Officers and Committies
Ed Geick introduced Heather Kierzek to the Board

 Appearance Committee – Planters are cleaned up.

 Parking Committee – Preparing RFP for weed removal; Parking lots need more maintenance

 Promotions Committee – Full page promotion in Devil’s Lake guide and in map; Doing redesign for
banner by Johnsen.

Old Business:
Joint Parking Committee by Sarah Fay – Meeting last week; Reviewed county employee letters and

discussed options; Sending out survey on tenant and employee parking; Ed discussed some of the other
parking issues.

New Business:
1. Vouchers Skillet Creek Media $ 125.00

Next Level Creative 522.50

TOTAL: 647.50

Moved by Wickus, seconded by Byberg, and unanimously carried to approve the vouchers.

2. Budget – Take funds from parking lot account to cover accounting transfers.
Moved by Stelling, seconded by Wickus and unanimously carried to approve Ed Geick’s memo
and fund transfers as noted above.

Correspondence & Announcements:
Dana Ender would like to leave Board.
Shelly Mordini has expressed an interest in serving on Board.

Next Meeting: Wednesday, April 24, 2019 at 5:45pm, Committee Room #205.

Adjournment: Moved by Steffes, seconded by Byberg to adjourn at approximately 6:32 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, Ed Geick

103



104


